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ANNOUNCEMENT OF RESULTS
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Lilang Limited (the “Company”)
iIs pleased to announce the audited consolidated results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023. This announcement, containing the full text of the 2023
Annual Report of the Company, complies with the relevant requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of
annual results.
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China Lilang is one of the leading PRC menswear enterprises. As an
integrated fashion enterprise, the Group designs, sources and manufactures
high-quality business and casual apparel for men and sells under the
" BF LILANZ" and " | B LESS IS MORE” brands across an extensive retail and
distribution network, covering 31 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities in the PRC.
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China Lilang Limited

Financial Highlights

2023 Annual Report

HBREE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E'-= - —F
(RMB million) (RMB million) Changes(%)
(ARMEETRT) (AR¥RET) 08 (%)
Revenue WA 3,543.8 3,086.2 +148
Gross profit EF 1,706.8 14202 +20.2
Profit from operations LT 610.6 519.1 +17.6
Profit for the year FEFE 530.4 4481 +184
(RMB cents) (RMB cents) Changes(%)
(AR®S) (AR¥5) A8 (%)
Earnings per share s epl
- Basic - 7 4430 3742 +184
- Diluted - #58 44.30 3742 +184
Shareholders'equity per share SRR 331.3 3158 +49
Interim dividend per share G ERE HK13 cents 7811l HK13 cents 71l 0
Special interim dividend per share SRR HEIRR B HK5 cents &l HK5 cents /811 0
Final dividend per share FRCREIR S HK13 cents &1l HK9 cents 7511l +44.4
Special final dividend per share BRERIRERE HK5 cents il HK5 cents 7811l 0
(% points)
%) (R
Gross profit margin SRS 48.2 460 +22
Operating profit margin KB R 17.2 168 +04
Net profit margin pEF NS 15.0 145 +05
Return on average IR R
shareholders’ equity k=g 13.7 120 +1.7
Effective tax rate BRT 19.4 18.1 +13
Advertising, promotional and B 58Kk
renovation expenses HERX
(as a percentage of revenue) (EBAB D) 14.7 130 +1.7




Financial Highlights (continued)
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Six months ended

30 June 2023

Year ended 31 December BZE

2023 2022 ~A=+H

=== —T_—F LERME A

Average inventory turnover days® FHFERAERE 170 195 211
Average trade receivables FHRKE BEER

turnover days® AEREO 42 54 51
Average trade payables YRGB ZER

turnover days® HEEEPN 130 11 140

Notes: FfaE -
©) Return on average shareholders' equity is equal to the profit for the year divided m - 359 5 B AR 2 (0] R DA 4F i 1 R LA PR SR A

by the average of the beginning and closing balance of total shareholders’equity.

) Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the beginning and )

closing inventory balance divided by cost of sales and multiplied by the number

of days in the year.

(3) Average trade receivables turnover days is equal to the average of the beginning 3)

and closing trade and bills receivables balance divided by revenue (including

value-added tax) and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

(4) Average trade payables turnover days is equal to the average of the beginning (4)

and closing trade and bills payables balance divided by cost of sales and

multiplied by the number of days in the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEwE

Operating in such a challenging business environment, China Lilang

actively responded to the changing market by continuously facilitating new
retail business, promoting sales and driving store efficiency. By launching
quality and iconic items as well as rejuvenating the brands, it enhanced the
competitiveness of the Group's brands.
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To all shareholders,

In 2023, China welcomed its first year of recovery after three years of
pandemic. Despite the continued complex and ever-changing global
situation, the economy in mainland demonstrated resilience. Under the
guidance of the encourage consumption policy by the central government,
the retail market has gradually recovered and achieved a moderate growth
in the second half of the year. During the year, China Lilang Limited (the
“Company” or “China Lilang’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
known as the “Group”) pushed forward the Lilang brand’s strategic upgrade
and achieved both revenue and profit growth, laying a solid foundation for
future sustainable development.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue for the year increased by
14.8% year-on-year to RMB3,543.8 million. Profit for the year increased by
18.4% year-on-year to RMB530.4 million.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
* I'_n'-‘?_:' ﬁ %: (#)

During the year, the Group maintained a healthy financial position with
sufficient cash flow. The Board of Directors has resolved to pay a final
dividend of HK13cents (2022: HK9 cents) per share and a special final
dividend of HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) per share, thus maintaining a stable
payout ratio throughout the year.

During the year, the Group continued to strengthen the development
of the new retail business. It optimised the integration of online and
offline models and continued investment in new product research and
development capacity to adapt to changes in market demand and
promoted the strategic upgrade of “Lilang’'s Minimalist Men’s Fashion”. By
redesigned logo, revitalizing its brand image and diversified promotional
campaigns to respond to the personalised needs of the new generation of
consumers and leading the fashion trend for Chinese menswear.

To ride on the growing popularity of e-commerce, the Group continued
to expand its new retail business during the year and intensified the
promotion on Tiktok and leverage the e-commerce live streaming to drive
business growth. Prior to the “Double 11 Shopping Festival’, the Group
broadcasted the highlights from “LESS IS MORE Grand Anping Bridge
Show: Knowledge and Practice of the Youth” ("Anping Bridge Show") held
at Anping Bridge, a world heritage site in Jinjiang, Fujian through TikTok to
showcase the minimalist fashion style of China’s Lilang's menswear and laid
a good foundation for the sales during the Double 11 Shopping Festival.
The Group also leveraged complementary advantages of its online platform
and the offline in-stores to foster the growth of the store performance.

During the year, the new retail sales grew by 17.6%. year-on-year.

The Group pragmatically developed its own retail network and supported
distributors in optimising the retail network. As of the end of 2023, the
Group had a total of 2,695 stores, including 296 smart casual collection
stores operated under the direct-to-retail model, 6 smart casual collection
stores operated by distributors and a total of 2,393 core collection stores,
representing a net year on year increase of 51 stores. The Group has
completed the sales channel reform during the year after three years of
hard work, and the four main sales channels established were as follow:
The distribution and consignment models of the core collection, the direct-
to-retail stores of the smart casual collection and the direct-to-retail stores
under the e-commerce sales model has recorded profits respectively, and
successfully enhanced store efficiency and profitability of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFEHRE

With respect to inventory management, the Group has established an
inventory management system with higher sell-through rate, 22 more
outlet stores were opened and sold seasonal products that were not sold in
other stores. The sold-out rate of core collection and smart casual stores has
increased. The new logistics center became operational, together with its
intelligent logistics system has accelerated the delivery speed of goods to
stores, while improving inventory control and achieving cost reduction.

The Group adhered to the brand philosophy of “Simplicity but not Simple’,
the Group implemented the strategy of “Simplified Design, Excellent
Quality”, providing customers with high quality products with value while
increasing investment in research and development and product upgrades,
in which continuously provided greater value for money for the quality
of products and enhanced the attractiveness of China Lilang’s minimalist
menswear brand. Among which, the water repellency test results of the
hydrophobic down 2.0 launched during the year far exceeded the industry
standard, and has been awarded the double certification from the World
Record Certification Agency (WRCA). The market responded actively and
driving sales of down products to increase by 30% compared with the same
period last year.

In respect of brand management and promotion, as the pandemic
subsided, the Group has vigorously carried out promotional activities during
the year. Among which, the most representative of which was the long-
awaited fashion show "Anping Bridge Show”. In January 2024, the Group
also appointed Xu Kai as the new brand ambassador for FIJES LESS IS MORE.
The Group launched a redesigned logo. Building upon the original logo, the
visual proportions and graphic design have been optimized with the aim
of enhancing brand vitality and fashion sense. The store space incorporates
immersive technology devices to create a fashionable environment that
suits young people nowadays.

Looking ahead to 2024, the business environment is still full of
uncertainties. However, the central government has actively promoted
economic development and announced 2024 as the “Year of Consumption
Promotion”, which will further enhance the consumer confidence. In order
to conform to the trend of the emergence of a new middle class, the Group
will continued to differentiate itself from other menswear brands through
investment in product research and development, and upgrade its “Lilang
Minimalist Men's Fashion” brand strategy. Together with a more consumer-
oriented sales channel, the Group will cater and lead the demand of the
consumers. In the future, the Group has planned to move towards “Multi-
Brands” and “Internationalization” by exploring other domestic market
segments and markets in different countries while leveraging synergies
between existing products and markets to further foster the sales
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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The Group planned to have a net increase of 100 to 200 stores to expand
the retail scale and enhance operational efficiency. New stores locations
will continue to be targeted at the prime locations at premium shopping
malls in provincial capitals and prefecture-level cities. It will also increase
opening stores in outlets as a channel for inventory clearance. The Group
also planned to provide personalized shopping experiences for customers
through new retail businesses such as live streaming on TikTok and
complement the advantages of online stores and physical stores, while
aiming to achieve 20% or more growth in new retail business in 2024 with a
15% growth rate in overall sales.

Furthermore, the Group will complete the seventh-generation renovation
work of 400 stores to enhance the brand image and shopping environment
through youthful and trendy decoration, as well as to introduce innovative
and differentiated new products to meet consumers’ demand for
personalized apparel. With the significant improvement in inventory
management capability, the Group intensified the launch of new products to
increase the proportion of higher-priced new items, and thereby enhanced
the average selling price and the overall profitability of the products.

In order to reach and satisfy a broader range of consumer needs and
continually enhance the Group’s brand capability, the Group will actively
promote a "Multi-Brands and Internationalization” strategy, seeking to
collaborate with international brands in domestic market to enrich its
product mix. At the same time, it will promote the Lilang brands to the
international market in order to enrich the product design projects and
meet more market opportunities..

In the long run, China Lilang will remain committed to the mission of
bringing stylish and high quality with value menswear to its customers;
enhancing the competitiveness of our brands with unique product designs
and marketing promotions; and further consolidating the Group’s leading
position in the menswear industry, thereby enabling sustainable and long-
term growth of the business for our supportive shareholders, colleagues
and customers.

WANG DONG XING
Chairman

18 March 2024
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Management Discussion

and Analysis
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

T

The year 2023 marked the first year of China’s recovery after three years
of epidemic impact. Despite the complex and severe international
environment, as well as the pressures of shrinking domestic demand
and weakening expectations, the central government intensified
macroeconomic regulation and focused on expanding domestic demand
and boosting consumer confidence, resulting in an improvement in the
overall economy. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China,
the annual gross domestic product (GDP) was RMB126 trillion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 5.2%. Total retail sales of consumer goods
increased by 7.2% year-on-year. Retail sales of apparel, footwear, headwear
and knitwear and online retail sales of physical goods grew significantly,
with a year-on-year increase of 12.9% and 8.4%, respectively, indicating
that the apparel market is recovering at a faster pace while online sales
are becoming more popular as consumers have gotten used to online

shopping.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEBENWERD W )

During the year, China Lilang took advantage of the gradual resumption of
social activities to promote and upgrade its “Lilang Minimalist Men'’s Fashion”
strategy. Collections of “Core Collection” and “Smart Casual Collection” are
operated under the brands of “Fl| 88 LILANZ" and “#I|8F LESS IS MORE". The
redesigned logo and new store image present a more fashionable and
youthful brand style. This, coupled with diversified promotional campaigns,
has enabled the Group to respond to the personalized requirements of
consumer groups in the new era and lead the fashion apparel trend in
menswear in China.

The Group continued to promote its new retail business by vigorously
developing interactive and entertaining live-streaming sales models to
enhance consumer’s online shopping experience and stimulate their
desire to buy. By leveraging the complementary advantages of direct-to-
retail online stores and WeChat Mall, the e-commerce business achieved a
growth rate of 17.6% for the year, outperforming the overall growth rate.

During the year, the Group also pragmatically optimized its retail network
by closing certain underperforming stores. However, the Group's pace
of store opening was slowed down by the limited supply of well-located
stores in high-end shopping malls, and the Group fell short of its target of a
net increase of 100 stores in the total number of stores during the year. As
of the end of 2023, the Group had a total of 2,695 stores, including a total of
302 smart casual collection stores operated under the direct-to-retail model
and distributor model, and a total of 2,393 core collection stores mainly
operated under the direct-to-retail model, the consignment and distributor
models, representing a net year-on-year net increase of 51 stores.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's annual revenue
increased by 14.8% year-on-year to RMB3,543.8 million. Net profit was
RMB530.4 million, and earnings per share were RMB44.30 cents, each
representing an increase of 18.4% year-on-year.

During the year, the Group maintained a healthy financial position with
sufficient cash flow. The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK13 cents per share and a special final dividend of HK5
cents per share, thereby maintaining a stable payout ratio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The Group’s annual revenue increased by 14.8% to RMB3,543.8 million in
2023. The increase in sales was mainly due to the resumption of normal
operations together with the resumption of social activities. For smart
casual collection, attributable to more newly opened stores and higher
proportion of sales of premier products, sales per store and average unit
price boosted and resulted in a significant year-on-year increase of 35.2% in
revenue of the smart casual collection. For core collection, the distributors
had to digest the inventory from 2022, which suppressed the order growth
in 2023. However, the Group did not offer any rebates to distributors
during the year (2022: RMB83.7 million). The turnover of the core collection
increased by 10.7%.

By product category, sales of tops increased by 14.3% year-on-year,
accounting for 64.7% (2022: 63.2%) of total revenue, with the down jacket
product category showing the most significant growth of 30.5%. Pants
accounted for 20.9% (2022: 20.7%) of total revenue, with a 12.3% increase
in sales. Sales of accessories decreased by 14.6% and accounted for 7.4% of
total revenue, of which sales of footwear products fell by 18.1%.
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Revenue by collection

RATIE DA
2023 2022
—E=-= B S—
RMB million % of revenue RMB million % of revenue Increase
Collections 5 AREEE A % N =N 0
Core collection TE7 2,841.1 80.2% 25664 83.2% 10.7%
Smart casual collection Ly 702.7 19.8% 5198 16.8% 35.2%
Total st 3,543.8 100.0% 3,086.2 100.0% 14.8%
REVENUE BY REGION REEE D WA

North-Western China and Northern China benefited from the increase in
the number of stores, with sales increasing by 22.5% and 29.4%, respectively.
In Eastern China, sales increased by 14.7% for the year due to the increase
in the number of stores and the growth of e-commerce sales included in
its scope of business. Sales growth in Central and Southern China remained
stable with a growth rate of 12.4%. During the year, there were fewer stores
in North-Eastern China and South-Western China which resulted in lower
sales growth.
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REVENUE BY REGION FORTHE YEAR IS SET OUT BELOW:

TREEHEDFRHEA :

RMB'mn AR BHETT
FY2022 - FY2023
1,522.6 I
1,327.0
799.0
711.0
472.2 510.4
290.5 3560 2734
: a3 23
R -
I
Eastern China® Central and South-Western North-Western Northern China’ North-Eastern
S Southern China* China® China® ESTA China?
R Pifl=R [ricpid k2
Regional Revenue
B A
2023 2022
—E_= T F

RMB million % of revenue RMB million % of revenue Increase

The Group = ARBEE LN ARBEE T % b2yl
Northern China' =i 2734 7.7% 2113 6.8% 29.4%
North-Eastern China? ESi 82.4 2.3% 74.2 24% 11.0%
Eastern China® S 1,522.6 43.0% 1,327.0 43.0% 14.7%
Central and Southern China* #Eg* 799.0 22.5% 7110 23.0% 124%
South-Western China® iR 510.4 14.4% 4722 15.3% 8.1%
North-Western China® mibe 356.0 10.1% 290.5 9.5% 22.5%
Total st 3,543.8 100.0% 3,086.2 100.0% 14.8%
(M Northern China includes Beijing, Hebei, Shanxi, Tianjin and Inner Mongolia. m FELEFELE S P REMAE

& o
) North-Eastern China includes Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning. Q) HALEIEREET « EAL . EE o

(3) Eastern China includes Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shanghai, Anhui, Fujian, Shandong and 3)

ERBEIH I LE 28 &/

Jiangxi. & EATA -
4) Central and Southern China includes Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangdong, Guangxi @) REEIEAE L - HE - BE - ER
and Hainan. RS o
(5) South-Western China includes Chongging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan and Tibet. (5) HEAEEE W - 5M EEME
E
6) North-Western China includes Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia and Xinjiang. ®) LB IERA - HfE 58 ZEMH
o
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COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Cost of sales increased by 10.3% year-on-year to RMB1,837.0 million. The
gross profit margin was 48.2%, representing an increase of 2.2 percentage
points year-on-year. The increase was primarily due to the significant
increase in sales of the smart casual collection with a higher gross profit
during the year, leading to a higher proportion of sales of the smart casual
collection to total sales. In addition, benefiting from the improvement in
inventory management capabilities, the reversal of inventory provision in
2023 was RMB26.66 million higher than that in 2022, and no sales rebates
were offered to distributors during the year.

OTHER NET INCOME

Other net income amounted to RMB51.1 million (2022: RMB71.5 million),
which included grants from Chinese local governments of RMB47.5 million
(2022: RMB57.9 million). These local government grants are awarded
unconditionally and at the discretion of the relevant authorities.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Due to the introduction of a new brand logo and the Group's increased
promotion of the minimalist menswear image during the year, coupled
with the postponement of the store renovation program originally
scheduled for 2022 to 2023 due to the impact of the epidemic, selling and
distribution expenses increased by RMB165.6 million to RMB957.3 million
during the year. These expenses accounted for 27.0% of total revenue, up
by 1.3 percentage points from last year.

Advertising expenses and renovation subsidies and expenses increased by
RMB119.7 million to RMB521.4 million during the year, accounting for 14.7%
(2022: 13.0) of total revenue. As the number of smart casual collection
stores increased, the expenses of direct-to-retail stores also increased by
RMB18.7 million to RMB251.4 million, accounting for 7.1% (2022: 7.5%) of
total revenue. Renovation subsidies and expenses increased by RMB19.6
million to RMB258.7 million during the year, accounting for 7.3% (2022: 7.7%)
of total revenue.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses amounted to RMB177.1 million, a decrease
of RMB1.7 million compared with the same period last year, and the
proportion of revenue decreased to 5.0% (2022: 5.8%).

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses amounted to RMB12.8 million (2022: RMB2.1
million), mainly due to the increase in charitable donations.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations increased by 17.6% to RMB610.6 million. This was
mainly due to the increase in gross profit. The operating profit margin
increased by 0.4 percentage point to 17.2%.

REFBERLE T _=FFRK

A F A E B 3T AR ER - Wnaa
EEHNBENER  NERER-_Z=—
FHETHFEREFEIZEBLERLE
ZE=F - WERNEE R HERZEM
AR 1656 BB TEARKESIIHET ©
B RRBITA270%  BREFEMNI3EF

D e

FRN - BERS REEMATREZIE A
REno7aETEARES 2148 87T
IR A147% ( —F = —4F 1 13.0%) ° 8
PPN BEEEAIMEMNISTE
BITEARKE 2514 BEIT  (GEIWAT71%
(ZEZZF 1 75%) o BB AR 18
MARK v cBEEBTEARKLSTES
TC G A T73% (ZBZZF : 7.7%) °

THRFEX

THHEIZARE1771 BET KEFRE
BOAREI17EETL  (FRALLLRLE
50%(=ZFE = —4F :58%) o

Hi&&&m

HieET AR 28sA&E T (ZE -2
F1EBT) TEHRRESEIEM
P& »

AEE RS

EEREIE N 760 ARE6106E BT ©
FTERREFEGIAE - LLFBER FF
04BDEE172%

17



18

China Lilang Limited 2023 Annual Report

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEBENWERD W )

NET FINANCE INCOME

Net finance income was RMB47.2 million, an increase of RMB19.4 million
over the previous year, mainly due to the increase in interest income as a
result of the increase in fixed deposits. However, an exchange loss of RMB2.7
million was recorded due to the depreciation of RMB during the year (2022:
RMB6.5 million).

INCOME TAX

The effective income tax rate for the year was 19.4%, representing an
increase of 1.3 percentage points compared with last year, mainly due
to the decrease in inventories and right-of-use assets provisions during
the year and the decrease in deferred tax credits. During the year, one of
the Group's Chinese subsidiaries qualified as a high-tech enterprise, and
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 15%. The other two subsidiaries registered
in Tibet also enjoyed the local preferential tax rate of 15%.

NET PROFIT

Net profit was RMB530.4 million, an increase of 18.4%. The net profit margin
increased by 0.5 percentage points to 15.0%.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share were RMB44.30 cents, representing an increase of 18.4%.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to pay a final dividend of HK13 cents (2022: HK9
cents) per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK5 cents (2022:
HK5 cents) per ordinary share in respect of this financial year, making a
total dividend payment of approximately HK$215.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB196.7 million). The final dividend and the special final
dividend will be paid in cash on or around 22 May 2024 to shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s register of members on 7 May
2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
SALES CHANNEL MANAGEMENT

The Group has been actively reforming its sales channels. After three years
of effort, the Group has established four main sales channels that were all
profitable during the year: the distribution and consignment models of
the core collection, the direct-to-retail stores of the smart casual collection
and the direct-to-retail stores under the e-commerce sales model. This has
allowed the Group to more closely match its products and services with
the purchasing patterns of Chinese menswear consumers and drive sales
growth. During the year, each of the sales channel has recorded profit and
sales per store increased significantly, further reflecting the effectiveness of
the sales channel reform.

The core collection currently has a total of 2,393 stores, of which 39% (936
stores) operate under the consignment model. The Group continues to
consolidate and develop its nationwide sales network through long-term
cooperation with distributors to provide services to domestic consumers.
The Group also continues to pragmatically support distributors in
optimizing the retail network, while insisting on opening stores in premier
shopping malls with prime business locations, and attracting customers
and boosting sales with renovations that showcase brand characteristics.

During the year, the smart casual collection continued to expand its store
network, optimize store locations and improve the utilization of store space.
The refurbishment of stores in Jiangsu, Qingdao and Wuhan has been
completed, resulting in a significant improvement in the sales efficiency of
the stores.

As at the end of December 2023, the Group had a total of 2,695 retail stores
nationwide, a net increase of 51 stores during the year. This included a net
increase of 8 core collection stores and 43 smart casual collection stores.
The new stores are mainly concentrated in Eastern China and North-
Western China. As at the end of December 2023, the total retail store floor
area was approximately 429,543 square meters (31 December 2022: 403,703
square meters), representing an increase of 6.4% compared with the end of
the previous year.
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As at the end of December 2023, there were 879 stores (31 December 2022:
835) in shopping malls, accounting for approximately 32.6% of the total
store count and approximately 35.1% of total retail floor area. In addition,
there were 77 outlet stores (31 December 2022: 55).

RZZE-_ZF+_AK BYRBES
8IOR(ZEZZ_F+=-A=+—H :835
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Changes in the number of stores by region are as follows: EREHNHELBOT
Number of Stores
EHEE
As at As at
1 January 2023 Opened during Closed during 31 December 2023
R=BZ=F the year the year R=BZZ=F
Region & —A—H FABE FREE +T=-A=+—H
Northern China E3l 252 41 26 267
North-Eastern China &k 151 14 33 132
Eastern China HER 744 102 72 774
Central and Southern China  #7 715 72 66 721
South-Western China 7ar 502 32 43 491
North-Western China [ich!d 280 48 18 310
2,644 309 258 2,695

As at 31 December 2023, 296 and 1 of the 2,695 stores were direct-to-retail
smart casual collection and core collection stores, respectively while the
remaining stores were mainly operated by distributors, sub-distributors or
consignees. During the period, the number of distributors remained at 65,
while the number of sub-distributors increased from 735 to 7609.
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The breakdown of the number of store is as follows:

31 December 2023
—E-_=F+-A=+—H

JEERERE DT

31 December 2022
2o -F#+=-RA=+—H

Smart Smart
Core Casual Core Casual
Collection Collection Collection Collection Total
FRY BEBR FRY| EEBRT wmEt
By operations PSP
Direct-to-retail stores B2E 1 296 297 1 251 252
Consignment REH/E 936 0 936 938 0 938
Distribution DG 1,456 6 1,462 1,446 8 1454
Total number of stores 425 1 2,393 302 2,695 2,385 259 2,644
By type of stores LAESER
Street stores HiBsE 1,429 15 1,444 1,433 21 1,454
Stores in shopping malls B&%175 %5 15 &
and outlet stores RAFHATIE 703 253 956 671 219 890
Shop-in-shops in BEEFRE
department stores 261 34 295 281 19 300
Total number of stores 42 )5 & 2,393 302 2,695 2,385 259 2644

In terms of inventory management, the Group strengthened its inventory
management capabilities, opened 22 more outlet stores and sold seasonal
products not yet sold in other stores. The sell-through rate of core
collection and smart casual collection stores continued to increase. The
new logistics center became operational. Its intelligent logistics system
contributed to the implementation of the Group’s nationwide logistics
network and accelerated the delivery speed of goods to stores, while
improving inventory control and achieving cost reduction and efficiency
improvement. As at the end of December 2023, a provision of RMB66.5
million has been made in accordance with the Group's inventory provision

policy.
NEW RETAIL DEVELOPMENT

During the year, new retail remained one of the Group’s top priorities for
business development. The Group vigorously expanded its e-commerce
live streaming business to cater to the shopping preferences of male
consumers who tend to consume fashion and entertainment at the same
time. Platforms such as TikTok were utilized to provide consumers with
detailed product information through lively and vibrant commentary,
thereby driving growth in the online business.
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The Group launched the hot pants products on its e-commerce platform
during the 618 E-commerce Shopping Festival, demonstrating its ability
to replenish orders quickly with the rapid response of its production plant
and seven newly-added production lines. On the eve of the Double 11
Shopping Festival, the Group held the "Anping Bridge Show” at Anping
Bridge, a World Heritage Site in Jinjiang, Fujian. The event showcased the
minimalist fashion style of China’s Lilang’s menswear through the highlights
of an outdoor fashion show broadcast on TikTok and laid a good foundation
for the sales during the Double 11 Shopping Festival.

In addition, the Group has completed the transformation of its e-commerce
platform into a self-operated model, allowing it to deploy its online
business more flexibly. The Group has increased the number of new
products available for e-commerce sales to enhance the attractiveness of
e-commerce and improve the shopping experience for consumers. The
Group continues to utilize the WeChat platform to open stores and provide
customer relationship management on WeChat Mall, taking advantage
of the interactive features of the social platform and leveraging the
complementary advantages of online and offline services, thus promoting
the growth of stores efficiency.

By investing in intelligent workshops and a smart warehouse and logistics
distribution system, the Group has improved its ability to replenish orders
quickly, resulting in a 17.6% year-on-year growth in new retail sales during
the year.

PRODUCT DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT

Adhering to the brand philosophy of “Simplicity but not Simple’, the
Group implemented the strategy of “Simplified Design, Excellent Quality”,
providing customers with high quality products with value while increasing
investment in research and development and product upgrades, in
order to enhance the value for money of the quality of its products and
increase the attractiveness of China Lilang’s minimalist menswear brands.
During the year, the proportion of products with original designs for sale
was approximately 75%, and the proportion of these products utilizing
proprietary fabrics developed by the Group was around 50%.
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After the successful launch of the Hydrophobic Downs 1.0, China Lilang
launched the newly upgraded Hydrophobic Down 2.0 during the year.
The water repellency test of the down reached level 5 water repellency for
over 10,000 minutes, which is more than 20 times the industry standard.
The down also retains its original fluffiness even after machine washing
and dries quickly, and has been awarded the double certification from
the World Record Certification Agency (WRCA) as the “down with the
best hydrophobic performance” and “the world's outstanding down with
ultra warm technology”. The launch of the hydrophobic down attracted
considerable attention from consumers, resulting in a 30.5% increase in the
Group’s total down sales compared with last year.

The wash-resistant polo shirt collection launched in the summer also uses
the fabric independently developed by China Lilang. By replacing the
traditional sewing process with the 180T high-temperature seamless
heating-pressing technology, combining high-strength yarn with a stable
shrinkage rate, coupled with a special high-fastness dyeing process, even
if repeatedly worn, washed and ironed, the shirt is still as smooth, bright
and colorful as new, effectively solving consumer’s cleaning and care
problems. The collection is also more efficient in heat insulation and sun
protection, comfortable to wear and cool to the touch, and the modeling
style highlights the aesthetic standard of simplicity, good taste, and fashion,
winning the favor of a wide range of consumer groups.

There are a total of approximately 343 staff members in the Group's research
and development department, who are meticulously engaged in all areas
of product design, material development and sample creation, so as to
enhance the overall competitiveness of the Group’s products.

BRAND MANAGEMENT AND PROMOTION

The Group sells its menswear products through its core collection and
smart casual collection, which continue to provide consumers with high-
quality minimalist menswear and a fashionable dressing experience. The
core collection mainly targets consumers aged 25 to 45 in third- and
fourth-tier markets and is being further expanded into first- and second-
tier markets. The smart casual collection focuses on urban youths aged
20 to 30 in first- and second-tier markets by adhering to the concept of
“LESS IS MORE’, with lighter and more casual designs that exude a sense of
youthfulness.
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During the year, the Group launched a redesigned logo, optimizing and
balancing the visual proportions and graphic design based on the original
logo, reflecting the aesthetic ideals and business philosophy of China Lilang
- "Simplicity but not Simple’, and adding vitality and style to the brand. The
store space features immersive installations that channel a strong sense of
technology, creating an open, dynamic and cutting-edge atmosphere that
reflects the fashionable style advocated by today’s urban youth.

The Group continues to explore new and diversified marketing methods
to attract more young urban consumers. During the year, China Lilang
became the partner of Mango TV's large-scale variety show “Call Me By Fire
Season 3" (I HFIETHR 3)); through the elements of music and storytelling,
it shows the persevering and unremitting masculinity of 30 guests, with
Chen Chusheng and Zhang Yuan serving as the ambassadors of Lilang’s
minimalist menswear, interpreting the belief that challenging oneself and
exploring more possibilities at all costs, to cultivate trending topics and
clarify the brand’s positioning, further reinforcing the brand's awareness.

China Lilang also collaborated with National Geographic China to launch
the “Most Beautiful Highways and Apex Landscapes in China” study tour
program, in which researchers wore Lilang's hydrophobic downs to explore
China’s rich natural landscapes in places such as the Yalong Glacier in Xizang
and the Potatso National Park in Shangri-La, allowing viewers to witness
the excellent performance of Lilang’s hydrophobic downs in extreme
environments.

The annual Lilang "Anping Bridge Show’, held in late October, was the
culmination of China Lilang’s brand promotion activities, for which a group
of rappers donned simple and elegant apparel with outdoor functions,
and made a grand finale on China’s longest existing ancient stone beam
cross-sea bridge, in order to echo the timelessness of the Southern Song
Dynasty’s minimalist style with fashion that channels modern simplicity,
combining heritage with innovation, leveraging the power of the brand to
further promote the development and dissemination of urban culture, and
highlighting the Group's insistence on minimalist design.

AWARDS

During the year, the Hydrophobic Down 2.0 launched by the Group was
certified by the World Record Certification Authority (WRCA) as “the world's
outstanding down with ultra warm technology” and “the down with the
best hydrophobic performance’, and its wash-resistant shirts were certified
by the WRCA as the “shirt with the least color deviation after 30 washes".
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The Group's outstanding craftsmanship was awarded the “Secondary Award
for Scientific and Technological Advancement” at the 2023 Science and
Technology Awarding Ceremony of the China National Textile and Apparel
Council.

The Group also received various accolades for its brand enhancement
efforts, including the “Brand Enhancement Discovery Award of the Year” at
the 2023 T-EDGE Global Innovation Conference, the “Pioneering Minimalist
Menswear Brand” at the 2023 Brand Power (Kunming) International Summit
Forum (2023 4a k& 58 B ( B2 B ) B BX 5 £3%18) and the “Star-and-Fans
Brand Award” at the Weibo Excellent Garment Brand Value Enhancement

Forum.

The Group’s "Anping Bridge Show"” held during the year was awarded the
annual “Best Video Account Marketing Award”in the Tencent Social Media
category, further demonstrating its excellence in brand marketing.

CHARITY

The Group has always fulfilled its social responsibility and proactively
participated in various social welfare activities, as well as paying attention to
the needs of society at all levels, and devoting resources and efforts to help
those in need while enhancing its corporate image.

During the year, the Group was committed to the preservation and
development of arts and culture. It made a donation to the “Jinjiang Cultural
Relics Preservation Fund (BT X WIREES)" through “Lilang Charity
Fund” (MR8 Z& &= &) to promote the culture of Jinjiang's ancient
bridges and attract more professionals to engage in the restoration and
sustainability of local relics.

The Group also continued to optimize its aesthetic education plan to
enhance the cultural literacy of Mainlanders in various aspects. During the
year, the Group curated the "Art Life 3 - Walk through China" program, which
brings the beauty of fashion design and artistic creativity to rural areas,
while cultivating a sense of cultural identity and well-being among children
from less-developed regions through discussions, games and experiences.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the international environment remains complicated. While
there are issues such as overcapacity in certain industries in China and low
social expectations, the central government is vigorously stimulating the
economy and has designated 2024 as “The Year of Consumption Promotion’,
thereby creating a positive retail atmosphere. In order to conform to the
trend of the emergence of a new middle class, the Group will continue
to differentiate itself from other menswear brands through investment in
product research and development, and promote the strategic upgrading
of the “Lilang Minimalist Men's Fashion” branding. Together with more
consumer-oriented sales channels and the demonstration of effectiveness,
the Group will expand the store network, accelerate the development of
new retail to cater and lead the demand of the consumers. The next step is
to move towards the goals of multi-brands and internationalization as well
as to lead the menswear trend and strive to enhance sales performance.

This year, the Group will focus on leveraging the advantages of sales
channel reform, and plans to achieve a net increase of 100 to 200 stores to
expand its retail scale. The Group will continue to open new stores in prime
locations at premium shopping malls in provincial capitals and prefecture-
level cities to achieve better store performance. It will also continue to
expand the scale of opening stores in outlets as a channel for regular
inventory clearance to increase product sell-through rates.

The Group will also step up efforts to develop new retail businesses,
especially through methods such as e-commerce live streaming on
TikTok, to provide personalized shopping experiences, establish a closer
connection with consumers, complement the advantages of online stores
and physical stores, and optimize its channels to further drive sales growth,
aiming to achieve 20% or more growth in new retail business in 2024 with a
15% growth rate in overall sales.

To enhance its brand image, the Group plans to complete the seventh
generation renovation project for 400 stores by 2024. Through a simple,
refined, youthful and fashionable decoration style, consumers visiting the
stores are able to experience China Lilang's brand concept of “Simplicity but
not Simple” more intuitively, while the spatial layout is being enhanced to
create a more comfortable shopping experience for consumers.
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In terms of product positioning, the Group will continue its strategy of
providing high product quality with attractive price and will continuously
introduce innovative and differentiated new products to meet consumers’
desire for personalized clothing. With the improvement of inventory
management ability and further reduction of off-season inventory, the
Group will intensify the launch of new products to increase the proportion
of higher-priced new items, thereby improving the average selling price
and the overall profitability of the products.

In order to reach and satisfy more customer needs, and to improve
competitiveness of the Group's brands, the Group has implemented a
“multi-brand and internationalization” development strategy and is actively
seeking to collaborate with international brands in domestic market with
the aim of providing consumers with diversified choices catering to their
different needs in clothing.

As one of the leading menswear brands in China, China Lilang has
established a solid sales network in the Mainland after more than 30
years of development. With the growing interconnectivity of the global
market, the Group is planning to push its brands into the international
arena and expanding overseas markets. The Group believes that the
internationalization of its brand will not only bring about a new style for
the Group and enrich the product design, but also broaden its sources of
revenue and welcome more market opportunities.

In the long run, the Group intends to further consolidate China Lilang’s
leading position in the menswear industry and realize sustainable long-
term growth, which in turn will enable it to reward its shareholders, staff
members and customers for their support.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH FLOWS

REBESRMEER
RERRITAERRRERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2023 2022

—E-=HF - F

RMB million RMB million

AREEER AREEET

Pledged bank deposits BIRITER 971.6 2812
Fixed deposits held at banks HRITE BITF R 1,090.5 650.0
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEY 1,077.2 960.1
Total cash and bank balance e MIRTTAE AR 3,139.3 1,891.3

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had time deposits totalling RMB2,022.4
million (31 December 2022: RMB850.0 million). The Group's total cash and
bank balance was mainly denominated in Renminbi (99.3%).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank loans maturing within one
year totalling RMB289.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB249.5 million)
and bank loans maturing over one year totalling RMB853.3 million (31
December 2022: RMB187.0 million). The bank loans carried interest at fixed
and variable rates.
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Cash and cash equivalents balance increased by RMB117.1 million. Major
cash flow movements during the year were as follows:

— Net cash generated from operating activities amounting to
RMB1,100.7 million.

The major reconciling items between the net amount of operating
cash inflow and the profit before taxation for the year of RMB657.8
million were the increase in trade and other payables, which
reflected the increase in usage in trade bills which will be settled in
later stage. Besides, depreciation amounted to RMB220.5 million.

— Net cash used in investing activities amounting to RMB1,212.0
million, comprising mainly capital expenditure totalling RMB131.7
million, placement of deposits totalling RMB1,099.0 million less
interest income of RMB20.5 million.

— Net cash inflows from financing activities amounting to RMB228.0
million, comprising mainly the payments of final dividends in
respect of 2022 and the interim dividends for the year totalling
RMB348.5 million, the capital and interest elements of lease rentals
paid totalling RMB104.1 million, less net borrowing of bank loans of
RMB687.5 million.

TRADE WORKING CAPITAL TURNOVER DAYS
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2023 2022

—E-= —E- 4

Average inventory turnover days FEFEREXE 170 195
Average trade receivables turnover days PN E 5 R SR E KB 42 54
Average trade payables turnover days YRR 5 R SR B R B 130 111

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

The Group's average inventory turnover days was 170 days for the year,
a decrease of 25 days as compared to last year. The decrease of average
inventory turnover days is mainly due to more efficient inventory
management which resulted in higher sell-through rate of inventory.

Total inventory balance decreased by RMB59.4 million to RMB825.7 million.
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As at 31 December 2023, total provision of RMB66.5 million was made in
accordance with the Group's inventory provision policy.

TRADE RECEIVABLES TURNOVER DAYS

The Group'’s average trade receivables turnover days was 42 days for
the year. Turnover days reduced as a result of more long outstanding
receivables were collected and increase in sales proportion of the smart
casual collection which are mainly retail sales during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, a loss allowance provision of RMB29.2 million was
made in accordance with the Group's trade receivables provision policy.

TRADE PAYABLES TURNOVER DAYS

The Group’s average trade and bills payables turnover days was 130 days
for the year. There was no material change in the payment terms with
suppliers. The increase in trade payables turnover days is mainly because of
the increase in usage of trade bills which will be settled in later stage.

Trade and bills payables balance increased by RMB150.1 million during the
year to RMB729.9 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopts a dividend policy of providing shareholders with regular
dividends with a normal target payout ratio of about 45% to 55% of the
Group’s profit for the year. The Board may also recommend the payment of
additional special dividends depending on the following conditions: (i) the
overall profitability of the Group; (i) the cash flows of the Group; and (iii) the
capital requirement for expansions.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS BEEERH

As at 31 December 2023, deposits with certain banks totalling RMB9716 ~ MZZE_=F+_-_A=+—H  @BAR
million (2022: RMB281.2 million) were pledged as securities for bills payable BoreAET(ZT__F : AR% 2812
and bank loans. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the ~ B &) & TRITFREEKF - ERE
settlement of relevant bills payable and bank loans. 1‘@5# RIBITERHER - EEPRTIF

FAERE BN R RIRTTE R E

Mﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ*

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES BXREERBIAERE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total capital commitments of RZZTEZ=F+ZA=+—H SEMNE
RMB30.8 million, primarily related to improvement project of automated $7¥<3§?@ HRAARK SEE L TEH

plant and production facilities. BB A ERESGETEE B -

These capital commitments are expected to be financed by internal ~ ZEFERNEAEEHUEEN AT E IR

resources of the Group. f e

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities. RZE-=F+_A=+—H £HEITE
BAFRALE o
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the year, the Company conducted an exercise based on the ERM
Framework, as set out in the paragraph headed “Risk Management and
Internal Controls”in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 93 to 94 of
this Annual Report, to review, assess and control the identified risks faced
by the Group. The Group's key risk exposures are summarized as follows:

Strategic Risks (i)
(ii)
Operational Risks (i)
(ii)
(iii)
Financial Risks 0)
(ii)
Hazard Risks (i)

Slow-down of the economy and consumer
spending

Deterioration of market competition

Ineffective management of the retail operations
of distributors

Misjudgement of fashion trends or changes in
consumers'demand or failure to respond to such
changes in a timely manner

Ineffective brand promotion activities or failure to
maintain and promote the brand, particularly in
the first-and second-tier cities where the Group
targets to expand

Distributors'and consignees’ credit risks

Inventory risks

Business susceptible to extreme or unseasonable
weather conditions

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability and
incorporating it in daily operations. Details of the Group's environmental
policies and performance are summarized in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 34 to 78 of the Annual Report.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group continues to control financial risks in a prudent manner. The
functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong Dollars and the
Company’s financial statements are translated into Renminbi for reporting
and consolidation purposes. Foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of financial statements are directly recognized in equity as a
separate reserve. As the Group conducts business transactions principally
in Renminbi, the exchange rate risk at the Group's operational level is not
significant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 4,032 staff. Total staff costs for
the year amounted to approximately RMB393.3 million (2022: RMB347.4
million). Details of the Group’s policies on human resources are summarised
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 52 to 60 of
the Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 25
April 2024 to Tuesday, 30 April 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2024
annual general meeting (2024 AGM"). In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2024 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 April 2024.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final dividend and the
special final dividend by the shareholders at the 2024 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8 May 2024 to
Friday, 10 May 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
shareholders who qualify for the proposed final dividend and special final
dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and special
final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificate
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712- 1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 May 2024.
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BRI - HERERHRE

1

ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is the 2023 Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") report of China Lilang Limited (“Lilang”
or the “Group”) prepared based on the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The reporting period is from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”).
This report is prepared in Chinese, and the English version is
the translation. In case there is any discrepancy between the
Chinese and the English versions, the Chinese version shall
prevail. For the content related to corporate governance,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”in the
2023 Annual Report of the Group.

REPORTING STANDARDS

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide”) in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Adhering
to the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency, this report discloses Lilang’s ESG philosophy,
practice and performance in detail.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report focuses on reporting the environmental and
social policies and performance related to the Group's core
business during the Reporting Period. This report covers
the Group’s headquarters in Jinjiang City, Fujian Province,
including canteens, staff dormitories, flagship stores, a
workshop for samples and small production orders, fabric
research and development and testing centres, office
premises and the Wuli Plant, as well as the logistics centre.
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INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

We value your suggestions or comments for further
improvements. If you have any comments on this report,
please contact us by:

Address: Suite 3402, Lippo Centre, Tower One, No. 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2526 6968

Email: ir@lilanz.com.hk

2 SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

2.1

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

In order to achieve sustainable development, the Group
steadily promotes ESG governance to ensure effective
assessment and management of ESG-related risks and
opportunities. The Group established a comprehensive and
rigorous ESG governance structure since 2021 to assist the
Board in supervising ESG-related matters and to ensure
that ESG-related issues has been incorporated into our daily
operations and considerations.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the overall direction,
strategies, objectives, performance and report of the
Group's sustainable development. The Group has set up
an ESG working group led by senior management and
designated to work among different departments in order
to ensure the continuous improvement of the Group's
sustainable development efforts. The ESG working group
is headed by the vice chairman of the Board, while the
members of the working group are comprised of various
department heads of the Group involved in ESG governance,
including the manufacturing and production department,
fabric research and development department, supplier
management department, human resources, finance,
property management departments, etc. The ESG working
group will hold regular meetings to review their work, report
the work implementation progress to the Board, take into
consideration of the opinions and suggestions of the Board,
and ensure the full implementation of the Group's strategies
and specific measures in the environmental, social and
governance aspects.
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As global warming has become increasingly severe in recent
years, the Board of the Company is aware of the impact of
greenhouse effect on climate and the potential risks and
opportunities brought by climate change to the Group. As
one of the leading menswear companies in China, the Group
is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility,
incorporating environmental sustainability in daily
operations, and strictly complying with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and other relevant regulations. Over the years, both the
Company’s manufacturing business and operating products
do not severely pollute the environment. As a responsible
enterprise, the Group still continuously and actively invests
more resources and adopts various measures to save
resources, and reduces emissions through environmental
optimisation. In the meantime, the Company attaches great
importance to various rights and interests of employees,
protects employees’ health and safety, focuses on talent
training, and improves product quality, reduces costs, and
enhances product competitiveness and brand reputation
through product innovation, with an aim to become the
leader of the menswear industry in the PRC.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group highly values and respects the opinion of all
stakeholders, and actively safeguards the legitimate interests
of all stakeholders during our operations. To this end, the
Group have identified all substantial stakeholders, established
and continuously improved various communication
mechanisms, proactively achieved the coordination and
balance of the interests of shareholders, employees,
society and other parties through effective communication
with stakeholders, and jointly promoted the sustainable,
healthy and steady development of the Company. We put
maintaining sustainable relationships with our stakeholders
as one of our top priorities. Apart from understanding the
expectations and demands of stakeholders thoroughly, the
Group takes the thoughts and opinions of stakeholders into
consideration, and actively responds with practical actions
to facilitate mutual growth with stakeholders. During the
Year, we continued to engage with substantial stakeholder
groups on a regular basis by the following diversified means
to ensure timely feedback with our stakeholders on issues
concerned.

2.2

BﬂEALii}(’i\ﬂ'm FER
IERE - ARREFE R
EREHRENFE UK
ﬁﬂ%ﬁftj\%;’é@ R EE

B FIE o (ERPEIEL
EﬁEE“t/JE%Z— BB
JE(TJJ:%&QEEE =R

EHRBIRIEN A REER
mk%ﬁ BARBETHREA
REMBE(THE]) CGRBFR
EROREMABEER - BF
R RARIMEEEBMER
B R EIRIE B EANS
ZERBEELE  £E
TR%TiZIF@?QWE%ﬁﬁ
WHIBZIBEBEHOER
WiBIBIRIFEBICR DB o
B FEE - ARERETH
BIEED REETHERE
MLz FTEASEE B
BEREF RSEM®m
BBREKE  REEMSR
FHANMEEEZE  KAT

Bl SSEREITHREEE AL ©

NERETBE

EEEEERABEEEHE
HETNER  REZBRIE
o RMIEREES =R
TG EEZ - Bl &F
FTEHASEEEF AR
B BN RERESEE
BRE  EHREFSARA
EHRSWNER  UWERK
% N E—T— T E#DH%'J
K18 T - KEHEIQ A
BHE BE- BENERE-
BAIAGELF RAE 7 Al
%%f‘é%%f?ﬁlﬁ%éxﬁﬁﬂz
CBRTORAT BRI 2B
75 By BB B RSN ¢ B G F
=EETMEEEE RAA
SEEEEHE  WABRKRT
RGO E - BN
AL HERKE - RNFE -
BMEEBRBAUNTZ TR
NEHEF ER S EER
B UBREF=HEES
IR FA MRS o



REFBERLE T _=FFRK

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRI - HEREREKEE @

Stakeholder category

AR5 &5

Major communication method

FEBESN

Staff
BT

Company intranet

RAE]AEA

Training and staff activities

=D 3= WD)

Labour union

PN
I

Various seminars
FHEEKE

Government and regulatory authorities

Regular reporting

BT E B g E HRME R
Supervision and inspection
EERSE

Investment institutions/shareholders

KERE R

Company’s announcements
AAIRE

Shareholders'meetings

BRAE

Roadshows and reverse roadshows

B N R [R) BR

Strategy conference
RIS

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website

B - B WERA TR

Suppliers/OEM manufacturers

HIER, INMELER

Tenders and biddings
IR

Review and appraisal meeting
ELHNGE

Regular communication
E R A

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website

TH - Wi R R A TE

Customers

5P

Customer survey

EFEARAE

Call centre and hotline

E R OMZALR

Customer visits

BEPFED

Exhibitions
REZ
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Stakeholder category Major communication method
F 225 46 B8 75 28 5 FEBEAFN
Peers Industry forums and exchanges
7% TEWENZRE

On-site visits

B FH2E
Research and investigation

EEE

Media Performance conference
e ESedin—
Media day
BRI A
Special report
HREWE

Local community Community activities

(Chaekadi R A
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Year, we conducted a benchmarking analysis
on material ESG issues with the support of an independent
third organisation, whereby we reviewed the Group's
existing material issues by benchmarking the material issues
of peer companies as well as the concern paid on material
issues across local and international ESG standards in order
to analyse whether adjustment is needed for the material
issues identified in the past. The materiality assessment

covers the following steps:

Issue Identification

3l 5]

We combined the material issues of
local and international peers, the HKEX
Reporting Standards Guide, the MSCI
Industry Relevance Map and the key
concerns of industry issues of the
Sustainable Accounting Standards
Board (SASB) to conduct a review on
material issues in previous years.
BMEa R LB RN EZ T
e HKEX S IREIE S A R EBAR
(MSC) 1T ABRAME B RN Al 5 A S
FHERIZE B E (SASB) fTHZBITE
FENEHEIND - HEFHNE

EMERRETTIRR

Research and Assessment
ARG

By comparing the Group's ESG
practices with other peer companies
and local and international reporting
standards on ESG issues, we evaluated
whether adjustments are needed for
the material issues being identified.
BB EENESCERREMRATT
TR EER A N7 BB R 5 1R AR A ESG
AEETTHLI - SHAEADRRINE
ENBECEHERE -

23

ERMEENG

RNEE  BRMEBLE=H
BENRE THE TEGE
DRBEIZEDN - BREIE
AELENEEHZBAR
Ay N BERESGIZ R B R
MEENEIE  HEBER
EEZUFRBETRE 9
MRTEENNEZ HEE
TR EAE - EEUZE
FHEE SRR ¢

Screening and Confirmation
According to the evaluation results

of benchmarking, we had analysed

11 issues of higher materiality.

After reviewing and confirming the
materiality assessment results, the
management will prepare the action
plans accordingly.
REHRFEER - OTE 11 EE
ZHRENEE - EEMFTEER
MERERMER - WHIERET
FEtaE -
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The materiality of various issues identified from the Group's REE  SEEFEEMTHE
materiality assessment during the Year is as follows: e EREEAERNT
Material issues Overview of issues
Employee benefits Employees' remuneration, welfare, working hours and other
BT#8 benefits, as well as the recruitment and employment process.
BTHB - & - TERESEE  URBRELERNE
2o
Human rights and labour interests Basic human rights protection, such as child and forced labour
AN B B prevention, as well as labour interests such as labour union and

living wages (which are sufficient to meet the basic expenses
necessary for living).

BERNERE - P IFET REHISET - ART AN
EETE (RABNEERBOERF S TEKF) FEE
TiEmm °

Health and safety Securing the occupational safety of employees, providing
T2 appropriate working environment and promoting their physical

and mental health.

REETHRELZE  RHAENTHERE - URIUER

BMERE -
Product and process innovation Developing and adopting innovative materials and product
EmRk TEAIH designs, as well as improving product production technology to

enhance functionality and product sustainability.
PSR AT R ERRET - AN EEm A E R IA
RIThEEIE M E R AR -

Intellectual property rights management Respecting and protecting the intellectual property rights of self
MBEREER and others (such as patents, designs, logos, etc).
B8 FARM AR MBEEN S B RRE (INEFA - &

S fmsEE) o

"R BAST
Product life cycle Environmental considerations of the enterprise over the whole
EE A an B AR product life cycle (from design, raw material acquisition to

production, consumption, handling at the end of life cycle,
recycling and reuse and final disposal), including its carbon
footprint.

EEUREEMRESEH (KR - RYHREELE
£ AR - ORBANARRKEE)NRE
ZR - DEHBREY

Product quality and safety Ensuring the products provided to customers meet the quality
EmEERLE requirements and related product health standards.
BREMGBETHNEDNAEEENR  UREHERER
Supply chain management Evaluating the social and environmental risks along the supply
HAEGEE IR chain and seeking to enhance the social and environmental

performance of the supply chain through cooperation.
A ESE R g MIRIRRER - BREIES IR
B RRIRKRE -
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Material issues Overview of issues

EEUEE E b
Sustainable raw materials purchases Ensuring the traceability, sustainability and quality of purchased
ARE RRHEREE raw materials and products.

ERRBHEM A RERNAPRE - AEEREE -

Maintaining an efficient and sound governance structure

Corporate governance

BEER (including environmental and social issues) as well as integrity
governance.
FREFSXN - RIFED/IPRE (BRBRENLERE) - UKk
BRRER -

Social investment

HERE

Facilitating social development through various means, such

as organising charity activities, carrying out volunteer services,
organising volunteers and making donations.

RBBRES LAY  FREERE ABETUER
FETRAR - O gRE -

3

ENVIRONMENT

The Group moves towards the goal of sustainability by
incorporating environmental protection into daily operations
while strictly complying with the Environmental Protection Law
and the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC and other related
regulations. Always adhering to the green production concept,
the Group applies advanced energy saving technologies in
production. Through the establishment and implementation of
an environmental management system that complies with the
ISO14001, we strengthened the environmental protection measures
in a standardised manner and implemented strict management
to ensure that the emission targets of sewage, air, solid wastes and
noise were met. Currently, the environmental management system
that complies with the ISO14001 has fully covered Lilang Creative
Park, Lilang Industrial Park and all employees. In 2023, our products
were awarded the “Certificate of China Green Product Certification”
issued by the State, ensuring that the products comply with the
relevant provisions of the quality attributes in the GB/T 35611-2017
evaluation indicators and methods, and ensuring that the emission
of hazardous substance and emission of carbon from our products
during the life cycle have no impact on the environment.

W

SENURETRAEERE  BR
BREMNABEENE BREBEST
P EICREREER) (BIRRERE)
ZHEZER SERKREAZE
SEES  BrENEERITER
REETE - ZEMBBELWEE
ISO14001 IR BB R - ZE( i
INSRIRIFBARERS M - WHEABRIKE
B REBEK BR - BEKES
L5 ERBEN o B ATISO14001 IR
EEERAC2ABEEZNNAE
B FIBIHXERMBEEL &
20234 - B ERFEERKE R
FCPEGBERRERS)  RE
BE R A GB/T 35611-2017 FHBIEIZ
MAAFREBMEMNERET - #
REGTEEGAPPNEEME
OB R R ERIBEN 2 -
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3.1

EMISSIONS

The Group has formulated a production-plant management
manual, setting out a series of pollution prevention and
emission reduction measures, such as lawful discharge of
sewage, reduction of air emissions by using clean energy for
the boiler and reduction of non-hazardous wastes generated
during the production process, in order to minimise
emissions at source and reduce the impact of the Group's
operations on the environment. As for gas emissions, air
and greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group’s
operating activities are limited. The Group does not own
logistics fleets, and the transportation of raw materials and
products are all outsourced to third-party transportation
service providers.

In response to national carbon reduction policies, the Group
actively adopts clean energy. A majority of the electricity
consumed by both the Headquarters and the Wuli Plant is
supplied by electricity generated by a hydropower plant.
Hydropower transformed from the kinetic energy of water
does not consume any fossil fuels. It is therefore widely
considered as a kind of renewable energy that does not emit
any greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide (CO,) and
methane (CH,). In the meantime, the Group has invested
RMB5.03 million in 2023 to construct a solar photovoltaic
power generation system on the rooftops of the Wuli Plant.
The system will be connected to the grid in the first quarter
of 2024 and is expected to achieve electricity output of
2.15 GWh/year. The electricity generated by the system
will not only satisfy the Group’s operational and domestic
electricity consumption, but will allow the Group to sell the
remaining portion to the State Grid. After the completion
of the system, it is expected that carbon emissions will be
reduced by 214 tonnes. As for air emissions, natural gas is
used instead of coal for the boiler in the Wuli Plant to boil
water to steam-iron apparels. It has significantly reduced air
emissions. Regular repairs and maintenance work for the
boiler are carried out by the Group to ensure it functions
normally. The natural gas emissions of Lilang Industrial Park
are regularly reviewed every year to ensure compliance with
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations.

3.1
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In respect of waste management, the Group strictly
complies with the Law of Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, Administrative
Measures for Hazardous Waste Transfer Manifests and other
relevant laws and regulations in China, and set out the
detailed management requirements for hazardous wastes
in the environmental policies. Our production does not
involve the processes of weaving, printing and dyeing, and
therefore basically no hazardous wastes will be generated.
For the waste management of fabric testing laboratory,
the Group has formulated internal rules and regulations
such as Technical Service Contract — Hazardous Waste
Management and Disposal and Operation Instruction for
Chemical Waste Liquid Handling and Recycling to ensure
our laboratory's environmental performance complies
with the relevant policy requirements. In the process of
collecting, storing, and disposing of chemical liquid waste,
the Group regards safety protection as the top priority,
and requires the testing specialists of the testing centre to
take safety precaution measures according to the chemical
properties of the concerned liquid waste throughout the
process to avoid chemical corrosion, poisoning and other
safety incidents. Meanwhile, supervisors are put in place
to supervise the safety precaution measures, and halt the
process if any violations are spotted, so as to jointly prevent
the occurrence of safety accidents. A very limited number
of chemicals in the fabric testing laboratory are used for
inspection, where relevant hazardous wastes are collected
and handled by qualified third parties. During the Reporting
Period, the Group discharged a total of 101 litres of chemical
liquid waste, reaching the goal of discharging less than 150
litres in 2023. In terms of new product development, the
Group complies with the internal control standard Q/LLZG
201-2023 of the enterprise standard of Lilang (China) Co,,
Ltd. and GB 18401 National General Safety Technical Code
for Textile Products, and conducts enterprise standard tests
for newly developed fabrics during the year to ensure proper
compliance.
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Non-hazardous wastes which generally come from daily BEEEY-RKEEIA
activities of employees and garden pruning are collected BAEERENET - BYE
in a unitary way by the property management company BEQRS—SHKE - B
on a daily basis. In order to reduce the daily use of paper, BAOBERE  SEIZEER
the Group promotes a paperless office and reduces the AL D - BB AR R
use of paper by using ERP system, OA system and mobile FoOARBAR FHER
phone applications. In addition, the non-hazardous wastes BFRERLERER It
generated during the production process generally come S REEBRBPEENE
from scraps. In this regard, the Wuli Plant has adopted the EEEY-RKBEAR -
following measures to maximise the utilisation rate of fabrics, it AERmERBATHE
thereby controlling costs and reducing scraps generated B 3G INE R e A LB
during the production process: IR - [RIF IORURAE
EREPEENEANE
Yy

1) Strictly adhere to the minimal usage of fabrics and 1) RIEZBEEER
optimise cutting layouts with a computer program, EREmMBE - &

based on respective fabric-waste allowances and At EEENR - B&A%
product designs; 2= 1) T R ) S (K A5 AR

=

2) Reduce fabric wastes by providing training to 2) REFIAREATA
workers to enhance their skills and by introducing Wi ge - WARAERE
templates to improve sewing accuracy; AR T 4R B 2 B

MR EERE
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3) Optimise production equipment to avoid fabric
wastes due to equipment ageing or failure. Several
automatic fabric-cutting machines have been added
in the past few years, replacing manual labour to
improve the accuracy in cutting fabrics, while regular
repairs and maintenance for production machinery
and equipment are carried out; and

4) Scraps are regularly collected by recyclers to be
recycled or converted into other products (such as
gloves).

In respect of sewage discharge management, the operating
activities of the Group generate limited amount of industrial
sewage which is discharged through the municipal sewage
system equipped with filters, ensuring no significant impact
on the surrounding environment.

The Group's performance in sustainable development in
terms of air emissions and waste generation is summarised

3)  BICEEREB &6
ERFRAEZHAD
BRH - BRCATF#
ELASR 71 T BT £ Y
N WE MBS
REEEMRRE
wERRBELIL
B= 1 2& B H # B R
g R

4) 2 AR TR AR K
BERBESEESR
(IFE) -

KRG R E - £
MEREDEESBTES
K IEIBE MBI E
BT S BN  RRTE
BB EREALE -

SEERRLEEMELT
EO A RFEERREMEN

as follows: T
Unit 2023 2022 2021
BAL —E=-= —E-oF T —F
Total air emissions tonnes
of the boiler’ s}
RIEAER" 0.19 0.202 0.232
Non-hazardous wastes?
BEREEY)?
Scraps tonnes
EAR iz 239.31 19644 196.33
Scrap metal tonnes
232 iz 2.02 178 1.28
Cardboards tonnes
Fa 7 21.29 4842 56.78

Total air emissions of the boiler include particles, NOx and SO.. This assumes an
average annual total working hours of the boiler is 2,200 hours. The intensity
(based on the total annual production cost of the Wuli Plant) is negligible.

The Group has reviewed the total air emissions of the boiler of 2021 and 2022 in
order to include data with higher accuracy. The data is then restated accordingly.

Including the non-hazardous wastes generated in the Wuli Plant.

2

MBRERREENY  REtHR_A
fEift » R MIE T & FE 2200/ b5
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3.2

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is well aware of the scarcity of the earth’s
resources. We strictly adhere to the “5S management system”
and require all employees to conserve water and electricity
to cultivate and standardise employees’ awareness of energy
saving and emission reduction. We put up related signs and
posters in the office area and across the plant for promotion
and education, and arrange security guards in the Wuli
Plant to inspect and confirm that the power sources of
all the lights and production equipment are powered off
during lunch hour and after work. In respect of managing
staff dormitories, dormitory administrators conduct daily
inspections and prompts on the water and electricity
consumption in the dormitories. Both the Headquarters and
the Wuli Plant of the Group have switched to LED lighting
since late 2015, improving energy-saving efficiency of light

3.2

BREM
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source and reducing pollution. For the use of resources EALEDERE - RE Kk
during the production process, the Group conducts regular TR B BE R R I[/UZ’J\ 2o &t
repairs and maintenance for the boiler to avoid any potential HeEE@AREPnERER

waste of resources due to equipment ageing or failure and
minimise the use of natural gas for the boiler. In respect of
water usage in production, water used in the boiler in the
Wuli Plant is recycled through reflux line to improve water
efficiency.

SETHERIEETEER
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In respect of products, the Group is committed to reducing
raw material waste and has implemented a couple of
measures to this end. For the precise control of the usage
of fabrics, we effectively enhance the utilisation of fabrics
through production equipment upgrades, commencement
of worker training and adoption of CAD and Berg’s
software to optimise cutting layouts, thereby increasing the
controllability of the usage of fabrics while enhancing the
efficient use of raw materials through customisation based
on the requirements of different orders. As for the usage
of packaging materials, the Group eradicates excessive
packaging for its products and maintains appropriate cost
control, product protection and consumer expectation as
its basic purposes. More environmental-friendly paper bags
are used as shopping bags. Although certain products are
individually packaged in plastic bags, non-woven bags
or paper boxes for the protection against dirt, dust or
damp, we still adhere to the zero-waste principle on this
basis, and engage packaging material suppliers that are in
compliance with the requirements of relevant national laws
and regulations. The Group has formulated a procurement
management plan, under which we engage packaging
material suppliers through tender and determine to establish
long-term partnership with suppliers depending on their
ESG performance.

The consumption of electricity, natural gas, and water in
the Wuli Plant varies, depending on the nature of fabrics
and manufacturing processes of different types of products,
as well as weather and temperature. The Headquarters
comprises office premises, fabric research and development
and testing centres, a workshop for samples and small
production orders, flagship stores, staff dormitories (including
canteens, a coffee shop and a gym). The water, natural
gas and electricity consumption varies depending on the
weather, testing applications of different fabrics and the
frequency of utilisation of different production machinery in
the sample workshop.
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increase in electricity purchased in 2023 is used for the operation throughout the

year.

The Group's performance in sustainable development in

terms of use of resources is summarised as follows:

S B EIRE AT R
BRRORBEBEDT

Unit 2022
Bfs —E_CF
Electricity
g
Wuli Plant Consumption quantity KWh 6,172,505 6,509,388
HEmE RE TRE
Intensity KWh/RMB'000 18.26 15.79
=E TRE/ ARBTT
Headquarters Consumption quantity kwWh 11,725,560 10,831,080
B g FRE
Intensity KWh/RMB'000 6.51 6.41
®E FTERE/ARETT
Logistics centre Consumption quantity kWh 1,614,800* 843,800
i E Mg TR
Intensity KWh/RMB'000 0.90 0.50
=E TRE/ ARETT
Natural gas
RAR
Wuli Plant Consumption quantity m? 327,021 306,155
T EMmE mE SR
Intensity m>*/RMB'000 0.97 0.74
=7E MRS ANREFT
Headquarters Consumption quantity m? 186,429° 213,769
BE mE AV
Intensity m?*/RMB'000 0.10 0.13
"E SFRSARETT
Logistics centre Consumption quantity m? - -
minE Mg SR
Intensity m?*/RMB'000 - -
=E SNHKRSAREFT
‘ The logistics centre has officially commenced operation in September 2022. The ¢ YmE R 20229 9 A IE XA EE © 2023

FRNzBEBBR2FEEMS -

; MREEXBRE  KREEABRARA
ERE—MEREMTE -

s Due to the adjustments in textile printing business, the consumption of natural
gas in Headquarters decreased as compared to the previous reporting period.
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HEFBRELR

—Eo=sER

Unit 2022
=Ly —ECCF
Water
X
Wuli Plant Consumption quantity m? 99,768° 89,179
LE®E AE AV
Intensity m?*/RMB'000 0.30 0.22
"E SFKSARETT
Headquarters Consumption quantity m? 168,155’ 233,596
Pk Mg AV
Intensity m?*/RMB'000 0.09 0.14
=g SHKRSAREFT
Logistics centre Consumption quantity m? 32,1608 41,653
inE RE SR
Intensity m?3/RMB'000 0.02 0.02
=E SHEKRSAREF T
Packaging materials®
aEye
Wuli Plant Consumption quantity tonnes 1,500 1,256
HEmME AE 7]
Intensity Kg/RMB'000 0.83 0.74
A Fr/ ARETT

Due to the addition of automated workshop in the Wuli Plant during the fourth
quarter, the water consumption of the Wuli Plant increased as compared to the
previous reporting period.

The leakage of underground water pipes in the Headquarters during the period
of late January to early February 2022 has resulted in an increase in water
consumption, and the use of water has been resumed to normal for the year,
therefore, the water consumption for the year decreased as compared to the
previous reporting period.

As the water consumption of the logistic centre during the previous reporting
period included construction use, while only domestic use of water is recorded
after the official commencement of operation of the logistic centre, the water
consumption for the year decreased as compared to the previous reporting
period.

Packaging materials include garment packaging bags, paper boxes, shopping
bags and cartons used for the individual packaging of certain products produced
in the Wuli Plant. Packaging materials of individual products purchased from
OEM suppliers are excluded.

The consumption of packaging materials of the Wuli plant increased as
compared to the previous reporting period, primarily due to the growth of
e-commerce business during the year.

BN A EMERENEE Mg E s -
WMAEMERAEKRRE—RERBM L
T o

02F1VATAE2A LAHEBEE A
1 TKERKEBAKELN - AFEE
BIEBER  AUAFERKER L]
HEABFT TR -

BRE—REBEYRERKBIEIRA
Ko ¥ mER202F9 8 ERF R EE
& AKEAEERAK  AMAKER L
—REHBFTTEE o

BERYMBENEREMEENI D ERE
MEEMANRKEER B2 - FRE
MG - TERBOMRBHER R ER
EmeEy -
HEHFEEEDERR L —MWmERML
T E2RRAEEETHBEBER -
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33

ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY PRODUCTS

In order to protect the environment, the Group has always
been adhering to integrate the concept of sustainability
into our products. Since 2015, the Group has started using
biodegradable bamboo fibre as the fabric for some of
its products. Starting from the 2020 spring and summer
collections, the Group has launched a new eco-friendly jeans
collection. The first batch of products under this collection is
made with blended fabrics of cotton yarn and polyester yarn
extracted from recycled plastic bottles, which is an effective
way to dispose and recycle a certain amount of plastics. In
addition, we made respective strides in the development
of materials, including regenerated fibre decorative labels
and others. As a pioneer of fashion industry in the PRC,
we bravely expand our business vision and support the
promotion of sustainable fashion.

Apart from the innovative mind for raw materials, we are also
committed to minimising the energy consumption during
the production process of environmental-friendly products.
To reduce the use of other resources in the production of
jeans, the Group has adopted the latest washing technology
in the washing process of some of its jeans products, which
reduces water consumption by about 20% on average and
also saves labour and energy consumption.

In addition, the Group launches various eco-friendly
products as special edition products for its online shops
since 2021 fall and winter. The materials of the products
will be made with eco-friendly fabrics made of recycled
plastics and/or fast-growing non-edible plants, which
will be sourced from suppliers with sustainable practice
certification. It encourages customers to purchase green
products and engage in green consumption.

33
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CLIMATE CHANGE

In recent years, extreme weather events have become more
frequent due to climate change. Adverse or unusual weather
conditions may lead to changes in product design direction
and timing of sales. For example, in face of global warming
characterised by shortened spring, earlier fall and delayed
winter, corresponding adjustments are required to tackle
such situation. In terms of product design, fabric thickness,
trending styles and such would be affected accordingly. In
terms of sales, seasonal changes may upset the sales of thick
coats and down jackets, thus increasing the inventory risk.

To manage corresponding risks and minimise losses as much
as possible, the Group has implemented various measures
against climate change, including:

1) To reduce the consumption and production of raw
materials processed by spinning, weaving, dyeing
and finishing as well as the carbon emissions
generated by wastewater and solid wastes, choose
and use fibre materials, slurry, dye and auxiliary which
are eco-friendly and adopt clean energy;

2) To choose and apply production craftsmanship
and technologies which are eco-friendly, including
the use of refining and other environmental-
friendly pre-treatment processes, the use of one-
step high-efficient and short steaming process of
desizing, scouring and bleaching, cold pad-batch
and other “less alkali and less oxygen” or “no alkali
and no oxygen” pre-treatment process. To choose
mechanical finishing, low temperature ion treatment
and foam finishing to minimise the consumption
of water, steam and energy in the largest extent,
reduce wastewater discharge and sewage treatment,
reduce the threat of pollution on mankind and the
environment, and reduce carbon emissions.

34
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The Group has adjusted its product mix over the past few years
to reduce the impact of climate change on business. It includes
increasing the proportion of season-neutral products such as
footwears and reducing the proportion of outerwears for cold
weather. In addition, starting from 2020 fall, the Group has adopted
a flexible order management, lowered the order proportion in trade
fairs, and replenished orders quickly based on items with satisfactory
sales in the market, so as to prevent any risks resiliently in advance.

4 SOCIAL

4.1

EMPLOYMENT

The Group practices corporate social responsibility
externally, while at the same time provides a decent working
environment for employees internally to reflect its care for
them. The Group provides equal opportunities to every
employee and supports their diversified development.
Meanwhile, we put a great effort in creating comfortable
and safe working conditions to promote cultural diversity.
We also implement dynamic management to ensure the
physical and mental health of our staff.

We are in strict compliance with national and local labour
regulations such as the Labour Law, the Labour Contract
Law, the Law on the Protection of Minors and the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC to protect the
legitimate rights and interests of employees. In compliance
with the equal employment principle of “fairness, openness
and impartiality”, we focus on candidates’ business ability,
personal quality and development potential during the
recruitment process without any form of discrimination on
grounds of age, gender, race, nationality, marital and family
status, health condition and religion.

Besides, the Group has pooled the thoughts of our staff
and actively listened to their demands and opinions, and
have established an independent labour union organisation
which is responsible for providing feedbacks of employees in
all aspects to the Group. Meanwhile, we have set up different
feedback channels, including complaint hotline, general
manager’s mailbox, various notices, internal communication
system, opinion questionnaire, etc.
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BAHDERAED] - B4 B
g¥F ZHME - RER -
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
relevant employment and labour laws and regulations in all
material aspects, including laws and regulations related to
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and welfare.

H Z2023F12A318 &
B#EBH B402A
AEBET - £EESKRM
Al FEAAR R IEEEAE

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 4,032 staff in
total, which were all full-time employees. The gender, age
group and employment type of the Group’s employees are
summarised as follows (KPI B1.1):

DB (BERERIEE
B1.1) :

Number
of individuals Turnover rate
in 2023 in 2023"
2023 FAE 2023 SRR
Total number of employees EEAEEH
in the Group 4032 42%
By gender RERIED
Male = 1,168 18%
Female L8 2,866 52%
By age RERED
Age 1610 24 16 & 24 5% 568 41%
Age 2510 40 25F405% 2,485 51%
Age 4110 59 41 B 5958 960 20%
Age 60 or above 605 A 21 5%
By geographical region Rt EE D
Mainland China B A, 4,034 42%
Hong Kong B 2 0%

Turnover rate was calculated based on “number of turnovers of the category/

total number of employees of the category”, excluding outsourcing staff.

BB AR IR [ 2 SRR MOBRBR A B R AR
MEBAE]FE  TREIMEAR -
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4.2

BENEFITS AND WELFARES

The Group provides competitive remuneration and
benefits in the industry to our employees, and ensures that
outstanding employees will receive corresponding rewards.
Our corporate management system sets forth the policies
on employee compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

We attached great importance to the rights and
remuneration of our employees. We conducted regular
inspection on the salary levels of employees at all levels
internally and collected salary status data of the industry
in the labour market externally, and adjusted the salary
and welfare levels reasonably according to factors such
as employees’ positions, work ability, work performance,
technical level and the Group's efficiency. Performance
appraisals for employees will be conducted and specific
measures will be implemented in accordance with the
performance appraisal measures of the departments to
which various positions belong to. Meanwhile, the Group
is committed to paying all employees in full on a timely
manner, while the contributions to social security funds for
its employees are made according to local regulations. The
Group has also adopted a share option scheme to recognise
the contribution of its key employees to the growth and
development of the Group. Employees are entitled to
maternity leave, marriage leave and other leaves, as well as
the rights to apply for other casual leaves in accordance with
the Labour Law in the PRC.

4.2

BANREFE

SERBTIRERTEFT A
BHEFNOFHENFE -
REXRREBENE TENE
AR @R o HPIEDRE
EIRGIE P EMT B THM
KR - HERER - THE
RE- B FERE - %
Tt~ RIBARIA R H 1558
R ARRITT E B ©

HPPERERE Taytkas
8 THHYAERETHE
RFRENF - SN ATT
LB NTISBFBHIOR - A
RIEE TR - TERE
N THERE - BRITRREM
SERBEEFRARAERER
AR o IEH B THETT
AMERE - ZASRES
[l kel B2 FTAE BB PIRVAE S B 2
WA RIERABERE - &
EAGHEERESNERIET
BT WRREMEERE
T B IR o S B IFERERGR
Bl E - ARTEHE
THEBERREZERMAED
ZER - BT AZIRABIE
}RFEER BRF A
BREBFEMBER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R - B REBHRE @)

In order to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and
enthusiasm for work, we have enriched their spare time
by carrying out outstanding staff activities, staff birthday
parties, festival activities, season’s greetings and other
cultural and recreational activities. We also provided
birthday gifts, heatstroke prevention and cooling products
and traditional festival gifts to our employees for special
occasion. We prioritised the physical and mental health of
our employees and built staff canteens and offered mutual
medical assistance for staff and condolences for serious
illnesses. The Group has built the Lilang Creative Park in our
Headquarters, which provides our employees with a superior
leisure environment, equipped with gym, swimming pool,
venues for snooker, table tennis, spa treatment, reading
room and coffee bar, etc. Various free fitness courses (such
as yoga, swimming coaching and table tennis) are offered
regularly. The Wuli Plant also held tug-of-war, karaoke prized-
competitions and annual meetings regularly, and provided
venues for square dancing, fitness, badminton, chess room,
and reading room. In addition, we have provided a series of
benefits, such as local education for our employees’ children
in Jinjiang, hotel-style apartment accommodation, housing
subsidies, wedding subsidies and transport subsidies
for travelling to and from home and the plants for our
employees.

REFBAERLT

—Eo=sER

RIRETTETRERETER
B HAEERRESFET
m® - BIARE #HAHAXR
FEE) - RRBIRFREX
REDLEEETEREE
FRLETEARR D2
fEmm ERESNER
HETHREBERATF -
T B Tey & 08 BRI
B BEREIERE AR
BIBEEB LR ARER -
SEERBILEERRRAM LA
BE - AEITRHEEBAIK
RIRE - BRESE - BX
RIS R ORRIK
BiGH - EELMYEESE
WEMBRESRRER SR
R(mmn - BkER - =
EXE) DEHFEETH
BATHOA - RAOKAEBE
kEg  REREESE
5 PEK - HEE - B
BEFHH - 1o - TR
BRI FaaES TEMH
B REIRHMEEARE
T BEEEWA  BE
FHRE MR DR R A2 B AR RS
FE—ZR5IEH -

55



China Lilang Limited 2023 Annual Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R - B REBHRE @)

56

43  LABOUR STANDARDS 43 TR
The Group is in strict compliance with the minimum age SEERETERREEM
of employment stipulated nationwide and in the region EHHEELHEXESF
where it operates, and expressly prohibits the employment MEXR WRAPEHEER
of child labour in its corporate social responsibility policy. R AXHEELEILER
We set out forced labour prevention policies in our BT - BMECEEESE
corporate management system and implement an order- FR R T B 158 I 85 TV R
driven production model. As approved by the local labour KWEENIIEATERN
department, we implemented a work system with integrated HEERRN - RERBEE S
computation of working hours to secure staffs' right to rest FEFIRMLE - BIT4RE T
and leave and production and work tasks can be completed B LiEH - BREKASEHRT
through collective working, collective rest, on shift and B EFIRE - BIRFEK
adjustment leave and flexible working hours, etc. In addition, B TIERMEHIE - MR
the Group strictly implements the guarantee to female B TR B IR R AE R A&
employees during the “three periods (periods of pregnancy, E - THEEBEEUNERT
delivery and lactation)” in accordance with national BX o BEN - EEIRBIK AR E
regulations, and advocates and protects the legitimate rights BEATHI =828
of female employees. EH - WILE) | LB IR
B WiREREXHBISIE
BERER o
In addition to prohibiting employment discrimination and Br T 5 E B AR Aok 8 R
forced labour exploitation while ensuring the elimination HI&E) - BARMBERBEL
of child labour, we have zero tolerance for any form of AN FRAPTE SRR 2 A I
discrimination or harassment. During the Reporting Period, RABBITREDRERRAH
the Group did not have any violation of child labour or REE - RIEHR - SEI
forced labour regulations. BREREEMEREZE TR
H125 THEMRER -
44  HEALTH AND SAFETY 44 REEZZE

The Group adheres to a people-oriented approach and
is committed to creating a safe and healthy working
environment. We have established an occupational health
and safety management system according to 1SO45001,
obtained a system certificate, and implemented an
occupational health and safety management system. The
Group has appointed the vice president as the representative
of the Company’s environmental management and
occupational health and safety management, who is fully
responsible for the establishment and operation of the safety
and environmental system, and meetings are held regularly
with the persons in charge of the relevant departments to
review the operation.

EERRFEUABE BN
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Except for sewing machines, protective features are
installed for the electric or heat-generating manufacturing
equipment in the Wuli Plant as well as those in the fabric
research and development and testing centres and sample
workshop at the Headquarters of the Group. Workshop staff
are required to wear wire gloves, safety goggles, masks and
other protective gears to ensure their safety when operating
equipments. There are safety supervisors in each production
workshop who are responsible for regular safety inspections,
training, and safety incident reporting. As for employee
communication, we communicate with front-line employees
actively, collect employees’ opinions and explore demands
actively by entering into safety responsibility agreements
and soliciting rationalised suggestions, and fully mobilise
employees’ enthusiasm for safety participation.

For the safety management of laboratory, the Group has
formulated internal rules and regulations such as Laboratory
Safety Assurance and On-site Management Procedures
and Chemical Safety Protection and Rescue Operation
Instructions to ensure our laboratories comply with the
relevant policy requirements in respect of safety. In addition,
we organise annual fire safety drills, fire safety knowledge
training for employees, and deploy fire fighting equipment
in factories and office buildings. We require both front-line
staff of production lines and staff in office buildings to be
acquainted with fire safety knowledge and proper way to
use fire protection equipment to enhance their emergency
response capabilities.
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4.5

As for accident investigation and management, the Group
conducts accident cause analysis, rectification and closed-
loop management in a timely manner. Meanwhile, the risk
and level of accidents are controlled to the lowest possible
level by encouraging the reporting and improvement of
near-misses to prevent serious accidents. In addition, the
Group provides free medical examinations for workshop
staff, as we always concern about the health conditions of
our staff. We also provides online psychological counselling
services in order to safeguard the physical and mental health
of our staff comprehensively.

EEMHAEREETH &
BELEETERRAND
- BREEHARERE R
FoRB s B R B = LR
REBBRETIE  BAIREKEE
R K S AR 1 2 AR AR K
¥ EHEBRNEREL - It
Hh - EEREREB TRMH%
8 B2ABWIBETRE
AR B AR B0 IR B
B 2HUREETINHS O
2R

Number of work-related fatalities B TERRIET A
Total number of work injuries THEAH
Lost days due to work injury ETGEATERE

Number of penalties or prosecutions for

laws and regulations

AT e R 2 RMARERT
non-compliance with health and safety related 1% E0 7K ak AR 57 0 £X

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places great emphasis on staff training and
provides its employees with pre-employment and on-the-
job training and career development opportunities. As for
on-job employee training, our training programs cover
production craftsmanship, research and development,
customer services, quality control, trade fair planning,
workplace ethics and other areas relevant to the industry.
The Group organises external training for outstanding
employees from time to time every year, which covers
finance, marketing, development and other aspects. To
further enhance the brand design capability and techniques,
the Group has carried out in-depth cooperation with
domestic textile and garment colleges, and conducted
campus recruitment and publicity activities in colleges
on a regular basis. The Group provides paid internship
opportunities by conducting summer and spring internships
for domestic textile and garment college students. College
leaders and outstanding students are invited to visit the
Company and seminars are held occasionally. The Group
recruits talents from universities and technical schools to
become management trainees every year, and ensures

4.5
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that all of its employees are assigned to appropriate roles,
are treated fairly and are provided with development
opportunities. The Group has formulated an integrated
incubation and training program for management trainees.
Under the program, a management trainee incubation team
is established to provide comprehensive training for fresh
graduates with the support of designated counsellors. Upon
joining the Company, new employees will participate in
on-board training, which includes company introduction,
organisation structure, rules and regulations and corporate
culture, thus helping new employees to adapt to the
Company. Certain departments will also arrange professional
training for fresh graduates, including rotation internships
and professional course learning.

In addition, the Group keeps on providing annual training
to the management team of its distributors, covering areas
relevant to retail management, such as retail services, retail
data management, industry development and order-placing
skills.
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2023
2023 5

Total training hours of employees 1B B =7 IR 88,502
The percentage of employees trained BRERERE S HNZILLH

by employment type
Top management BERERE 6.3%
Senior management SREERE 100.0%
Middle management RRERE 57.8%
General staff —MET 21.7%
Average training hours by employment type RERERESWEIIZIIREE
Top management BRRERE 13.5
Senior management SRERRE 208.1
Middle management FREEE 120.3
General staff —fMET 13.3
The percentage of employees trained by gender M RIE D 892 S LI
Male B 31.9%
Female g 21.7%
Average training hours by employment type REFERES NI
Male S 24.4
Female gegis 21.0
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4.6

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Besides our own development, the Group also proactively
cooperate with our upstream and downstream partners
in the industry chain to promote responsible supply
chains, continuously improve service quality, and promote
the healthy and sustainable growth of the industry. In
selecting suppliers, more emphasis have been put on
the legal compliance of their operations in addition to
cost consideration. We will organise a dedicated group
to review the information of production suppliers when
selecting suppliers, and all licenses will be imported into
our system. All dyeing factories, hardware electroplating,
hardware painting, and washing suppliers are required to
have local pollutant discharge permits. For fabric suppliers,
the requirements for complying Chemical Environmental
Protection Technical Requirements and Implementation
Specifications for Apparels will be added in the contract.
Before official cooperation with suppliers, a joint task force
comprising of members from various departments will be
established to conduct one to two on-site inspection(s) on
the suppliers to ensure stable workforce of suppliers and no
other issues such as the employment of child labour. In the
course of cooperation, we will require suppliers to provide
updated licenses before its relevant licenses are about to
expire, and on-site inspections will be conducted from time
to time.

All major raw material suppliers are required to comply with
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and those with
ISO14000 environmental management accreditation will be
given the priority in the selection process. The Group collects
relevant I1SO system certifications from suppliers every year.
During the Reporting Period, suppliers which account
for approximately 50% of the Group’s total raw material
purchases have obtained ISO14000 certification.

As for communication with suppliers, the Group holds
supplier meetings and invites supplier representatives to
participate in the technical improvement and innovation
conference to share production experience, and provide
incentives to technicians who propose efficient solutions.

4.6
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)

During the Reporting Period, the Group had approximately

1 OEM product suppliers, raw material suppliers and
sub-contracted processing suppliers, and 7 of them were
overseas suppliers.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Over the past few years, the Group adhered to the strategy
of "high product quality with attractive price” by doing
research on products diligently and improving self quality.
The Group also spared no effort in improving product
design, craftsmanship and materials, with the aim of raising
the proportion of original designs, enhancing the quality-for-
money of its products and increasing the competitiveness
of its products and brand. We obtained 17 patents for new
products and technologies in 2023. We value the protection
of intellectual property rights. For matters involving existing
intellectual property rights, we clarify the responsibilities
of all parties and adopt licensing methods. From project
initiation to listing, we monitor related technologies on a
real-time basis to avoid the violation of intellectual property
rights.

For product materials, the Group operates a state-approved
fabric testing centre equipped with advanced machines
to run various tests on fabrics, including their chemical
composition (such as methanal and azo), colour fastness
to light and perspiration, pilling and abrasion resistance,
degree of shrinkage, etc,, in order to ensure the fabrics are in
compliance with the Group's and also the national standards.
All fabrics used in products, whether self-manufactured,
OEM purchased or outsourced for processing, are required
to pass those tests. In addition, the Group imposes stringent
requirements on product quality control. All products must
pass the quality control inspection of the Group before
packaging for delivery, whether they are produced by the
Wuli Plant, OEM suppliers or process sub-contractors. The
materials used in the products can be traced back to the
place of origin. Each apparel has a unique code, which
can be traced back to the fabric, the production factory
(outsourced or in-house) and even the production team.

4.7
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In accordance with the requirements of the Trademark Law
of the PRG, all products bear labels specifying details such as
fibre content of the fabrics and its washing method, as well
as the national and enterprise product execution standards
being adopted. Advertising campaigns in relation to the
brand and products are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the new Advertising Law of the PRC. In the
event of any counterfeit products with LILANZ trademark
being found available in the wholesale market or online, the
Group will report to relevant authorities promptly.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not received
any complaints from the regulatory body or consumers
regarding product safety, nor had it recalled any product due
to product safety or health issues.

CUSTOMER PRIVACY AND INFORMATION SECURITY

The Group is determined to protect customer privacy. We
have formulated management requirements related to data
protection of our headquarters. The vice chairman of the
Board of the Group is the highest person in charge to lead
the protection of information security, and the information
management centre is the executive department. The
information of VIP customers in the database of retail
distributors will only be used for sales and promotion of the
Group's products, and only relevant personnel of the Group
and the relevant stores can access such information. Store
managers can only see the membership data of their own
stores and export member information in batches within
restricted areas as required. The Group will regularly review
the restriction technology of information security.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no major
computer system or network security incidents.

4.8
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49  CUSTOMER SERVICES 49 EBEFR®B
The interests and satisfaction of customers are considered SEBEPNERMEE
as important benchmarks for the Group’s services. Apart JIRBEMNREER BT
from meeting customers’ demands for high-quality MEBRPHEREEEMRT
products, we also focus on solving customers’ problems ko BMMEIEBRBARR
by providing them with timely and effective services. The RERFEIORE - ##R
Group's nationwide sales network is dedicated to building a EPHEE  SEMHERSE
customer service management mechanism through various BHEE - BARORER
customer service channels, including customer opinion BEEPEARAE ERF
surveys, customer service centres and hotlines. When DHNBAREEANNEEPR
receiving customer feedback related to products, the store BRERBREEPRBEER
manager will conduct on-site verification, send the product sl o B W EIEREEOE
back to relevant department for judgement and analysis as ERER ERGETES
necessary, and assist in returning the product to customer ZE THEREEMTHE
after repairing. W B EPFIAES T - &
‘BB E mIRE L
BE -
410 ANTI-CORRUPTION 410 RES

The Company attaches great importance to integrity and
self-discipline and continuously facilitates the establishment
of work style with good moral character. Managers at all
levels are strictly required to be a role model by persisting
in the limit of “zero tolerance” for fraud. A policy has been
set up to deal with anti-corruption complaints in a view to
prevent corruption, reduce operational risks and protect the
legitimate interests of the Group. Under the Party Committee
of the Company, we have a disciplinary committee and
a legal committee in place to prevent corruption among
employees and party members. All complaints regarding
alleged corruption cases can be reported through specific
channels (including email, telephone or mail) either on a
named basis or anonymously, which will then be investigated
and handled by the legal department and internal audit
department under the guidance of the vice chairman of the
Group. We have carried out corporate culture learning and
system examinations to deepen employees' understanding
and emphasis on the requirements of integrity and self-
discipline. By strengthening warning and education learning,
emphasising the significance of advocating integrity and
self-discipline education to individuals and the collective,
we assist in guiding our employees towards the concept of
integrity.
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In addition, the Group has formulated the Whistleblowing
System and Procedures requiring employees of the Group
to report to the Audit Committee by reporting channels
such as phone or email when aware of or encounter
any illegal, fraudulent or suspected illegal or fraudulent
incidents. Upon receiving the report, the Audit Committee
will organise an investigation of the reported incident within
one week after receiving the report. In order to protect
whistleblowers from unreasonable attacks and retaliation,
the investigation reports will be kept confidential, and the
names of whistleblowers will not be disclosed during the
investigation.

In addition to strengthening the Group’s own anti-corruption
management work continuously, suppliers are required to
be honest and self-disciplined to minimise illegal acts such
as bribery, extortion, fraud or money-laundering throughout
our procurement process. During the commencement of
businesses, we have specifically added an integrity clause
in relevant contracts, stipulating that the counterparty shall
not bribe our business personnel in any form. Meanwhile,
relevant phone number and email address for complaints
and monitoring are provided.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
lawsuits involving corruption and fraud, nor did it receive
any complaints from employees about suspected corruption
or fraud.
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411 COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 411 HERE
The operation of the Group has increased tax revenues and SERES BE &L
employment opportunities of the local community, and MW ERTEEES
brought about peripheral business booms. At the same X2 RABREMESEH
time, the Group proactively cares about the need of the AHERRE BBRRBE
community and supports and promotes the education, U B ST R AR 1 E At @AY
medical care and monument preservation of local HE - BE - HIMRESIE
community through organising donation activities. During B -RBEHRN EEEES
the Reporting Period, the charitable donations of the Group BEAEEAEARK120238
amounted to RMB12.023 million in total, of which: 7T Hep
1) RMB7 million was donated to Jinjiang Charitable 1) BREEIZXEESE
Foundation, for which RMB5 million were used to AR08 T &
support the educational program in Jinjiang No.1 AR ®s00&E TH
Middle School, and RMB2 million were used on the REFHS T —FHH
heritage project of “Anping Bridge Protection”; BIEH ' 2008 TAR
[REL T ] B
BB
2) RMB5 million was donated to Jinjiang Love in the 2) BREIMEELE
Heart Charitable Foundation (&)1 T & £ 0B A NmBEEE5008
ZEZH$ ) for a hospital construction project; T ARERERE
B
3) RMBO0.023 million was sponsored for materials to 3) BB 238 E R
kindergartens and community organisations nearby. ) R E KAt R B

i -
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OFFICIALLY LAUNCH OF YOUTH AESTHETIC EDUCATION
PLAN

In 2023, the Group collaborated with Shanghai Adream
Charitable Foundation to provide a 3-day teachers training
programme, namely “Artistic Programme No.3: Walk Through
China’, for teachers from 27 schools across 13 provinces
and cities across the country, to equip them with deeper
understanding in design mindset and creativity through
interactions and experiences.

PROVISION OF FASHION RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AND DESIGN COURSES FOR STUDENTS

In June 2023, the Group launched the “Artistic Programme
No.3: Walk Through China” to a primary school in Tongren,
Guizhou Province, which offered students a one-year
research and development and design courses with a
primary focuses on fashion design, and the exploration
of traditional Chinese culture in Anping Province as
the aesthetic education programme and material kits.
The programme used fundamental components of the
Chinese spirit as clues, with aspects including everyday life
observations, spatial environments, as well as clothing, food,
shelter and transportation as thematic materials, to carry
out thematic learning experience and creative practice. The
main forms of presentation were humanistic understanding
and artistic expression while supplemented by formats
such as debates and performance, aiming to achieve the
programme objectives through thinking and discussions,
games, experiences and explorations.
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5 APPENDIX I: INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL 5 Midk— : HEARABIIACERE -
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE HERERBREESIEI

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

A Environmental

ARIBER
Aspect Al: Emissions General Disclosure 3.1

Em A - BRI —REE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.

BEHERORERBHEN - MKk

THEEES - BEREEEEYH

EAEER

@ BX: Xk

(b) ETFHETABEATEN
AR KRB ER -

KPIAT.1 The types of emissions and respective | 3.1

BSRESIRE AL emissions data.

eI A AR B PR o

KPI'AT.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect | - Greenhouse gas emissions generated
BRERIEZE A2 (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions by the Group's operating activities are
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, limited.

intensity (e.g. per unit of production SENKEEHELEBRAAER
volume, per facility). BEHERN

B (FE) RepRMEE (8BE2)
REREHNE (LABEETE) & (18
HAR)EE (WMASESEM - 18
RbrtE) o
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A Environmental

AR ERE

KPI A13
RARAEIEIZ A3

Total hazardous wastes produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEAXBEEEDEE VAEFTE)
R (@R BE (ASESE
i ~ FIERME) °

A very limited number of chemicals in
the Group's fabric testing laboratory
are used for inspection, where relevant
hazardous wastes are collected and
handled by qualified third parties. We
will continue to observe regulatory
changes to update any disclosures
needed in the future.
SENEMRAERERE DD
e 2mAR R - B A SR
EMREERNE=TTETRER
BRI o HPIHAEEB R T EIA
BRI B ITEAREE L o

BHEA2 - BIRER

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BRERER (BIEER
B FRIEL) BYBUR

CKRE

KPIA14 Total non-hazardous wastes produced | 3.1
RS AE IR IR A1 (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEAXEEEZEYEE (AETE)
NnER) BmE (MABEESE
iz ~ §IERMAE) °
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set | — The emission performance indicator is
BRIETUEIZALS and steps taken to achieve them. not identified as a material issue of the
I PTRT IR BEE B IR R miES) Group. We will continue to observe
ELE B IZATERERAY B o regulatory changes to update any
disclosures needed in the future.
P B BRI AR B R EE
BEZE HMHEEEREEE
PR BEVEREIFEMRKEE
%o
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and 3.1
RSB IEIZ A16 non-hazardous wastes are handled,
and a description of reduction target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.
R A E REEEEYN
% BAEIRPET S EREE B IR A
RS L B RPTEREE PR
Aspect A2: General Disclosure 32
Use of Resources — R E
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A Environmental
ARBEE
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy 32
RSB IR IZ A2.1 consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
PRSI DN EE R HEEER
(AnE - Roh) EREE (ATET
REHE) REE(MASEEE
i - SERIEHE) -
KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and 32
BREIIEZEA22 intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BRKERTE (WMAGEESE
7 - BIERMFE) -
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency 32 The Group sets an energy
RASREIIEIZ A23 target(s) set and steps taken to achieve consumption target according to the
them. production volume each year. We
B PTE] S B BEIRE A e B IR will continue to observe regulatory
FRIEDE L B IRPTEREREY 28R - changes to update any disclosures
needed in the future.
SEEFREEEBATIEEFER
12 HMSEBSEREEEH AR
BV ERBINERREER
KPIA24 Description of whether there is any 32 The Group sets a water consumption
BRIETUEIE A24 issue in sourcing water that is fit for target according to the production
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set volume each year. We will continue to
and steps taken to achieve them. observe regulatory changes to update
o SKEE A KR _E P B ) [ any disclosures needed in the future.
78 - ARPREISZH K B IR R SEBFEREESBERGERKE
REDEL BRI B o 17 HMSESEREEZEH AN
B1& W ERS B ITEMHREER
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for 32
RSB IEIZ A2 5 finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
SR PR BEM 2 S (VAN
AR R(WER)BEESMGE
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and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.

R R ARG HEITAELER
ENEARREHEER - REHTT
& o

ARIBER
Aspect A3: General Disclosure 3233
The Environment —MRIEE
and Natural
Resources Policies on minimising the issuer’s
[EM A3 : IRIBMRIAE | significant impacts on the environment
IR and natural resources.
BIEBET ABRIE R RAEIREX
BEATENPER -
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts | 3.23.3
RS A IR IE A3 of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
R RIS R B HRIRE N RAEIRE
BEAYENRCRREEERATEN
18 -
Aspect A4: Climate General Disclosure 34
Change —MRIKE
BHE A4 - RIREME
Policies on identification and
mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BBl N R B M AT R B BT AE
ERENBERRIREAEENER
% °
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- | 3.4
BB TUEIZE A4 related issues which have impacted,

.
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B Social
B EEiME

Aspect B1: Employment | General Disclosure 4.1

EmB : Ef% —RiNE

Information on:

(@)  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

BRAFEN e - BB NET - T

TERSEL - REA - FEHRE 2T

1t~ RIEAR LA R Lt 15738 K 4B A

Hy :

@ B R

(b) BTFHETABEATEN
MHEDERSIRPINE R -

KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, 4.1

RS AEBURIERI employment type (for example,

full- or part-time), age group and

geographical region.

BRI~ ERIAE (e BecR

B) - FEAAR M REISHESR

BB -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age | 4.1

BRI TUEIE B2 group and geographical region.

RIER - FEARR Kt =B D B

BmAKLLE -
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B Social

B SR

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety
[EMEB2 : EEHEL S

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Information on:

(@)  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have
a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

ERRHEZ 2 TIERIRRIRERE

ERBE MR

@ BE R

(b) BTFHETABEATEN
HEER RO ER -

44

KPIB2.1
R A ISR B2

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting
year.

BE=F (BRERFE)SFEL
T AB N -

44

The Group had zero incidents of work-
related fatalities in the past three years.
SEBE=FREAATHNE
E& o

KPIB2.2
BRI AERETR B2.2

Lost days due to work injury.

ATBIERTIERE -

44

KPIB2.3
RASRARIEIR B23

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
R PR B R R 2
Ite » ARAEREBIT REERITA ©

44

.
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B Social

B EHkE

Aspect B3: General Disclosure 45
Development and —REE

Training

[EE B3 : ZEREEIEF  Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERRAEE BT TIEBE M
RIRBERVEER © fitsBFES) o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained | 4.5
BB RIETR B3 by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BRI MR BRI (e R EIE
B PREERE) ADNZIIEE

Bt e
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed | 4.5
RS AEIEIE 832 per employee by gender and

employee category.
RUERINREEERES - BRES
TERE A TR o

Aspect B4: General Disclosure 43
Labour Standards —BEE
[EHE B4 : &5 TR

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BRI Tekoamss T -

@ HX: Xk
) ETFTHETABERTEN
MERDER MRPIERY
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review 43
RS AE IR IR B4 employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

fid i AT HRES B (1 A FE S AR R B

TREEHIEET -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate | 4.3
RS AEIEIE B4 such practices when discovered.
MR IE R BN ER B RIE
SUPTEREREY 5K ©

74



HEFBRELR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B - HERERARE @

—Eo=sER

products and services when

selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R BR BRI RSE (2 AIRIR
EmRRFEHIER] - LARABREENST
MEEEFE -

B Social
BiE &R
Aspect B5: General Disclosure 46
Supply Chain —MRIEE
Management
[ BS : HLfESEEIE Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
ERMHEERIRE Rt g RERIEK
& o
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical | 4.6
BB RIEE B5.1 region.
iR eI D HEREE -
KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating 46
BB IEE B5.2 to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
AR R ERENED - AR
HITAREDINEEREE - Ak
HEBTRERE -
KPI'B5.3 Description of practices used to 4.6
RAR B HEIE B5.3 identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
R BRI e S EIR AT IR
FRAERBREED] - LA KRIBREE
TTREETE -
KPI B54 Description of practices used to 4.6
RARAE E1R BS54 promote environmentally preferable

.

75



China Lilang Limited 2023 Annual Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
R - B REBHRE @)

B Social
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Aspect B6: General Disclosure 47
Product Responsibility —MRIEE

[EME B - EmE

Information on:

(@)  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.

BRI P E MR RES

2 BE BERMEBEENULE

HOTER -
@ BE: R
(b) BTHETABEATEN
MHEDERSIRPINE R -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products soldor | 4.7
RS AE IR R B shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.
PERDERER BT AL M
fEEIE AR mAR KB DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service 47
R A IE1EB6.2 related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

RN Em R RIEHIREFE B A
RS % -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to 4.7
BB TUIEIE 863 observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

T ot B B N AR PR AN B EE R R Y
1Bl o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance 49
RASRAE IS B64 process and recall procedures.

R B B E B2 N E m EE
F o

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data 438
RS IE I IE B6.S protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and
monitored.
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Aspect BY:
Anti-corruption
[EmEB7 - RES

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Information on:

(@)  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

B IEFRES - 91R - MGFROER

B

@ B R

(b) BTFHETABEATEN
HEER RO ER -

KPIB7.1
R A ISR BT

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERMALETASEEE RS
WEBENESRARMFNEE K&
AREARESR ©

KPIB7.2
BRSRAERETR B7 .2

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,

and how they are implemented and
monitored.

P S IE i R AR - A KAR
BBITRERIE -

KPIB7.3
RSB AE IR 1ZB7 3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
MM EERE TRHNRETE

Bl

.
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B Social
BitEEIE
Aspect B8: General Disclosure 411
Community —MRIEE
Investment
[ETHBS : ttEIRE Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities'interests.
BRAA RS ERIR T iR @ PR
BEREMEREEKTDHESEEIT
[ M &= BVBR ©
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. 411
RASRAE IR IE BS.1 education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIERERE (HE  RESE
B BIFR #F - xit- #8
B)e
KPI'B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or | 4.11
RESEAEBUETZ B2 time) to the focus area.
FETHBEMEBAER (e
FrfE) o




Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

The Board is firmly committed to compliance of statutory and regulatory
corporate governance standards and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, accountability and
integrity. Policies and practices on corporate governance are reviewed on
a regular basis and as required to ensure that they remain appropriate and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Company complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2023.

VISION AND MISSIONS

The Company has the vision to excel in the menswear business in PRC
market, and is dedicated to the missions of enhancing shareholder value,
and cultivating a competent and committed team.

Under the leadership of the Board, the Company achieves the visions
and missions in our daily operations. Information on the Company’s
performance and the basis on which the Company generate the above
vision and missions are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to
10 of the Annual Report.

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The Directors recognize their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to achieve positive results for the
Company and to maximize returns for shareholders.
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EXeRERFEEMEENEEERIT
% WETRABEAE  HEMERBEE
MEEERRE - ARBEMLILFTER
A ERERBERMIER - ARERE IR
NBHI REEWBTED MEEERE

BE—_Z-_—#+-_A=+—RIEE "
ARRIBENKEBHAZHFERARFE
FEMRADY ([ LR Mex+rprs:
(EEERSTRDBIETA SFRIMEST ([ 5F A
) e

MaRED

ARBREETFETERBERNBRD
X UBNEABREENREE X5
M TERAENER -

EEFEMNAE T ARARARZET
ERZEFRARMED - BEARRIMRIR
RARBIFIE LB E REwHIKENE
HERERFER 10 EMNERRE -

(A E=E

E=ZgaEARANERIE I
EERRAEENEE - EFHA
HEXRRBENERRAENE
T XHVER - SARRERE
BRE N ABRF AR AR

79



80

China Lilang Limited 2023 Annual Report

Corporate Governance Report (continved)

EERIRE ()

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Liang Xing
Mr.Wang Cong Xing
Mr. Pan Rong Bin
Mr.Wang Jun Hong
(appointed on 5 February 2024)
Mr.Wang Zhi Yong
(appointed on 5 February 2024)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wang Dong Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Cai Rong Hua
Mr. Hu Cheng Chu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Shixian
Mr. Zhang Shengman

(appointed on 17 March 2023)
Prof. Liao Jianwen

(appointed on 5 February 2024)
Prof. Jiang Zhan

(appointed on 5 February 2024)
Dr.Lu Hong Te

(resigned on 5 February 2024)
Mr. Nie Xing

(resigned on 1 June 2023)

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 98 to 108
of the Annual Report. A list of the Directors identifying their role
and function and whether they are Independent Non-executive
Directors are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Board include the formulation
of the Group's business strategies and management objectives,
supervision of the management and evaluation of the effectiveness
of management strategies. Day-to-day management of the
Group's businesses is delegated to the Executive Directors or senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
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Matters reserved for the Board include those affecting the Group’s
overall strategies, budget and plans, publication of financial
statements, dividend policy, appointment of members to the
various Board Committees and major investments. The Board is also
responsible for developing, reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance of the Group, and the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management.
The Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.

Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense
upon their request. No such advice was sought during 2023.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. In 2023,
no claims under the insurance policy were made.
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DIRECTORS' CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, briefings
and updates on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the
Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. According to the records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:

EEFERIIREREE

EREFTAHEREBEBAARR
RBLMBARN KBRS - AR
EXg RN EBREEEREITHER
e ltsh REFSSHNHE &
FeRRH TR EMERE
ERENRFTERBILETRE
K RERARRERSET MRS
EFHRUFEEEAERNET -

PRERNESHIMEGERER
B - LS RERAR S M
Nige - RIBEZEFRMAGE &
ENBE-_ZT-_=Ft+=-A=1+—
B It FEEZMEIIEHNT

Types of
continuous
professional
development
programmes

Directors BE= BHEEERREYIER
Executive Directors WITES
Mr.Wang Liang Xing FREXAE B
Mr. Wang Cong Xing FHRELAE B
Mr. Pan Rong Bin ERW R A B
Non-executive Directors IEHITES
Mr.Wang Dong Xing FRESLSE B
Mr. Cai Rong Hua BN, A B
Mr. Hu Cheng Chu FRR S B
Independent Non-executive Directors BN IEHITES
Dr. Lu Hong Te =R EE T A
Mr. Lai Shixian FEHESA AB
Mr. Zhang Shengman ERSEE B
Notes: HisE
A: Attending courses/seminars on business management, and/or A EREAREBERER XS
corporate governance. SERRRIE SRS -
B: Viewing director training webcasts on connected transactions, B: BEEHABERS  ATHEER

discloseable transactions, ESG governance and reporting.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang Dong Xing, is responsible
for the overall management of and leadership for the Board and
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established. He is also responsible to ensure all Directors receive
adequate information in a timely manner and are properly briefed
on issues arising on board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wang Liang Xing, is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business.

The Company has kept these roles separated and distinctive as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring with them
expertise in different areas. The role of the Independent Non-
executive Directors is to provide independent and objective
opinions to the Board, giving adequate control and balances for
the Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders and
the Group. The Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors.

Mr. Lai Shixian ("“Mr. Lai") has been serving for more than nine years
on the Board as Independent Non-executive Directors. The length
of tenure of Mr. Lai with the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report was more than 11 years. Mr. Zhang Shengman, Prof. Liao
Jianwen and Prof. Jiang Zhan were appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Directors with effect from 17 March 2023, 5 February
2024 and 5 February 2024, respectively. Each Independent Non-
executive Director has submitted annual confirmation of his/her
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.
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Mr. Lai who has served as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company for over nine years. Mr. Lai has thorough
understanding of the Company’s operations and business. As an
Independent Non-executive Director, Mr. Lai has always contributed
objectively in advising the Board and the senior management,
expressing objective views, and giving valuable independent
guidance to the Company in their capacity as Independent Non-
executive Director over the years. Mr. Lai is currently the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Lai has been continuously demonstrating firm
commitments to his roles. Mr. Lai always place great importance
on high standards of corporate governance. Due to the extensive
experience in the consumer market and financial management,
Mr. Lai is able to provide valuable and useful advices and guidance
to the Company in the relevant industry. Mr. Lai has never been
engaged in any executive management of the Group and Mr. Lai
has provided confirmation of his independence according to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, with the recommendation
of the Nomination Committee of the Company, considers that
Mr. Lai remains independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules
despite the fact that he has served the Board for over nine years. In
accordance with Code Provision A4.3 of the CG Code, the Company
will include in the notice and the circular of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company the reasons why the Board still
considers Mr. Lai as independent.

TIME COMMITMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have demonstrated a strong commitment to the
Board affairs and they are well aware that they are expected to
have a sufficient time commitment to the Board. Directors have
given certain confirmations and made disclosures about their other
commitments.

(N SUFFICIENT TIME AND ATTENTION

Directors have confirmed that they have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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(1 OTHER OFFICES AND COMMITMENTS

Directors disclose to the Company annually the number,
identity and nature of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies and organisations and other
significant commitments.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board has a structured process to evaluate its own performance
and Directors’ contribution on an annual basis including a self-
evaluation questionnaire which is completed by all Directors. The
objectives of the evaluation are to assess whether the Board and
the Board committees, as well as the Directors have adequately
and effectively performed its/their roles and fulfilled its/their
responsibilities; have devoted sufficient time commitment to the
Company'’s affairs; and to recommend areas for improvement.
The evaluation process has confirmed that the Board and the
Board committees continue to operate effectively and that the
performance of the Directors and the time commitment in
discharging their duties as Directors of the Company for the year 31
December 2023 were satisfactory.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To cover particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in
the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee. Each of the Committees is delegated
by the Board with specific roles and responsibilities and reports to
the Board on matters discussed and their findings. Their terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, including access to management or professional advice
if considered necessary.

(1 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Shengman, Mr.
Lai Shixian, Prof. Liao Jianwen and Prof. Jiang Zhan. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Zhang Shengman,
whose expertise in financial planning and analysis,
management, investment and corporate financing enables
him to provide leadership for the Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Group. These include
reviewing the Group’s interim and annual reports.

The Audit Committee had two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2023. During the meetings, the
Audit Committee had considered internal control review
findings, the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the interim report of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2023, as well as the reports
prepared by the external auditor covering major findings in
the course of its audit/review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Shixian, Mr. Zhang Shengman and
Mr. Wang Cong Xing. Mr. Lai Shixian is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing such
remuneration policy. No Director will take part in any
discussion on his/her own remuneration.
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The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business
requirements and industry practice. In order to determine
the level of remuneration and fees paid to members of
the Board of Directors, market rates and factors such as
each director’s workload, performance, responsibility, job
complexity and the Group's performance are taken into
account.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to discuss
and approve for recommendation to the Board the bonus
(if any) for the year ended 31 December 2022 and salary
adjustments (if any) for the year ended 31 December 2023 of
Executive Directors and senior management.

Details of Directors’and senior management’s remuneration
are set out in notes 8 to 10 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Zhang
Shengman, Prof. Liao Jianwen and Prof. Jiang Zhan. Mr. Wang
Dong Xing is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Company recognizes the benefits of having a Board
that has a balance of experience, skills and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s businesses. The Board has adopted a Board
Diversity Policy that appointment to the Board should be
based on merit that compliments and expands the skills
and experience of the Board as a whole, and after due
regard to factors which include but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge, and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant and applicable from time to time
towards achieving a diverse Board. The Board shall review
the structure, size and composition of the Board from time
to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills,
experience and gender appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business, with due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven
male Directors and one female Directors. The Nomination
Committee considered that the Board had achieved gender
diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse
mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will
review the composition and diversity of the Board annually
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Measures to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
achieve gender diversity:

The Board will identify potential successors internally,
having regard to the industry expertise, leadership
skills, decision making capabilities, communication
skills and professional qualification of the staff.

The Board will also consider outside sources such as
head hunter and referral.
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The details of workforce composition were disclosed under
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this report.

The Board is not aware of any factors or circumstances
which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management) of the Group more
challenging or less relevant.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and will at
the appropriate time set measurable objectives for achieving
diversity of the Board. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to
become a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting. In the meeting, the
Nomination Committee had assessed the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors, considered and
recommended to the Board on the retirement by rotation
and re-election of Directors at the 2023 annual general
meeting. The Committee considered the current size and
composition of the Board to be sufficient to meet the
Company’s business needs and that the Directors bring with
them complimenting skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. No candidate
had been nominated for appointment as additional Director
during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee currently comprises one
Non-executive Director and two Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Wang Cong Xing and Mr. Pan
Rong Bin. Mr. Wang Dong Xing is the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Risk Management
Committee are to review the risks facing the Group and to
oversee management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management system.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Risk
Management Committee held one meeting to discuss and
assess the principal risks facing the Group and the related
control measures being taken. Key risk exposures of the
Group identified are set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 11 to 33 of the Annual Report.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss
the overall strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial
performance, and to approve interim and annual results and other
significant matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given
at least 14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are
sent to Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting
is held. Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company
Secretary to include matters in the agenda for reqular Board
meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at Board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
Board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are
followed.
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MEETINGS

The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting,
Nomination Committee meeting, Risk Management Committee
meeting and Annual General Meeting held during the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out below:
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Risk 2023
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Management Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Meetings E¥ oM REZE® RBEE C—E-=F
Exeed Z5983 Z8gg3 €3 ZEEE3 RREFAE
No. of meetings held during E —E =%
the year ended +ZA=+—H
31 December 2023 FFEEETNEE
RE 8 2 1 1 1 1
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wang Liang Xing IRERHE 8 NAMNEAR  NANER  NANER NANER -
Mr.Wang Cong Xing TRELHE 8 NANEAR 1 N/A A 1 1
Mr. Pan Rong Bin EL 4 NATER  NATER NATER - -
Non-executive Directors ~ JFI{TEE
Mr.Wang Dong Xing TLELESE 8 NAMNEA  NANER 1 1 1
Mr. Cai Rong Hua BREES L 7 NANER  NANER NANER NANER 1
Mr. Hu Cheng Chu WAL 7 NATER  NANER NANER NATER -
Independent Non-executive B 3F{TE S
Directors
Dr.Lu Hong Te BB EEL 4 2 NANER 1 NATER -
Mr. Nie Xing RELHE 1 1 1 1 NATER -
Mr. Lai Shixian BHBLE 4 2 1 NANER  NATER -
Mr.Zhang Shengman ~ ERSXE 4 2 1 1 NATER -

To supplement the formal Board meetings, the Chairman held
regular gatherings with Directors to consider issues in an informal
setting.

During the year, the Chairman had one meeting with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without other Executive
Directors present.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term subject to his/her
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meetings or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions (“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon
specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Shum Chi Chung, the Company Secretary of the Company, is
a full time employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. During the financial year, Mr. Shum has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Shum is
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”on page 107 of the Annual Report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING, RISK MANAGEMENT AND (B) B  BElrEERAIE

INTERNAL CONTROL 2
FINANCIAL REPORTING gy e s
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s EEeHAASEREREARTA
accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group's state R - EEmMAP A REEERE
of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and in accordance FENEBRR FERBEER
with the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by 2 UWREEE G ENEZE R
the International Accounting Standards Board, the disclosure MR B BR B B sR 5 2E BI) - (R A K
requirements of the Companies Ordinance and applicable BB R FEARTE K T8 R A0 E A 3%
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Company has selected BIEXRERE - AARIEREIE
appropriate accounting policies and has applied them consistently EEMAME RAFHEREE NG
based on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates. BRI B HIER -
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS JeBL e T T % T B A
The Board recognizes its responsibility to evaluate and determine EFEgHEAFEREETERETE
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving EEEKES B IEMEEZEMAN
the Group's strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group B ME RIEE - WHERE B
establishes and maintains effective risk management and internal R 1578 e B b B B e N B BE
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than R - ZF R B EEBBMIFER
eliminate the risk of failure to business objectives, and can only REEEREBKBENERR - WHE
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material EIRESEMIFREREAIGHE
misstatement or |oss. Aia BRI R o
() ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT (“ERM”) ) DEERER(EERR

FRAMEWORK BIE |)HER

The Company's ERM processes are summarized as follows: RARMERREREF

Baian T -

Risks Assessment

JEfR T

Risks ldentification

R

Strategy and Objectives Setting
B H R

Reporting and Monitoring
KL

Risks Treatment and Control

R IETE R

REEERREFETR
A ARERESEEREN
T o

The risk management systems are reviewed annually to
ensure appropriateness and effectiveness.

Key risks exposures of the Group are summarized in the SEEHNFZREMTEZH
paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the RAFHRE N EMEH A EEE
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on page 32 of Eitmhkofa [ T2ARK

this Annual Report. RAHAAEZR] —& -.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and unauthorized
disposition and to manage risks. A designated staff has been
appointed to carry out internal control review on a day-
to-day basis. The Group also continues to engage KPMG
Advisory (China) Limited as internal control review advisor to
assist in the review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system. Review of the Group's internal controls covering
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions of different systems has
been done on a systematic rotational basis based on the
risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved
by the Audit Committee. No major issues but areas for
improvement have been identified. The Board and the Audit
Committee considered that the key areas of the Group's
internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the release of inside
information to place anyone in a privileged dealing position
is strictly prohibited and has adopted an Inside Information
Policy to ensure compliance of the Listing Rules. Prior to the
announcement of any inside information, all Directors and
senior management are requested to take all reasonable
steps to maintain strict confidentiality and where it is
reasonably likely that confidentiality may have been lost in
respect of the inside information, the Company shall as soon
as reasonably practicable, apply to the Stock Exchange for a
trading suspension of its shares.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the external
auditor.
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During the year, the fees payable to KPMG in respect of its
statutory audit services (including interim review) provided
to the Group was RMB3,480,000. Fees payable to KPMG for
non-audit services in respect of internal control review, tax
and ESG report advisory services for the year amounted to
RMB516,000.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Wang Liang Xing, Mr. Wang Cong Xing,
Xiao Sheng International Limited and Ming Lang Investments
Limited are the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) of the Company (“Controlling Shareholders”). Each of
the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company that
none of them is engaged in, or interested in any business (other
than the Group) to compete directly or indirectly with the Group. To
protect the Group from any potential competition, the Controlling
Shareholders have given an irrevocable non-compete undertaking
in the Group's favour on 4 September 2009.

In order to properly manage any potential or actual conflict of
interests between the Group and the Controlling Shareholders in
relation to the compliance and enforcement of the non-compete
undertaking, the Company has adopted the following corporate
governance measures:

(i) the Independent Non-executive Directors shall review,
at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the non-compete undertaking
by the Controlling Shareholders;

(if) the Company will disclose any decisions on matters
reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors
relating to compliance and enforcement of the non-
compete undertaking either through the annual report or
by way of announcement;

(i) the Company will disclose in the corporate governance
report on how the terms of the non-compete undertaking
have been complied with and enforced; and
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(iv) in the event that any of the Directors and/or their respective
associates has material interest in any matter to be
deliberated by the Board in relation to the compliance and
enforcement of the non- compete undertaking, he may not
vote on the resolutions of the Board approving the matter
and shall not be counted towards the quorum for the voting
pursuant to the applicable provisions in the Company’s
articles of association.

The Directors consider that the above corporate governance
measures are sufficient to manage any potential conflict of interests
between the Controlling Shareholders and their respective
associates and the Group and to protect the interests of the
shareholders, in particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
that he/it has complied with the non- compete undertaking during
the year. The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the
non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with its
shareholders and the investment community in a fair and timely
basis is essential. Continuous dialogue is held with research analysts
and institutional investors by means of one-on-one meetings,
conference calls and investors conferences to keep them abreast of
the Group’s business and development.

SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS

The Company encourages shareholders to attend Shareholders’
meetings and make proposals by either directly raising questions on
both operational and governance matters to the Board and Board
committees at the general meetings or providing written notice of
such proposals for the attention of the Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
3402, 34 Floor, Lippo Centre, Tower One, No. 89 Queensway, Hong
Kong or via email to ir@lilanz.com.hk.
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The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited at the registered
office of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at 3402,
34 Floor, Lippo Centre, Tower One, No. 89 Queensway, Hong Kong
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of association
or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as Director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to Shareholders at least
20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has been
adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’ meetings to ensure
that each share is entitled to one vote. Details of the poll voting
procedures are set out in the circular sent to Shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement of the meeting.
Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of
the annual general meeting.

The attendance record of the Directors at the annual general
meeting held during the year is set out under the paragraph headed
“Meetings”above.

The dividend policy of the Company is set out under the paragraph
headed “Dividend Policy” in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on page 30 of the Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Liang Xing (£ R 2 5t4), aged 61, is the vice chairman, the
chief executive officer and an executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed as an executive Director on 13 June 2008. He has been
with the Group since its establishment in April 1995 and is one of the
founders of the Group. Mr. Wang is responsible for the Group's overall
business development, strategic planning and corporate management.
He is also responsible for the corporate development of the Group and
recommending the appointment of senior management to the Board. He
completed an advanced programme of excellent corporate operation and
management (R EL L E R S RRIZFHEYT) from the School of
Continuing Education of Tsinghua University (B3 K B4 B F Ef7),
an EMBA programme organised by Xiamen University (BF9KX&%), a China
CEOQ Programme (4 B (b 3 CEORRAE) organized by Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (&)L £Fx) and a Global CEO Programme (Z£EKCEO
#£#2) organized by China Europe International Business School (FF B B B
T RE2BR). Mr. Wang has over 30 years of manufacturing and management
experience in the menswear industry in the PRC.

Mr. Wang is the vice-chairman and standing supervisor of the Enterprises
Credit Management Association of Quanzhou City (RMTHEE RS
BERHEE—EEEE) and a supervisor of the Garment Association
of the PRC (P EIAREH ). He was one of 50 persons honoured with a
2005 PRC Enterprises trademark Award (200577 Bl 7 2 4250 A) and was
accredited as the “Brand China People of the Year 2010" (20105 h& 7 B 4F
JE A®) and the “16th session of Excellent Entrepreneur of Fujian Province
2015”2015 F+RERBEBFEER).

Mr. Wang is the brother of Mr. Wang Dong Xing and the brother-in-law of
Mr. Cai Rong Hua, who are also non-executive Directors of the Company.
Mr. Wang is also the brother of Mr. Wang Cong Xing, father of Mr. Wang Zhi
Yong and uncle of Mr. Wang Jun Hong, who are executive Directors of the
Company. He is also one of the shareholders of Xiao Sheng International
Limited and Ming Lang Investments, which are the controlling shareholders
(within the meaning of The Listing Rules) of the Company.
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Mr. Wang Cong Xing (EBEE %4 ), aged 55, is the vice chairman and
an executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director on 2 January 2008. Mr. Wang has been with the Group since its
establishment in April 1995 and is one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for finance and information technology management for
the Group. He is also responsible for the internal management system of
the Group and supervising the implementation of the annual, quarterly
and monthly financial plans of the Group. He completed an advanced
programme of excellent corporate operation and management (b 3%
HR TR S A SRIZHETE) from the School of Continuing Education of
Tsinghua University (5 2 A 24825 20t) in 2006. Mr. Wang has over
30 years of manufacturing and management experience in the menswear
industry in the PRC. He is a committee member of the Political Consultative
Conference of Quanzhou City (RN TTEIRZE 8).

Mr. Wang is the brother of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, who is a non-executive
Director of the Company, and Mr. Wang Liang Xing, and he is the uncle
of Mr. Wang Jun Hong and Mr. Wang Zhi Yong, who are also executive
Directors of the Company. He is also a director and one of the shareholders
of Ming Lang Investments Limited and Xiao Sheng International Limited,
which are the controlling shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing
Rules) of the Company.
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Mr. Pan Rong Bin ((B& M 5t 4 ), aged 50, is an executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group in February 2003 and was appointed
as an executive Director on 13 June 2008. Prior to acting as the general
manager of the Group’s F|8B LILANZ brand since March 2011, Mr. Pan was
responsible for the marketing and distribution operations of BB LILANZ.

Mr. Pan completed an advanced programme of excellent corporate
operation and management (P> L EEE = RERIZFHEH) from
the School of Continuing Education of Tsinghua University (/& 2= X S 4448
B BBt) in 2006. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Pan was a representative in the
Nanping Municipal People’s Congress, Fujian Province (@324 FF AR
RERAE). From 1995 to 2007, he was a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jianyang City, Fujian Province (1
ARBUEHH SR BREEBTZEE). He was honoured with the
award for the Model of Labour in Quanzhou City, Fujian Province (@24
RINTI L BNIEED) in May 2006. He was also accredited as the outstanding
personage in the development of retail industry (Z& % 8BS A
#1) in the “Golden Coordinate” (& FEE) award organised by winshang.
com{ & #8 Ytogether with mainstream commercial real estate media in
China in April 2018. He has over 20 years of management experience in the
menswear industry in the PRC.

Mr. Pan is also one of the shareholders of Xiao Sheng International Limited
and Ming Lang Investments Limited, which are the controlling shareholders
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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Mr. Wang Jun Hong (E# &5 4), aged 37, is an executive Director of
the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on 5 February
2024. Mr. Wang has over 14 years of experience in fashion and design.
Since April 2012, Mr. Wang has served various positions within the Group.
Mr. Wang is currently serving as the general manager of Lilang (China) Co.,
Ltd. (“Lilang China"), where he is responsible for brand management and
product development, as well as vice president of the design department
of Lilang (Hong Kong) International Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in fashion design from the China Academy of Art (F° BISE1iTE2)
in July 2008 and a master’s degree in brand management from Instituto
Marangoni in June 2009. He was named as one of the “Outstanding Young
Talents of Contemporary China” by ADMEN International Award and the
International Brand Association in 2020.

Mr. Wang is the son of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, a non-executive Director of the
Company and the chairman of the Board, nephew of Mr. Wang Liang Xing
and Mr. Wang Cong Xing, and cousin of Mr. Wang Zhi Yong. Mr. Wang Liang
Xing, Mr. Wang Cong Xing and Mr. Wang Zhi Yong are executive Directors of
the Company.

Mr. Wang Zhi Yong (E & B %4 ), aged 38, is an executive Director of the
Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on 5 February 2024.
Mr. Wang has over 14 years of experience in fashion sales and marketing.
Since June 2009, Mr. Wang has served various positions within the Group,
and from March 2018 to November 2019, Mr. Wang was promoted
to deputy director of Lilang China, where he was responsible for the
management of new retail development in Fujian; from December 2019
to February 2022, he was promoted to general manager of Lilang China’s
online retail center, where he was responsible for the development and
management of online retail for the Group’s smart casual collection "7l Bf
LESS IS MORE". He is currently serving as the sales channel director of Lilang
China's marketing center. Mr. Wang studied at Wuhan University between
2003 to 2007.

Mr. Wang is the son of Mr. Wang Liang Xing, an executive Director of the
Company, and nephew of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, a non-executive Director
of the Company and chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Cong Xing, and
cousin of Mr. Wang Jun Hong. Mr. Wang Liang Xing, Mr. Wang Cong Xing
and Mr.Wang Jun Hong are executive Directors of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dong Xing (E& £ %4 ), aged 63, is the chairman and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director on 13 June 2008 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 11 December 2023. Mr. Wang has been with the Group since its
establishment in April 1995 and is one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for the Group’s overall business development, strategic
planning and corporate management. He is also responsible for formulating
operation direction, devising annual plan and financial budget and making
recommendations on significant investments of the Group to the Board for
approval. He completed a diploma programme for chief executive officers
of enterprises ((PZEEX B ARIMEIT) from the Economics College of
Peking University (3L RAZ4E R ERET), an EMBA programme organised
by Lingnan College, Sun Yat-sen University (f LI X E2 58 £365), a China
CEO Programme (47 B (b 22 CEOFRH2) organized by Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business ()T B 22F5) and a CEO to Lead the Future Programme
(BI1RBR 2K CEO ###2) organized by the Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance at Shanghai Jiao Tong University (E/BXBAZ HES RS R
). Mr. Wang has over 30 years of manufacturing and management
experience in the menswear industry in the PRC.

Mr. Wang is a member of the Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference ((F B ARBUAH B @ iaaiE
EZBEE), a representative of the Quanzhou Municipal People’s Congress
(ERNHARAKEKAE) and standing vice chairman of the Jinjiang City
Sewing and Apparel Association (B LT 4RERH ). He is also
vice chairman of the Jinjiang Committee of China Democratic National
Construction Association (RFEE & &)IZ 8 ), standing committee
member of the Jinjiang Chamber of Commerce (&I LB ({2 S)
and chairman of the Quanzhou APEC Business Travel Card Association (X%
M TTAPEC(ZR AL & 4 48) P TS IR T R 1 '®). He was also accredited as the
"16th session of Excellent Entrepreneur of Fujian Province 2015” (2015 5
FRNEREAREF P ER) and Excellent Entrepreneur of Lhasa Economic
and Technological Development Zone 2020" (20205 17 i A% 75 1 117 5 2% [
BEPER).

Mr. Wang is the elder brother of Mr. Wang Liang Xing and Mr. Wang Cong
Xing, who are executive Directors of the Company. He is also the father
of Mr. Wang Jun Hong and the uncle of Mr. Wang Zhi Yong, who are also
executive Directors to the Company. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chen
Wei Jin, a member of the senior management of the Company. He is also
one of the shareholders of Xiao Sheng International Limited and Ming Lang
Investments Limited, which are the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company.
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Mr. Cai Rong Hua (BE88E %4 ), aged 55, is a non-executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group in April 1998 and was appointed as
an executive Director on 13 June 2008. He was re-designated as a non-
executive Director on 11 December 2023. Mr. Cai completed an advanced
programme of excellent corporate operation and management (£ b
$EEEID S A RIZHHETE) from the School of Continuing Education of
Tsinghua University (&% K24 8% 5 2br) and an EMBA programme
organised by Lingnan College, Sun Yat-sen University (FF [ K 2225522
Bt). He is the president of the Jinjiang Qingyang Chamber of Commerce (&
I SFEE ). He has over 20 years of manufacturing and management
experience in the menswear industry in the PRC.

Mr. Cai is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wang Liang Xing and uncle of Mr. Wang
Zhi Yong, who are also executive Directors of the Company. He is also one
of the shareholders of Xiao Sheng International Limited and Ming Lang
Investments Limited, which are the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Hu Cheng Chu (M #1554 ), aged 79, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. He joined the Group in April 1998 and was appointed as
an executive Director on 13 June 2008. He was re-designated as a non-
executive Director on 11 December 2023. Mr. Hu completed part-time
professional political engineering course and professional administrative
management course from Fudan University in 1988 and 1989, respectively,
and an advanced programme of excellent corporate operation and
management (R EL L ERE S ARIZHHEL) from the School of
Continuing Education of Tsinghua University (/& 2 A B2 48 B2 5 E267). He
is currently the vice chairman of the Quanzhou Association of Professional
Managers (SR M BEF4EIE AHE), a supervisor of the Association of China
Brand Managers of the Brand China Industry Union (&nh# 0 B2 3Bt
B 7 AR AE) and the honorary chairman of Fujian Micro
Electronic Commerce Industry Association ({@EZ& BRI TERE). He
was honoured as Jinjiang City Honorable Citizen (&L 42 M K) in 2012
and also accredited as:

- one of the top 10 planners for corporate sales and marketing in the
PRC for the year 2007 to 2008, and for the year 2009 to 2010 (2007-
2008%F £22009-2010F R B 10 AR X Z SHREIN);

- one of the top 10 brand managers in China for the year 2010 (2010
B+ KRR A);

- the China Great Wall outstanding advertising personage award for
the year 2011 QO FHEIES £ R EE - AV 2 THENEE);

- the excellent chief brand officer in China for the year 2013 (20137
B = mEE)
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- one of the top 10 planners for brand marketing of China’s
enterprises for the year 2015 2015 Bl + K& HEREIA)

- the excellent brand officer in China for the year 2016 (20167 Bl &
a2 E); and

- one of the top 10 planners for brand marketing in China for the year

6 2016 B+ R RIEEHREIA)

Mr. Hu is also one of the shareholders of Xiao Sheng International Limited
and Ming Lang Investments Limited, which are the controlling shareholders
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Shixian (R8tt B 54 ), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He joined the Board on 13 December 2012. Mr. Lai
is the Co-Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of ANTA Sports
Products Limited (Z ¥ 8& 5 FIa AR A R)) (stock code: 2020), the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, and is primarily responsible for
the administration of ANTA Brand and all other brands except FILA, the
procurement function and several functions of the ANTA Group. Mr. Lai
holds an EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School.

On 5 February 2024, the annual remuneration has been revised to
HK$360,000.

Mr. Zhang Shengman (ER 2 % %), aged 66, has over 30 years of
experience in corporate and financial matters. From May 1981 to October
1992, Mr. Zhang served various positions in the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China, with his last position as the Deputy Director. In
November 1992, Mr. Zhang joined the World Bank Group as the country
representative for China. From November 1992 to October 2005, Mr. Zhang
took up various roles in the World Bank Group, with his last position as the
Managing Director in charge of world-wide operations and the chairman
of several committees. Subsequently, Mr. Zhang joined Citigroup Inc.
("Citigroup”), a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: C), in February 2006 as the chairman of the Global Public Sector
Group. From February 2006 to May 2016, Mr. Zhang has taken up various
roles in Citigroup with his last position as the Chairman of Citigroup’s Asia
Pacific Region. Mr. Zhang is currently and has been a director of several
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including a non-executive director
of Seazen Group Limited (stock code: 1030) since 21 March 2018, and an
independent non-executive director of Fosun International Limited (stock
code: 656) since 1 December 2006 and Green Economy Development
Limited (stock code: 1315) since 28 February 2023.
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Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in English literature from Fudan
University in 1978 and a master’s degree in public administration from
University of the District of Columbia in 1986. Mr. Zhang completed the
Harvard Advanced Management Program from Harvard University in June
1997.

On 5 February 2024, the annual remuneration has been revised to
HK$360,000.

Prof. Liao Jianwen (BEE X R ), aged 56, has extensive research and
practical experience in strategic innovation management across both
academia and industries. Currently, Prof. Liao holds positions of Executive
Fellow of Harvard Business School and Senior Advisor to the chairman of
JD.com, Inc. (NASDAQ: JD; and HKEx: 9618 (HKD counter) and 89618 (RMB
counter)). Since 2012, Prof. Liao served as the Associate Dean of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business until March 2017. From April 2017 to July
2021, Prof. Liao was the chief strategy officer of Beijing Jingdong Century
Trade Co,, Ltd. He has also been an independent director of Origin Asset
Management Co,, Ltd. since February 2022. Prof. Liao has also served, or is
serving, on the boards of the below listed companies: (1) independent non-
executive director of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited (a company
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 01778) from June 2014 to March 2021; (2) independent non-executive
director of Fantasia Holdings Group Co,, Limited (a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:01777)
from February 2015 to May 2021; (3) director of China United Network
Communications Ltd. (a company whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600050) from February
2018 to March 2021 and non-independent director from March 2021 to
December 2021; (4) director of Yonghui Superstores Co., Ltd. (a company
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code:601933) from April 2018 to December 2021; (5) director of
Farfetch Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, stock code: FTCH) since February 2019; (6) independent director
of Zhewen Interactive Group Co, Ltd. (a company whose shares are listed
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on the main board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600986)
since November 2020; (7) independent director of Juewei Food Co,, Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 603517) since December 2021; and (8) independent
non-executive director of Bairong Inc. (a company whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 06608) from 20
October 2023 to 20 November 2023. Prof. Liao obtained a master’s degree
in economics from Renmin University of China in February 1991, and a Ph.D.
in Business Administration from Southern Illinois University in August 1996.

Prof. Jiang Zhan (3R Z#%), aged 47, is currently a professor at the
Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/83238 AE8). Recognised for her research and expertise in
corporate finance, valuation, fintech and supply chain finance, she has over
17 years' experience in teaching and academic research. She is a frequent
contributor of leading academic journals and a recurring guest speaker. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal engineering from Tong Ji University
(B AR E2) in July 1998, a master's degree in mechanical engineering from
the Southern Illinois University in December 2002 and Ph.D. in business
administration from the University of lowa in August 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shum Chi Chung (£ f#i5R 54 ), aged 49, is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in August
2021. Mr. Shum graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in Business and Administration
(Accountancy). He has over 20 years of extensive experience in audit,
financial management, corporate finance and compliance. Prior to joining
the Group, he had worked in an international accounting firm and other
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Shum is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Shi Mei Ya (FEEZF Z 1), aged 47, is the head of the production
management department of the Group. She completed a programme in
fine chemical engineering at Fujian Radio and TV University (& &4 & &
ERARE) in 1998 and an advanced programme of excellent corporate
operation and management (FH{PELEE RS RRIZFHEI)
from the School of Continuing Education of Tsinghua University (&2 A
EE B2 B 26) in 2006. She also completed a programme in project
management and a master programme in business administration for
senior managers (B AXAEIE T i B IR AE LR 12) at Xiamen University (B
PIREE). Ms. Shi joined the Group on 1 August 1998 and has been the head
of production management department of the Group since November
2008.

Mr. Song Chen (RE 5 %), aged 30, is the head of group strategy
development department of the Group and assistant to Chief Executive.
He graduated from University of Bristol with a master’s degree in mechincal
engineering in 2016. From 2016 to 2018, he had worked in China
Development Bank Capital FoF Management (F7CE &I E£) as analyst.
From 2018 to 2023, he worked in Legend Capital Management Limited (&
Bt & AREIBAR /AR as investment manager with extensive experience
in industry and company analysis and due diligence. He joined the Group in
August 2023.

Mr. Zhuang Zhi Han (3£ & %4 ), aged 54, is the financial controller
of the Group. He graduated from Faculty of Accountancy from East
China Technology University (ZE5 T 2K &) with a bachelor’s degree in
economics major in accounting in 1994. He obtained an EMBA degree from
Xiamen University (B PJAZ2) in December 2012. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked in Xiaxin Electronic Stock Company Limited (E#T&EFRHHE
R 22 8)), responsible for the overall financial affairs. He joined the Group on
1 September 2008.
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Mr. Chen Wei Jin (BR#EE ), aged 54, is the head of the group
ordering department of the Group. He graduated from Zhangzhou Normal
University (2N AT EEE285E) with a professional diploma in administration in
July 2000 and completed an advanced programme of excellent corporate
operation and management (£ B> E IR = RRIZTHE ) from
the School of Continuing Education of Tsinghua University (/&5 % A Z2 445
#E EPT) in 2006. From 1989 to 2004, he served as the general manager
of Jinjiang Weixin Knitters Factory (BT 4= #H45R). From 1996 to 2004,
he also worked in the Jinjiang branch office of the China Life Insurance
Company Limited (FBIASRB AR AT ELZXAF) as the general
manager of the sales department, where he was recognised as pioneer
of sales and marketing (‘& $41Z£T) from 1998 to 2000 and outstanding
supervisor (fBF53 ) for the year 2002. He joined the Group on 1 March
2004 as the manager of the group ordering department of the Group. Mr.
Chen is the brother- in- law of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, an executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Huang Ming Hai (B 83854 ), aged 48, is the financial controller of
the Group's brand FBf LILANZ. He completed an advanced programme
of excellent corporate operation and management (Sl ELL
EIE S M RIBIHMEID from the School of Continuing Education of
Tsinghua University (FZERZHEEHE £657), a programme in financial
management at the Adult Education College of Huagiao University (215
KER AZE EF5%), an advanced programme for head of finance (81 7548
= A AHE T RREE) at Commerce College of Huagiao University (ZEf& A
B ERT), and a distance-learning professional programme in accounting
for higher education of adults (XA B S A St EH 2 1K RE) at the
Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University Continuing Education School (1&
EEMAER AHEEFR). He joined the Group on 24 April 1995.

Mr. Liang Chao (i 554 ), aged 61, is the vice president of Lilang (China)
Co, Ltd. (“Lilang China"). He graduated from Sichuan University (70| A E2)
with a master’s degree in business administration in 2003. He joined the
Group in 2004 and is responsible for management of distributors.

Mr. Chen Hong Sheng (BR RS 5E 4 ), aged 49, is the executive
president of Lilang China. He graduated from Anhui University (Z &K
E2) with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1995. He joined the Group in 2001
and is responsible for brand management, product development and
consignment operations.

Mr. Liu Guang Liang (8|3 52 £ %), aged 41, is the vice president of Lilang
China. He graduated from Jiangxi Institute of Fashion Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Design in 2004. He joined the Group in 2005 and is
responsible for the operation of the business of “&IJES LESS IS MORE”

BRAESRE RF4m REEEEE
BEPARES - N —TTTFLARERNE
JEDE R W HITHEREEREE - W
TEERFERBFERPUEBHERRD
SEHEEREEESARIEMENL - B
—H/NFE_ZTNF - REBTHERE
SRR - B AN ARFEZZTN
FRARFREASRBRERAREIX
NEETHERSELE e - ANN\EF
E_TTEFEZRNARTREHEEN
R-FZ_FRIR/BEEE - TR _-F
%@ﬁzﬂ—EMAﬁﬁﬁ%E%EE%
FEHERAIR - REERARRRPMITESE
REFENRB S

BB AE  RF48E AEEREF
BRLILANZ | MBA S48 ES - (RIS RFEKRE
BEHNEERMEBCELCEERSIR
RIHEIE - EBEREBNAHE BRI
EERE  EGASZHERNMKEHMS
%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ AR @I B RR B AL
BERNEASSHE QTEHEIFR
B R —hANAAFHA-_+THAMNASE
o

RBELE  BHF615% - RANL(PE)FR

RE([FBHPE DRI - FR_FF

“HEEXNMIIRE B THEEELT

E"LL c RN -_TTNEMAKE  BEE
7 $HE

BREB KL IRWF4955 AFEFPE
WMITRY - FR—NMNAFEERLZRK
B EBGBEEELEN FR_ZET—F
IMASE BEMEEE  AEERER
SHEETE o

%IJ"E%E WE4 5% BFEBFEDHE

BE - BRI FREERNTARKS
Bm FEERFEBLERN - R _BTRF
IASEE - §F2E [ F|BEBLESS IS MORE
EY X



Report of the Directors
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The Directors are pleased to present the Annual Report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is domiciled in
Hong Kong and has its registered office at Suite 3402, 34/F, Lippo Centre,
Tower One, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong. The Group’s principal place of
business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of branded
menswear and related accessories in the PRC. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 11 to 33 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this directors'report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year
is as follows:
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2023 2022
—E=-= B S—
(D ET RGN SR EIN  Percentage of the Group's Total
HEBRERS L HEEZEASL

Sales Purchases Sales Purchases

HE PREE tHE g
The largest customer BAEF 4.9% 4.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate  AASAZFE A 15.0% 14.4%
The largest supplier BAHLRER 5.1% 5.3%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A {ER A EE AT 18.9% 21.1%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the latest five financial years is set out on page 204 of the Annual Report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to 203 of the Annual
Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit for the year, before dividends, of RMB530,427,000 (2022:
RMB448,061,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents (2022: HK13 cents) per ordinary share
and a special interim dividend of HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) per ordinary
share were paid on 22 September 2023. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK13 cents (2022: HK9 cents) per ordinary
share and a special final dividend of HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB12,829,000 (2022: RMB2,139,000).

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets) are set out in notes 12 to 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK FACILITIES

Particulars of bank facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 and at any time up to the
date of this Annual Report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wang Liang Xing
Mr.Wang Cong Xing
Mr. Pan Rong Bin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dong Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Cai Rong Hua
Mr. Hu Cheng Chu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr.Lu Hong Te
Mr. Lai Shixian
Mr. Zhang Shengman
(appointed on 17 March 2023)
Mr. Nie Xing (resigned on 1 June 2023)

Details of the Directors' biographies are set out on pages 98 to 108 of the
Annual Report.
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In accordance with article 105(a) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Hu Cheng Chu and Mr. Wang Cong Xing will retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 109 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Wang Jun Hong, Mr. Wang Zhi Yong, Prof. Liao Jianwen and Prof. Jiang Zhan
will retire from the Board at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules:
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Name of
Group company/ Number of Approximate
associated corporation Capacity/nature Number underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder AEEREAT/ 1% of interest of shares shares shareholding
RREMH EEER 5/ REMtE RIEE HBERAEE REBNE DL
(Note 1) (Notes 1 &2)
(Pi3E1) (FisE1 R2)
Mr.Wang Dong Xing The Company Beneficial owner 22,950,000 shares (L) - 1917%
FRERAE YN EEHAA 22950000 RAR (5 (1)
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 2,550 shares of - 26.28%%
Limited (‘Xiao Sheng EaEaA US$1.00 each (L)
International’) (Note 3) 2550 R BRREE
BEERERAR 1.00 ETTEIRE U
(THEFHEIRR 1) (Bt 3)
The Company Interest of spouse 1,448,000 shares (L) - 0.121%
YN B 1,448,000 R AR5 (L)
Mr.Wang Liang Xing The Company Beneficial owner 22,950,000 shares (L) - 1.917%
IRERAE YN ERBEAA 22,950,000 &A1 (L)
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 2,550 shares of - 26.28%%
(Note 3) ERBEAA US$1.00 each (1)
BT (BT 3) 2550 R ARE(E
100X TTHRR (1)
Mr.Wang Cong Xing The Company Beneficial owner 22,950,000 shares (L) - 1.917%
TRERE YN EEEAA 22,950,000 & B1A ()
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 2,550 shares of - 26.28%%
(Note 3) BEEAA US$1.00 each (1)
BT (K5t 3) 2550 REREE
100 FTTERRL
Mr. Cai Rong Hua The Company Beneficial owner 1,810,000 shares (L) - 0.151%
BRERL YN EEHBA 1,810,000 A&7 (L)
The Company Settlor of 7,200,000 shares (L) - 0601%
ADFE adiscretionary 7,200,000 B3 (L)
trust (Note 4)
PREFRTA (MEE4)
Xiao Sheng International Settlor of 800 shares of - 8247%
(Note 3) a discretionary US$1.00 each (L)
B BIRR (F13E3) trust (Note 4) 800 R SR E(E
PRETRTA (MEE4) 1.00 ETTHIRE L)
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Name of
Group company/ Number of Approximate
associated corporation Capacity/nature Number underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder AEEREAT/ 1% of interest of shares shares shareholding
RREMH EEER 5/ REMtE RIEE HBERAEE REBNE DL
(Note 1) (Notes 1&2)
(Pi3E1) (FisE1 R2)
Mr.Hu Cheng Chu The Company Beneficial owner 4,500,000 shares (L) - 0.376%
HRNEE YN EEHAA 4,500,000 A& 17 (1)
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 500 shares of - 5.155%
(Note 3) ERBEA US$1.00 each (L)
BETHEIRR (PHfEE3) 500 kB REE
1.00 ETTEIRE (L)
Mr. Pan Rong Bin The Company Beneficial owner 3,171,000 shares (L) - 0.264%
REWILE YN ERlEAA 3,171,000 AR ()
The Company Interest of spouse - 150,000 shares (L) 0013%
YN AfBfEzs 150,000 A& 17 (1)
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 300 shares of - 3.093%
(Note 3) ERBEAA US$1.00 each (1)
BT (BT 3) 300 R EREE
100X TTHRR (L)
Mr.Wang Jun Hong The Company Beneficial owner 522,000 shares (L) 350,000 shares (L) 007%
FRERE NG BHEEAA 522000BA () 350000 BB L7 (1)
Mr.Wang Zhi Yong The Company Beneficial owner 2,517,000 shares (L) 350,000 shares (L) 024%
TEBERL NG BHEERA 2517000 1) 350,000 BAR LR (1)
The Company Interest of spouse 760,000 shares (L) 0.06%
NG FiEEs 760,000 &A1 (L)
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Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2. The interests in underlying shares represent the interests in share options granted
pursuant to the Company'’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments”in this report.

3. Xiao Sheng International is owned as to 26.289% by each of Mr. Wang Dong Xing,
Mr. Wang Liang Xing and Mr. Wang Cong Xing, 8.247% by Jia Fa International
Limited (note 4), 5.155% by Mr. Hu Cheng Chu, 3.093% by Mr. Pan Rong Bin,
2.062% by Mr. Chen Wei Jin, 0.515% by each of Mr. Xu Tian Min, Ms. Wang Cui
Rong and Ms. Wang Hui Rong, 0.412% by each of Mr. Wang Ming Hong and Mr.
Wang Ming Jie and 0.206% by Mr. Wang Qiao Xing.

4. The interests of Mr. Cai Rong Hua in 7,200,000 shares of the Company and 800
shares of Xiao Sheng International are held through Jia Fa International Limited
("JFIL"). The entire issued share capital of JFIL is held by Vistra Trust (Singapore)
Pte. Limited in its capacity as the trustee of an irrevocable discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Cai as the settlor. The beneficiaries under the trust are Mr. Cai and his
family members. Mr. Cai is deemed to be interested in these shares as the settlor
of the discretionary trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which was recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had otherwise been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save in connection with any share options to subscribe for the shares
of the Company which may be granted to any of the Directors or chief
executives under the Company’s share option scheme as detailed in the
paragraph headed "Equity-settled Share-Based Payments”in this report, at
no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or chief executives of the Company (including their spouse
and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, the persons or corporations (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

R-ZE-=ZF+-_A=+—H " BRARQA
B9 M AB R R 19 R B AN A R BB IR 5
MG IEHIE B IER AT EE LA
MEDSIARMA LTS EE (WIHES
AAREBITHAB)IAT ¢

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares shareholding
RERERE B EntE RGBE REMAOB DL
(Note 1)
(PtsE1)
Xiao Sheng International Beneficial owner 682,816,000 shares (L) (Note 2)
BT HER ERHEAA 682,816,000 B A7) (L) (B7E2) 57.02%
Ming Lang Investments Limited
(“Ming Lang Investments”) Beneficial owner 74,905,000 shares (L) (Note 3)
HEIREBRAR ([$AR0RE ) EmBEBA 74,905,000 A& A% 17 (L) (Bf3E 3) 6.26%

Notes:

m

the letter "L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the Company.

These shares were held by Xiao Sheng International. Xiao Sheng International
is owned as to 26.289% by each of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Wang Liang Xing
and Mr. Wang Cong Xing, 8.247% by Jia Fa International Limited (note 4), 5.155%
by Mr. Hu Cheng Chu, 3.093% by Mr. Pan Rong Bin, 2.062% by Mr. Chen Wei Jin,
0.515% by each of Mr. Xu Tian Min, Ms. Wang Cui Rong and Ms. Wang Hui Rong,
0.412% by each of Mr. Wang Ming Hong and Mr. Wang Ming Jie and 0.206% by
Mr.Wang Qiao Xing.

These shares were held by Ming Lang Investments. Ming Lang Investments is
owned as to 26.289% by each of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Wang Liang Xing and
Mr. Wang Cong Xing, 8.247% by Jia Fa International Limited (note 4), 5.155% by
Mr. Hu Cheng Chu, 3.093% by Mr. Pan Rong Bin, 2.062% by Mr. Chen Wei Jin,
0.515% by each of Mr. Xu Tian Min, Ms. Wang Cui Rong and Ms. Wang Hui Rong,
0.412% by each of Mr. Wang Ming Hong and Mr. Wang Ming Jie and 0.206% by
Mr.Wang Qiao Xing.

) EXFE[RRBEEALA ARG
78 -

@) ZERMBEABERSEE - BABKAS
FTRESRE  TREAERTRERES
B A 26289% « FEBEEARAF (M
4) G 8.247% ~ BRI S S 5.155%
BEW R LA 3093% « R ELREHR
2062% ~ ST ARRSAE - FERLZLIRTR
WL &A% A 0515% * Wang Ming Hong
524 K Wang Ming Jie 58 4= & BB 0.412%
LAR FT9 2 5 A ¥ 0.206% ©

€) ZERMBBLRERH - BT REAH
FTRESRE  TREAERTRERES
B A 26289% « FEEEARAF (M
4) B 8.247% ~ BHFN W) SCEHER 5.155%
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WL & B %A 0515% + Wang Ming Hong
54 K Wang Ming Jie JE 4= & BB 0.412%
LAR FT5 2 5 A1 0.206% ©
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(4) The entire issued share capital of Jia Fa International Limited is held by Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited in its capacity as the trustee of an irrevocable
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai Rong Hua as the settlor. The beneficiaries
under the trust are Mr. Cai and his family members. Mr. Cai is deemed to be
interested in these shares as the settlor of the discretionary trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO.

REFBERLE T _=FFRK

(4) FRERER ARSI D EITRAR
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited JA7N AT 48
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= e
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year. The
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Wang Liang Xing, Mr. Wang Cong Xing,
Xiao Sheng International and Ming Lang Investments (the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
confirmed to the Company that he/it has complied with the non-compete
undertaking given by them to the Company on 4 September 2009. The
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
status of compliance and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking
and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been complied
with throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the "2019 Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Shareholders
in the extraordinary general meeting on 23 April 2019 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the Group.
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Eligible participants of the 2019 Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company, its subsidiaries
or invested entity; (i) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested
entity; (i) any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(iv) any person or entity that provides design, research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested entity; (v) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity; (vi) any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of the Group or any invested entity;
(vii) any other group or classes of participants who have contributed or
may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the Group; and (viii) any
company wholly-owned by one or more eligible participants as referred to
in (i) to (vii) above.

Subject to the earlier termination of the 2019 Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the 2019 Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on 23 April 2019.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of options
granted under the 2019 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee within any 12-month period, is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options (excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed) which
have been or may be granted under the 2019 Share Option Scheme and
any share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
119,748,491 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at 23 April 2019 (the date of approval of the 2019 Share Option Scheme)
and as at the end of reporting period and the date of approval of this
report. The maximum number of shares which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options to be granted under the 2019 Share Option Scheme
and the options granted under any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to be granted
by the Company or any other member of the Group in any given financial
year of the Company shall not exceed 5% of the Shares in issue as at the
beginning of such financial year. The maximum number of shares to be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2019 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, which period may commence from the
date of the offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade
in one or more board lots of the shares on the date of the offer for the
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.
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On 3 July 2020, the Company granted options to subscribe for an AZZE_FFLA=R ARFRE-Z
aggregate 11,500,000 shares of the Company to its senior management and —ﬂ$5§h$g FElmAERE EEJE&EE\
employees under the 2019 Share Option Scheme. The closing prices of the B A ££11,500,000 AR EIRE S © AA

Company's shares immediately before the date of grant and on the date of X R BEE&K H B EIfT R & H A Hﬂﬂ'\]”ﬁl
grant were HK$4.23 and HK$4.31 respectively. Details of the options granted MEDANFA23BTRA3NET - KIHE

are set out below: IRIEFIBESIAT -
Number of options
BREHE
Asat
Asat 31 December
Name or category 1January 2023 2023
of participants i3 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed WoEZzZE Exerciseprice  Exercise period
SREN A ER -A-H ERd g [Bhii A% TZA=t-H 5 i
Mr. ChenWei Jin (note 1(a)) HKS431 Note 2(3)
REERE (W 16) 433000 - - - - 433000 3BT RG]
Mr.Wang Jun Hong (note 1(b) HKS431 Note 2(b)
FhREE (M 10) 350000 - - - - 350000 38T ()
Mr.Wang ZhiYong (note 1(c) HKS431 Note 2(0)
TEERE (Hit10) 350000 - - - - 350000 13187 Hizkop)
M. Chen Zni Mei (note 1(d) HKS431 Note 2(o)
RiignL (M 1) 150000 - - - - 150000 3187 i)
Employees HKS431 Note 2(¢)
E& 9669000 - - - 95,000 9574000 43187 H&20
10952000 95,000 10857000
Notes: BfRE -
1 Options granted to associates (as defined in the Listing Rules): 1 BETHEA(ERRLTRA) 2 ERE :
a. Mr. Chen Wei Jin, the head of the group ordering department of the ANER AR AT I P AR BE PR 4 o ok

Group, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wang Dong Xing, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

b. Mr. Wang Jun Hong, general manager of Lilang China, is the son of
Mr. Wang Dong Xing, a non-executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 5 February 2024.

C Mr.Wang Zhi Yong, the sales channel director of Lilang China’s marketing
center, is the son of Mr. Wang Liang Xing, an executive Director and
a controlling shareholder of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 5 February 2024.

d. Ms. Chen Zhi Mei, the assistant to the head of the sales and marketing
department of the Group, is the wife of Mr. Pan Rong Bin, an executive
Director of the Company.
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2 Exercisable periods of options granted:
a. The options are exercisable by the grantee during the period

commencing from the day immediately following the expiry of the two
year period after the date of grant, and ending on the day falling ten
years after the date of grant, during which, (i) up to 129,000 options
granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of the third year after
the date of grant; (i) subject to (i), up to 130,000 options granted may
be exercised on or prior to the end of the fourth year after the date
of grant; and (iii) subject to (i) and (ii), all outstanding options may be
exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the
options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

b. The options are exercisable by the grantees during the period
commencing from the day immediately following the expiry of the two
year period after the date of grant, and ending on the day falling ten
years after the date of grant, during which, (i) up to 30% of the options
granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of the third year after
the date of grant; (i) subject to (i), up to 60% of the options granted
may be exercised on or prior to the end of the fourth year after the date
of grant; and (i) subject to (i) and (ii), all outstanding options may be
exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the
options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

C. The options are exercisable by the grantees during the period
commencing from the day immediately following the expiry of the two
year period after the date of grant, and ending on the day falling ten
years after the date of grant, during which, (i) up to 2,934,000 options
granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of the third year after
the date of grant; (ii) subject to (i), up to 2,979,000 options granted may
be exercised on or prior to the end of the fourth year after the date
of grant; and (i) subject to (i) and (ii), all outstanding options may be
exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the
options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted is provided
in note 1(0)(ii). As at 31 December 2023, the total grant date fair value of the
outstanding share options, all being unvested, measured in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(0)(ii) to the financial statements,
amounted to RMB9,738,000. Assuming that all the options outstanding as
at 31 December 2023 are exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of
HK$46,794,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government authorities
for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Wang Dong Xing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B

to the shareholders of China Lilang Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lilang
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 133 to 203, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZEENRE 2

Revenue recognition

AR

B & IR AL 3 R EaT BRMAL 1)

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 1(r).

The key audit matter
HRETTSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAIMET WA EEZEE

Revenue of sales to distributors and consignees principally
comprises sales of menswear goods, including tops, pants
and accessories.

MY HERAHEHEENMA T ZERHESKEM
(B E3R - #EMERY) -

Every year, the Group enters into a framework distribution
agreement with each distributor and a consignment
agreement with each consignee and manufactures or
sources its products in accordance with the terms of
separate purchase orders.
EEEBFREEDHBILERS HIBRIEZER
HEE LRI - WIRBREIBRIREET B IR AEES
REEEM -

For sales to distributors, once the products are delivered to
the location designated by the distributor which is the point
at which the control of the menswear goods is considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and the point at
which revenue is recognised.

MREDHBIELNHEENS - —BEEMXNEDHEE
ERMEE - BREMNVEHRLRNERASEERS
DIHE - MESE SR ULREREA -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

BB FHE W AR ITH R IEFBRA TSR

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

FHEE B R AW A MER RO RE 52 A BF 12 I MU RR
it B SEERRR

inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including the
terms of delivery, rebate and sales return to assess
if the Group's revenue recognition criteria were in
accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

RS ) R R HE R L% - T AR
ERXGIER(BIERN - @40 K HEREFRK) -
AFHE B S B ARERIRERIRITH G ER

TEE B -
EKRER

inspecting, on a sample basis, whether revenue
transactions around the financial year end had
been recognised in the appropriate financial period
by comparing the transactions selected with
goods delivery notes or other relevant underlying
documents;
FHRLLBATER HERE T B A MAER S -
BieEM B FREARGONVAR S EEENE
2B IR B RERR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZEENRE 2

Revenue recognition

AR

B & IR AL 3 R e BEMAL 1)

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy note 1(r).

The key audit matter
HRETTSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAIMET WA EEZEE

For sales through consignees, once the products are sold
to end users by the consignee, the control of the goods is
considered to have been transferred in accordance with
the terms of consignment agreements and revenue is
recognised at that point. The Group receives confirmations
of the transaction amounts from the consignees on a
monthly basis.

B BRERELNEEN S

 Em— BEBRERE

THmAPE - BYREGIEEEE SERBREBR
fFRER  MERESNEREAWA - EXEEFARK

WHHRERX S RENERE -

We identified the recognition of revenue of sales to
distributors and consignees as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation
of the timing of revenue recognition by management to
meet specific targets or expectations.
HRBAREEBHEGT —BIEZRBER - ABFEE
BRERTEDNFTE B RS H R MU AFER R & ) A
FERRE - E IR IR RI R 2 35 7 M 3H 7 85 6 A M A B
RAFRETEIE -

identifying significant credit notes issued and sales
returns from the sales ledger after the year end and
inspecting relevant underlying documents to assess
if the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial period in
accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

BRINFEREHNHERER S A B AR RHEY
TIELEERE - WinERBEXM - AHEBR
R ARE R ERNEE M AR RIEIRITH
SEHERIREALR

obtaining external confirmations of the value of sales
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023
and outstanding trade receivable balances as at that
date directly from distributors, on a sample basis;
HERSDHBARMENGSERE T _=F1+_A
=t —RHIEFERNHER S RNZ B HARYKE
BB E 5 R AE RSN IR E

inspecting sales journals during the financial year
that met certain risk-based criteria and comparing
details of these journals with the relevant underlying
documents; and

BEVRFEANEE TRREENHE D
WS LD ﬁM%%ﬁH%K# EITLLE |

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period, enquiring
of management the reasons for such adjustments
and comparing the details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation.
BERREHANMELERANERFHRAE - @A
MEEEARAENRE - WATHBFIEEME
RS ETTLLR o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZEENRE 2

—To=sER

Valuation of inventories

FEHE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accou

B & IR AT 16 R 2ETBEML10) °

nting policy note 1(i).

The key audit matter
HRETTSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAIMET WA EEZEE

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
In the event that net realisable value falls below cost, the
difference is taken as write-down of inventories.
FERESBEGFEE VMR AKAE] R FEPRIE
EHIER o WA SIFEERKDS - BHEEZHEEEEFE
HoRLEE T2 -

Sales of menswear goods to end customers can be volatile
due to changing fashion trends, consumer demand
and economic conditions. The Group organises various
promotional activities to accelerate the selling of past-season
inventories. Accordingly, the actual future selling prices of
certain items of inventory may fall below their costs.
HRFERRITEY  HEEF KRBT EEE
ALHEFHESREMAIELIRKY - EEERTS
TRIEIHES) - MRFHEBFER - At - ETEFERB
AR ERE B ENREKR -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

BB HEFEAER TR EFERBA TSE

assessing whether the calculation of the provision
for inventories at the reporting date was consistent
with the Group’s inventory provision policy by
recalculating the provision based on the relevant
parameters in accordance with the Group's inventory
provision policy and evaluating the Group's inventory
provision policy with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;
REEEEFERBBRRRRBBELHUENTE
B URMARSRE RN FERE1EE G R
BEEENTFEEBERERN  U2ERTNE
R ENESEENTERBHEEK

inspecting, on a sample basis, whether items in
the inventory report were classified within the
appropriate season by comparing the individual
inventory items with the underlying documents
which indicated the product season of the items;

B BERFEIE B EARME X (FEREE T
BEMEE) HMEREFEREANEARS

EDREEENTE :
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Valuation of inventories

FEHE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accou

B2 & IR AT 16 R EETBEML () °

nting policy note 1(i).

The key audit matter
HRETTSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAIMET WA EEZEE

Management considers several factors in determining the
appropriate level of inventory provisions, including product
season of inventory, sales history at normal prices and
discounted prices, and the channels available for selling
past-season inventories.
ERERNETHENGFERBKRKIFEETETEE
BRFEERTE  ERERTINENHEELRENANA
FEFHHERE -

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter as significant judgement is required to be exercised
by management in determining the net realisable value
of inventories, which involves predicting the amounts of
inventory which will be sold in different channels and the
discounts to offer in order to sell these inventories. These
predictions can be inherently uncertain.

AR EEERNEEFENAERFERFTEELERH
b BRSRIEASEBATRREHENTERRAL
REHZEFEEMRENTN - BB AZNFEGE
REREAFE - ZTRAERE LT HEE -

performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying value of inventories at the end of the
previous reporting period with the actual price for
their sales transactions during the reporting period,
on a sample basis, to assess the historical accuracy of
management’s assessment of inventory write-downs
and whether there is any indication of management
bias;

BRI BEER E—RERRNREERR
THNHER SN ERERETEPER - AT
HEREERENETFENRNERERERAE
MRRBERNFEERERR

inspecting the Group's inventory provision policy by
comparing management’s prediction of the amounts
of inventory which will be sold in different channels
and the discounts to offer in order to sell these
inventories with historical sales of inventories and
discount offered for the current and prior years; and
BRHBEREEHREBTRAREHENTFES
BN RE L ZEFSARHAIT N TRR R
FREMBEFENFEHECHEMAARHENT
- REEEENFEREER &

enquiring of management about any expected
changes in plans for promotional activities to
accelerate the selling of past-season inventories and
comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying value
of inventories at the reporting date with the actual
price for their sales transactions subsequent to the
reporting date.
AREEERRAINRHEETETFNRIEEE
SR EMTEE S - WHERLELERFERRER
HIM BRI EERE B REHER SN ERER -




Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYRZBEHRE @)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

RE B R AR R H A AT R & LA
HER

EXRHHEMENEE - HUEHBET
HRFBRANAEEN  ETBREEH
BIRER LRI BEN RS o

BAE R AP BHRRERNBERALTRE
HiER - RATP TSR ERERER
HVEERE S oM

R PIHFE B RROBIME - HAM
METEMEEMEN  ElBREREE
Hip R E R RBR A M B RA B MESE
AHERTEBNEMFEERTAHUTF
FHRBRERRANIFR

ERFEME AT I HERMRRUE
i ERMFEEREREL - BIHRMBRSE
ZFE - EMIE - AL EEERSE -

EERGAMBERRARENER

E=RREREER ST ENZ B SR M
B B B B 75 i o 2R BN Y B BB 2 R 1))
MR BEREREEEM T B NERS MR
* o WHERRA/EEREMERROEE
NEERNGF R MERMEREER
BT LB ARREEA R -

ERBRAMBREE EFARENE
BEEERFERLEMRN  BERBERTH
BESELEABNEEURERFERL
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BERZESWDESRTEEESEMNK
HREBENELL -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

RBAHES RS M BRRAERE
HEE

BRNEESHGEAMBEHRREBRE T
T B ERRF S AR T G 2 B K #5 SRR
AREEERE  YHABREERMERD
ZEEN RS o RIPHE R B BACR M H AR
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& o BPIETRARENABTEEIAE
AT BBEREEBERRE -
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SRR PR TP FE RS AR BE TE 3R o SHERBRR AT
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L B8 Y8 =K [ AR 2R AT RE RS B AR & RIS ¥R
ERERBEZFRA M B MR LOEHE
RTE - AIBRREERX -
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RIFFEREREE - AT :

w R AN RF G RS R RF SR SR RR T B 2
AP BRRFEEKNERRML
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Hin Pan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2024
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REABHARAT T EEH
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEeBRBERHMEEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi) B2 = F = =F 1= A =+—HIFFE (UARKBEN)
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
liEss ARETT ARETIT
Revenue A 3 3,543,795 3,086,190
Cost of sales HEMRA (1,836,960) (1,665,975)
Gross profit EX 1,706,835 1,420,215
Other net income H AU A FHE 4 51,052 71,546
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DA (957,269) (791,714)
Administrative expenses TEFRY (177,146) (178,850)
Other operating expenses H A& (12,829) (2139)
Profit from operations KR 610,643 519,058
Net finance income A A FEE 5 47,172 27,728
Profit before taxation R A0 A 6 657,815 546,786
Income tax FRriS%t 7(a) (127,388) (98,725)
Profit for the year FERE 530,427 448,061
Other comprehensive income for the year & E H 12 H UK
Item that are or may be reclassified HESNEER28E
subsequently to profit or loss: B 2EH
Exchange differences on translation of BEARRBRPEARL
financial statements of the Company and AL ([ E ) AbIE SN
subsidiaries outside the mainland of the o)== E e 0
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) RERE 1,908 (622)
Total comprehensive income for theyear FE2EUNZEEE 532,335 447439
Earnings per share RZR 11
Basic (cents) EA (B 44.30 37.42
Diluted (cents) 58 OBl 44.30 3742

The notes on pages 138 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 26(c).

%1382 203 B MMz Tt E B S 3RE A48
B8 o SEEE R ERERA R AR
IR EO RS BB RN T 5 26(c) °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi) &

B=F=

=FFA=1—HUAREREL)

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR®TTT ARETIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB k&G 12 1,193,679 1,212,944
Investment properties LB 13 259,989 271,900
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 248,977 250,147
Intangible assets | AE 15 3,728 4679
Deposits for purchases of plant and BEREREEE 2
equipment 10,352 9,834
Lease rental deposits HEzHeke 14 41,650 41625
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRRITER 18 931,878 200,000
Fixed deposits held at banks RITE HAFR 19(a) 1,090,491 650,000
Deferred tax assets LTI E = 24(b) 44,423 64,821
3,825,167 2,705,950
Current assets REEE
Inventories "E 16 825,670 885,142
Trade and other receivables FEUTE 5 BR 3k K EAth R UL
IR 17 733,041 842,625
Prepaid income tax TESERS R 24(a) 1,880 2,643
Pledged bank deposits BHERRITER 18 39,685 81,227
Cash and cash equivalents Re RESEEY 19(a) 1,077,225 960,114
2,677,501 2,771,751
Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans RITER 20 289,862 249,499
Trade and other payables FES B 5 BRF K E A FE LSS
IE 21 1,008,629 887,818
Lease liabilities HEaE 2 75,306 75,241
Contract liabilities aR&E 23 25,046 29,346
Current tax payable FERTENERTR IR 24(a) 223,880 197,179
1,622,723 1,439,083
Net current assets REBEEFRE 1,054,778 1,332,668
Total assets less current liabilities EELABERREBER 4,879,945 4,038,618
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position continueq)

FEPBMRRE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi) Bt 2 —F = =F 1= =+—HIL F/E (UARK B E)

2023 2022
—E-= T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARBTR ARETIT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans RITE 20 853,348 187,027
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 24(b) 10,453 12,675
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 48,752 56,685
912,553 256,387
Net assets EEFE 3,967,392 3,782,231
Capital and reserves EXRR#E
Share capital [N 26(a) 105,517 105,517
Reserves fEtE 3,861,875 3,676,714
Total equity A 3,967,392 3,782,231

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March
2024.

Mr. Wang Dong Xing Mr. Wang Liang Xing
EFREXRE FREXE
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
E TTECAEE,

The notes on pages 138 to 203 form part of these financial statements.

R-_E_NEZA+N\BEEESHAER

RRETIE -

Mr. Wang Cong Xing

FTHRELE
Executive Director

HITEF

£ 138 BE 203 AWM RE T F I TEHREKR Y

HERCER Y
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RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi) &,

2-F =

FH—A=1—HILFR(KARESE)

HERCER Y

Share Share Statutory Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital ~ premium feserve reserve reserve profits equity
K& RHEE  teRE 0 EARE  ENRR  RERR  B&ER
(Note26(a))  (Note 26(d)(i))  (Note26(d)(il)  (Note26(d)iii)  (Note26(d)(iv))
(Riz¥26(a)  (KrzE26())  (HYEE 26(i) (PireE 26(d)i) (FEEE 26(d)(iv)
Note RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000
i ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETRE ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%-A—H 105517 31411 2709% 2843 (33,000 321023 3673388
Changesin equityfor 2022 2
Profitforthe year FREAE - - - - - 448061 448061
Other comprehensive income FEEZENG
forthe year - - - - (622 - (622)
Total comprehensive incorne FE2ANGES
forthe year - - - - (622 448061 447439
Fquity-seted share-based payment. IR BEREARIBE &R 26(0)(i) - - - PRIE! - - 233
Dividends approvedinrespectofthe B HUE F—EERE
previous year 26(0) - - - - - (156,649) (156,649)
Dividends deciared inrespectofthe  EERAEERE
current year 26(0) - - - - - (184.260) (184.260)
Appropriation o stautory reserve. EREETERTE - - 83) - - 832 -
At31 December 2022and RZBZZE+-A=1-ARk
1 January 2023 “3-=F-f-H 105,517 31411 271,826 30,556 (33622) 3,376,543 3,782,231
Changesin equityfor 2023 TECCEREREY:
Profitforthe year FREFIE - - - - - 530427 530427
Other comprehensive income EEEM2ENE
forthe year - - - - 1,908 - 1,908
Total comprehensive incorne FE2ANGAE
forthe year - - - - 1,908 530,427 532,335
Fquity-seted share-based payment. MR BEREARIEE &R 2610 - - - 1,361 - - 1,361
Dividends approvedinrespectofthe BB F—FEMRE
previous year 26(0) - - - - - (148,630) (148,630))
Dividends deciared inrespectofthe  EERAEERE
current year 26(0) - - - - - (199,905) (199,905)
Appropriation to statutory eserve E%Eﬁiﬁ & - - 1,083 - - (1,083) -
At31 December 2023 \B=E+-f=1-H 105517 31411 272,869 31917 (31714 3557392 3967392
The notes on pages 138 to 203 form part of these financial statements. F 138 BE 203 BRI M mERA



FEFBERLT T =FFR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in Renminbi) B2 = F = =F 1= A =+—HIFFE (UARKBEN)
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR®TR ARETIT
Operating activities KEEE
Cash generated from operations AT TEAR S 19(b) 1,182,492 738,956
Tax paid BERAHE 24(a) (81,748) (85,265)
Net cash generated from operating REERMESHESFHE
activities 1,100,744 653,691
Investing activities BETE
Payments for purchases of property, plant ~ BEEW% - HE &R EHN
and equipment (NE-A (131,714) (378,532)
(Payments of )/net proceeds from lease rental A& 2 &S H)
deposits (R30S EF5 (25) 2,671
Payments for purchases of intangible assets  B& B 72 & EE R (2,411) (1,776)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand H&E¥Z - BiE M RET
equipment 1S3IE 724 353
Placement of fixed bank deposits with GFARHBE=EAED
maturity over three months HRITIE BiTF K (1,099,000) (850,000)
Interest income received B B A 20,461 52,216
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMAREFH (1,211,965) (1,175,068)
Financing activities RUESEE
ENHEEsHE 2 ANE 3
Capital element of lease rentals paid b 19(0) (98,279) (95,484)
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE RS FIE 19(0) 1,126,800 632,290
Repayment of bank loans EERIBITER 19() (439,290) (271,120)
BENEECHE 2 MES
Interest element of lease rentals paid il 19(c) (5,777) (7,456)
Interest expense paid on bank loans ERITE A B (6,925) (7,754)
Dividends paid BARE 26(c) (348,535) (340,909)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing ~ BESEEIFIEL (FiA)
activities RE R 227,994 (90,433)
Net increase/(decreased) in cash and cash HE&RIREZEEY LI,
equivalents OR2) F8E 116,773 (611,810)
R—B—HWEEEK
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January REZEEY 960,114 1,571,619
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  JIMi&FE 22 % B i) 57 338 305
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R+=A=+—H#W
December RERREEEY 19(a) 1,077,225 960,114

The notes on pages 138 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
gy T EL

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB") and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of
material accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2 provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected
in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
rounded to the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised income and expense(except for foreign currency transaction
gain or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including construction in progress) are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the
date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements shorter of 5 years or remaining

term of the lease

= Plant and machinery 10 years
- Motor vehicles 8 years
- Office equipment 3 years
- Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Depreciation method, useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of investment
properties, less their estimated residual value, if any, on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life being no more than 40 years after the date of
completion.

Depreciation method, useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( LA ¥ 28 1i7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

Deprecation is calculated to write off the cost of items of right-of-use assets,
using the straight-line method over the unexpired term of leases as follows:

- Land use rights
- Properties leased for own use

50 years
1-5 years

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted for separately
from the right- of-use assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost (see
note 1(r)(ii) and 1(h)(i)). Any excess of the nominal value over the initial fair
value of the deposit is accounted for as additional lease payments made
and is included in the cost of right-of-use.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope
of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for
in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and met
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications, and recognised the
change in consideration as negative variable lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Leased assets (continued)
(i) As a lessee (continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The current portion of
long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

(i) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 1(r)(ii).

(9) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the
date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Computer software 5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
annually.
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B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits held at banks and trade
and other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls between the
contractual and expected amount.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following rates if the
effect is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
except for the following, which are measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date; and

= other financial instruments for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not

increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when measuring
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days past due.
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B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial assets’ credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial assets with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal

environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

= construction in progress;

= investment properties;

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets; and

- investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for example, head office building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Inventories (continued)

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write- down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

A right to recover returned goods is recognised for the right to recover
products from customers sold with a right of return. It is measured in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(r).

(j) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue (see note
1(r). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(k)).

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are initially measured at their transaction price. Trade receivables that
contain a significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see note 1(h)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
)] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and other short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(h)().

(m)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Refund liabilities arising from rights of returns are recognised in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(r).

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

(o) Employee benéefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(o) Employee benéefits (continued)

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans (continued)

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees of the Group is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date using
applicable option-pricing models, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On the
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(p) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Income tax (continued)

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustments to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill; and

- those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
separately in relation to its lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in
the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability
of future taxable profits improves.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is
expected to be reimbursed by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale
of goods or the use by others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’'s business.

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and recognises
revenue on a gross basis. In determining whether the Group acts as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group's ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax and is after deduction of
any trade discounts, rebates and goods returns.

Payment terms and conditions vary by customers and are based on the
billing schedule established in the contracts or purchase orders with
customers, but the Group generally provides credit terms to customers
within 8 months upon customer acceptance. The Group takes advantage of
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing component as the
period of financing is 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

The Group typically offers customers that are not made-to-order rights of
return for a period of 7-20 days upon customer acceptance. Such rights of
return give rise to variable consideration. The Group uses an expected value
approach to estimate variable consideration based on the Group's current
and future performance expectations and all information that is reasonably
available. This estimated amount is included in the transaction price to the
extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is resolved. At the time of sale of goods, the Group recognises
revenue after taking into account adjustment to transaction price arising
from returns as mentioned above. A refund liability is recognised for the
expected returns, and is included in other payables. A right to recover
returned goods (included in inventories) and corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales are also recognised for the right to recover products from
customers. This right to recover returned goods is measured at the former
carrying amount of the inventory less any expected costs to recover goods
(including potential decreases in the value of the returned goods).

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

For sales to distributors, once the products are delivered to the location
designated by the distributor which is the point at which the control of the
goods is considered to have been transferred to the distributor and the
point at which revenue is recognised.

For sales through consignees, once the products are sold to end users
by the consignee, the control of the goods is considered to have been
transferred in accordance with the terms of consignment agreements and
revenue is recognised at that point.

For sales through retailing, once the products are sold to end users, the
control of the goods is considered to have been transferred and the point
at which revenue is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( WA R B Efz)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and other income

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The
“effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest income, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset
(when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

(b) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are initially recognised as deferred income and subsequently
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

(© Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance of
the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside mainland China is Hong Kong dollars and the functional currency
of the subsidiaries in mainland China is Renminbi.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which
the company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of operations outside mainland China are translated into
Renminbi at the average exchange rates for the year which approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland China, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in
which they are incurred.

(u) Research and development

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late in the development stage
of the project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are generally recognised
as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(a

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in ().

A person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.

(w)  Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

The Group operates in a single business segment, manufacturing and sale
of menswear and accessories in the PRC. Accordingly, no segmental analysis
is presented.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group, except for the amendments
to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction, the rest of the developments have not had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption
such that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences on initial recognition such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax assets and liabilities are required to be recognised
from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings
or other components of equity at that date. For all other transactions,
the amendments are applied to those transactions that occur after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not apply the initial recognition
exemption to lease transactions and had recognised the related deferred
tax, except that the Group previously determined the temporary difference
arising from a right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on a net
basis on the basis they arise from a single transaction. Following the
amendments, the Group has determined the temporary differences in
relation to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. The change
primarily impacts disclosures of components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities in note24(b), but does not impact the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as the related
deferred tax balances qualify for offsetting under IAS 12

3 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of branded
menswear and related accessories in the PRC. Revenue represents the sales
value of goods sold less returns, discounts, rebates and value added taxes
("VAT").

The Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities are
predominantly attributable to a single geographical region, which is
mainland China. Therefore, no analysis by geographical regions is presented.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue.
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in
note 29(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R SRR M EE 2)

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN R M & & 7)

3 REVENUE (CONTINUED) 3 A (48)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS AEEEMERFI B R A—FHARN
15 to its sales contracts that had an original expected duration of one year —~ HISHE & K& A BURR B 5 i 5 £ RIS 15 5%
or less and does not disclose information about remaining performance S 1RIRNEREE R A X BEEER

obligations as at 31 December 2022 and 2023. TR CFRZT-=F+-A=+—H
RFISRELOEE ©
4  OTHER NET INCOME 4 HRAFHE
2023 2022
—=E_-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Government grants (Note) BRATHE B (f9=E) 47,518 57,900
Rental income from investment properties wEMERS WA 4,642 3,638
Compensation income in respect of suppliers’ 75 BE 4L FE i SR 5RES(EURA
fault 1,782 2,569
Impairment losses on investment property REYZER R E RS
(Note 13) (Bt5E13) (4,820) =
Others HAth 1,930 7439
51,052 71,546
Note: Government grants included a total amount of RMB47,518,000 (2022: MiaE © BRAT B B 38 AN & B i b U5 A8 7 ) B Bk
RMB57,900,000) received from several local government authorities in the PRC i & A B T4 75 BT A R B AR R A
for the Group’s contribution to local economies, of which the entitlements were R #47518000c( T =——F: ARK
unconditional and under the discretion of the relevant authorities. 57,900,0007T) * EAF B EMGGR - I
A BB B IERTE
5  NETFINANCE INCOME 5 REWRAFEHE
2023 2022
—=E_-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Interest income on financial assets measured BB AT ENSREENF
atamortised cost BUA 81,752 52216
Net foreign exchange loss bE 5 BT R HEE (2,704) (6,542)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 19(c)) HAEaEFE (FF190) (5,777) (7,456)
Interest on bank loans (Note 19(c)) SRITEFFE (HIFE190) (26,099) (10,490)
47,172 27,728

161



162

China Lilang Limited

2023 Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN R M & & 7)

6

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

6

BR#E A A H

BBAFEE IR (GEA) :

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’OO_O
AR®TR ARETIT
(a) Staff costs: (a) BT :
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe - TERHMER] 377,160 334,095
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FCRINGT IR AR
retirement plans (Note 27) (FF3E27) 14,762 11,037
Equity-settled share-based payment LARR{D BT iR i 4 B
expense (Note 28) FasZ (it 28) 1,361 2313
393,283 347,445
(b)  Otheritems: (b) EHfEE :
Amortisation of intangible assets Em S ERE
(Note 15) (Bft&E15) 3,362 4,016
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and — BEYE - BERF
equipment (Note 12) &5 (FzE12) 116,474 111,269
— investment properties (Note 13) — &EY (HfEE13) 7,091 4,037
— right-of-use assets (Note 14) — (FRAEEE (FizE14) 96,932 109,980
Short term lease rental expenses RHAENHESRAX
(Note 19(d)) (FF7E19(d)) 8,360 9,773
Variable lease payments not included in TEEEHERETEN
the measurement of lease liabilities RE i ENp
(Note 19(d)) (Pf3E 19(d)) 26,786 14,191
Auditor's remuneration Z AN 3,480 3,450
Cost of inventories (Note (i) FFERA (FEE ) 1,836,960 1,665,975
Subcontracting charges (Note (ii)) HBeEA (i) 352,492 327,290
Research and development costs TFEE R AN 114,939 124,206
Gain on disposal of property, plant and BEMR © BB k&
equipment and right-of-use assets R {6 A ER W (3,053) (8,542)
Impairment losses on trade receivables e E 5 BRSO B RSB
(Note 17) (F=E17) 5,836 12,696
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ FREEE OREEE
impairment losses on right-of-use #&m|),/REEE
assets (Note 14) (Fff7E14) (2,456) 4,243

Notes: B -

0) Cost of inventories sold includes research and development costs, subcontracting (i) BEFEKABIE EXFTHEEE AR
charges, related staff costs, and depreciation totalling RMB579,377,000 (2022: BERA - DBEBR -  HESIKRARTE
RMB568,796,000) included in items disclosed above. B HARM579377000m( =T ==

ARHE568,796,0007T) ©
(ii) Subcontracting charges include service charges and auxiliary raw material costs (ii) AEERBEERN S BENREE R RE

payable to subcontractors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B ER BRI ()

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN R M & & 7)

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7 GEeBEERHEMEAKERA
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE B FT1S 8t
INCOME
(@)  Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and @) HFeBEmEkIMZEKRERAN
other comprehensive income represents: Fr8BiiE A T & I8 ¢
2023 2022
=== T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFIT
Current tax — PRC Corporate Income Tax BNVERFTE — R B (S FT1SHL
(Note 24(a)) (FI7E 24(a)) 109,212 105,035
Deferred tax (Note 24(b)) TRIEFAIE (M9 7E 24(b)) 18,176 (6,310)
127,388 98,725
Notes: MFeE -

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not
have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Taxation for the Group's PRC subsidiaries is calculated using the income tax rates
applicable to the subsidiaries. In accordance with the relevant PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, regulations and implementation guidance notes, one of the
subsidiaries has been granted Advanced and New Technology Enterprise status
which entitles the subsidiary to a reduced income tax rate at 15% for 2022
and 2023. In addition, two of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the Tibet
Autonomous Region of the PRC are entitled to a reduced income tax rate at 15%
for 2022 and 2023.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non- PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong
Kong tax resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the PRC company.
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from the Group's PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.

Deferred tax included PRC dividend withholding tax of RMB18,550,000 provided
for the year (2022: RMB15,750,000).

(iif)

RERASHSMRBRELES ([REBREX
BB MEPI &R - REEBAGRNE
MFRSEE R ABELE SRS

HRASERNEE S —_=F R =T ——
F+_A=1+—HLFETEEZRES
MEFHNERFRAE - R ERTEFE
FRE R (B4 o

AREBFHEMBRAGNKBANZENBA
RIFTER M SR ERE - BIEHEBES
BIEFREHE - GOIREMEIES - E4
— XM BAREERRFEMEEER -
BER B - —FEN T _=FZHFH15%
MBIRFTE AR o o - NREBME R
R B PO B A s A S A P B A A
A _—FR-_TF_=FZHI5%HEK
IEFTSRiRLEK -

RBEEMRSTUEREBHGD - EPE
EREFEFECZREREE KR
10% R B NEH - Lo - RIBEHER
b ER B E 0 BE BRI 2o B R ELARREA
B BERBBRGERIETEAR
[BEmEA A RI5HEEH 25%HA_ERRAR
R - ZEENBERGEAERETE
# B B A B 5% HIZ L o IRIBA LB
BB R RER RERERES —TT/\
F—A-BEMELNENEAESRE - B
BAREFIA R R (FRRME -

EIEF BB IEF AR A B AR B EH
ARE18550000 L (ZE=2F : ARK
15,750,000 7T ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b)

applicable tax rates:

meEEkEMEEKERA

K Fr St (&)

BERBERFENR AR XES

AR ERYVEER

2023 2022
—EC-=F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Profit before taxation BRBE AT FI B 657,815 546,786
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated  BRERRIFI BRI ZEFIE - LEE
at the rates applicable in the tax jurisdictions Mg A E R ERH X
concerned 8 162,959 130,756
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAIHIF ST BB R 5o 2 3,493 5,248
Tax effect of non-taxable income RATMAR TG & (111) (12)
Tax effect of tax concessions (Note 7(a)(iii)) B EBERT B2 (MRE 7)) (46,994) (49,637)
Over-provision in prior year L EEERE (10,509) (3,380)
Withholding tax effect of undistributed profits A EIMIB A RIAR D KR B & FIA
retained by PRC subsidiaries (Note 24(0)) BB E (M 24(0)) 18,550 15,750
Actual tax expense BRFIERY 127,388 98,725




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

gy & e e

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Basic salaries,
allowances and

HEFBRELR

8 EEEHM
BRI EBCA A EBI ) EE 383(1) 16 K A B AR
Bl =D (BARESEHNNEREE) AT
WENEEHFMOT :

Contributions

—To=sER

other benefits to retirement
BEARFHE - benefit scheme Discretionary 2023 Total
Fees BER RAER bonuses —ECo=H
e Ht3EF FHEMERR BfRTEAL et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Executive Directors HITESE
Wang Liang Xing IRE - 1,300 13 - 1,313
Wang Cong Xing THE - 780 13 - 793
Pan Rong Bin B - 1,227 13 - 1,240
Non-Executive Director JE#i{TEE
Wang Dong Xing TRE - 1,040 13 - 1,053
Cai Rong Hua BrogE - 585 13 - 598
Hu Cheng Chu HRA - 585 - - 585
Independent Non-
executive Directors BN FHITES
LuHongTe =51 200 - - - 200
Lai Shixian R B 200 - - - 200
Zhang Shengman ERE 156 - - - 156
Total @5t 556 5,517 65 - 6,138
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(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basic salaries,
allowances and
other benefits

EXEE -
Fees ALK
we Hipta7
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

8 EEHFME

Contributions

to retirement
benefit scheme Discretionary 2022 Total
BIREF bonuses —E-—F
BE oA BUISTEAL st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARBETTT ARBETTT

Executive Directors HITEE

Wang Dong Xing TRE - 1,040 13 - 1,053
Wang Liang Xing IRE - 1,300 13 - 1313
Wang Cong Xing THE - 780 13 - 793
Cai Rong Hua =L Sk - 585 13 - 598
Hu Cheng Chu i) = 585 = = 585
Pan Rong Bin LR = 1,040 13 = 1053
Independent Non-
executive Directors BV FEHITES

LuHongTe SR 199 = = = 199
Nie Xing =E 199 - = = 199
Lai Shixian B E 199 = - = 199
Total HBEt 597 5330 65 = 5992

Mr. Wang Dong Xing, Mr. Cai Rong Hua and Mr. Hu Cheng Chu were re-
designated as non-executive Directors of the Company on 11 December
2023. They are executive Directors of the Company before 11 December
2023 and their emolument disclosed above include those for services
rendered by as executive Directors.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company (“the Directors”) or any of the five highest paid
individuals set out in note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FRESAE « BEELA RPN EER
—E_=FF A+ —RHEFAEAER
AIIEITES - BRERZT_=F+=H
T—HRAARRRBMITES - EXHEEN
FTNBERSIERNTESFRENRE
A SR o

FR - AEERENRNENARBES
TEFDHTXMFIHIINARRSF
WA EAEMRISROR - (BRI AR E S N A
AEBRHRBE - SIERRERMEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

gy & e e

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

9

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2022: four) are
Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The emoluments in

HEFBRELR

9 EBREFMAL

—To=sER

hERSFMALTES A=R(ZF=_—
FMOR)RES  WENHHD NS

respect of the remaining two (2022: one) individual are as follows: W BB (- —F : —5) AL
BIFBaT -

2023 2022

—EB-=H —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETFT

Salaries and other benefits e REAET 1,359 890

Discretionary bonuses BIBTEAT 575 191

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RINEFIFTEI R 53 16

Share-based compensation LARS A5 £ Z5 01 5 R A 66 =

2,053 1,097

10

Remuneration of senior management of the Group, including amounts paid
to the highest paid employee other than Directors as disclosed in note 9 is

as follows:

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

10 SREBAEME

AEERREEABNMS (BREMES
P EC MR ESIMREF MRS FIR)

LI

2023 2022

—EB-=H —E_—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETFT

Salaries and other benefits e REAET 3,956 2,708
Discretionary bonuses IBTEAL 2,342 191
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RINEFIFEIHER 137 60
Share-based compensation LARS {5 £ EE 01 B R A 345 385
6,780 3,344

Remunerations of the senior management of the Group are within the

following bands:

:

AEBSREEABNME BN IA T

2023 2022
—E-=F T
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEK
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7575 10 7

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 #JTZE 1,500,000 77T

1

1
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the
year of RMB530,427,000 (2022: RMB448,061,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,197,485,000 (2022: 1,197,485,000).

(b) Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 2023
and 2022; therefore, dilutive earnings per share are equivalent to the basic
earnings per share.

11 BERER
@ EBREAREF

EREARABINDEFEFNBARKE
530427000t —Z & = — F: AR ¥
448,061,0007T ) * DA K B B 17 i AR N #E
5 A% 801,197,485000 % ( =& = —
1,197,485,000 B ) 51 & o

b) BREBEF
HE T =GN " —F|IFE
EEBEE SRR At SRESAF A
ERERELRETF -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R SRR M EE 2)

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ¥Y¥ - BRERRE
Properties
and Leasehold Plantand Motor Office Fumiture  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles equipment and fixtures in progress Totel
NEREF BELE BERME e BAERME GRREE ERIR gt
RVBO0D RBOO RMBO0O RBOXO RNBOO0 RVBOOD RVBOOD RBOO
ARETE  ARETr  ARETr  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETr  ARETT  ARETR
Cost: ﬁ2$ 0
At 1 January 2022 W-ZE-—%-F—-H 819,600 139016 146,129 13413 50793 9,145 302992 1481088
Additions RE 208972 4361 3759 984 3939 1333 19527 281,776
Transfer fom constructioninprogress  EREEETE 257958 141 7687 - 13,981 1084 (280851) =
Transfer to investment properties BRARENZ
(Note 13) (R 13) (159629) - - - - - - (159629)
Disposals ik - - (706) (553) (1357) () = (3327)
Exchange adjustment 3K ¢S - 61 - - 30 8 - 9
At31 Decernber 2022 and S
1 January 2023 TZA=+-8k
“E-=£-f-H 1,126,905 182480 156,869 13844 67386 10859 41,668 1,600011
Additions HE 7,738 52397 3 1970 4982 543 26367 97768
Transfer from construction inprogress  ERBEETE 635 - 5889 - 3001 - (68.251) -
Transferto constructioninprogress ~~ BRAZHARTHE = = @219 = = = 4215 =
Disposals e - - (2570) (1,740) ) (2067) - (6804)
Exchange adjustment R A% 3 - - - 1 3 - 37
At31 December 2023 ATB-=F
+-A=t+-H 1,141,020 234,877 212,751 14,074 74,953 9,338 3,999 1,691,012
Accumulated depreciation: iﬂﬁé :
At 1 January 2022 W=ZE-—%-f—-H 71620 91761 56,563 8352 45314 7295 - 280905
Transfer o investment properties ?E@?E RENE
(Note 13) (RfzE13) (2460) - - - - - - (2460)
Charge for the year FERE 8369 40565 15335 1064 8414 2260 - 111,269
Witten back on disposals HERRE - - (549) (529) (1200 (4n) = (0745)
Exchange adjustment A% - 61 - - 2 8 - 9%
At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023
112789 132387 71353 8891 52555 9092 - 387,067
Transferto constructioninprogress ~~ BRAEHRTHE = = (1,099) = = = 1,099 =
Chargefor the year FEE 50436 35905 19762 129 7033 2044 - 116474
Witten back on disposals HERAD - - (2389) (1489) (399) (1.968) - (6.245)
Exchange adjustment AR 3 - - - 1 3 - 37
At 31 December 2023 S 2
+-R=+-H 163,248 168,292 87,621 8,696 59,200 917 1,099 497,333
Net book value: BERE:
At31 December 2023 RITCZf
+-A=t+-H 977,772 66,585 125124 5378 15753 167 2,900 1193679
At31 December 2022 i
+-A=t+-H 1014116 50093 85516 4953 14831 1,767 41,668 1212944

Construction in progress comprises costs incurred on buildings and plant ~ EEILEBEN & ME R AT LHE
and equipment not yet completed at the end of the respective reporting F - BERREDEENKR
periods.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13 BEWXE

2023 2022
—E=-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Cost: A :
At 1 January Kn—H—H 307,618 147,993
Transfer from property, plant and equipment R G - RE REE
(Note 12) (BtE12) - 159,625
At 31 December W+=—H=+—~H 307,618 307,618
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: EFHTERREE :
At 1 January m—H—H8 35,718 29,221
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEBYE - BEKEE
(Note 12) (Kt&E12) - 2460
Charge for the year FEFE 7,091 4,037
Impairment losses BIEEE 4,820 =
At 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 47,629 35718
Net book value: BRMEE(E -
At 31 December W+=—H=+—~H 259,989 271,900

Investment properties represent retail outlets and office premises
that are leased to distributors and a property management company.
As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the investment properties
as determined by the Directors of the Company by reference to the
market price of similar properties in the respective area amounted to
RMB304,491,000 (2022: RMB369,064,000).

As at 31 December, as of the decreasing market price of retail outlets,
the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the retail outlets and
as a result the carrying amount of two retail outlets were written down
to their recoverable amount of RMB59,273,000. An impairment loss of
RMB4,820,000 was recognised in “other net income”. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on the retail outlets’ fair values less
costs of disposal, using market comparison approach by reference
to recent sales price of similar assets. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount is based on is categorised as level 3 measurement.

KEMERMETHHER —RMEEE
NENZEEHERAYE - R_T—=
F+-A=1+—08 BARREFTLRE
A EBEUMENTEREENRED
X ANFERELSARE304491,0007T (=
T —F : AR¥369,064,0007T) °

R+ZA=+—0 BaRZEEEHENME
T AEEFNGE TEE/ENTRE S
B AMMRZEZEEHNEREREZH
AU [E 4 58 A R # 59,273,000 7T © JREEE
AREE 4,820,000 TR [ AR ASFEE | P RE
R AIE S EMNGHTIRESEEHN
A EREERAFERAT B LB ATE -
WR2EZXRNREEENOPHEEES
e AT B S REAIIKIBEZ AR BESEA
F=MWEtE -
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14 EAREE
Properties
leased
Land use for own use
rights HEEBH Total
T i fFE R k7S #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARETT
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2022 R-—E—_—F—H—H 143,659 290,947 434,606
Additions hE - 106,784 106,784
Disposals BE - (130,891) (130,891)
Exchange adjustment M 5 SR B - 262 262
At31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 M=ZZT=—4F
+=ZA=+—8Kk
—E-=%—H—H 143,659 267,102 410,761
Additions INE - 102,637 102,637
Disposals BE - (53,714) (53,714)
Exchange adjustment (RIS - 59 59
At 31 December 2023 MRZTZ=%F
+=-—A=+—8 143,659 316,084 459,743
Accumulated depreciation and ZITER
impairment: R :
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—F—HF—H 20,158 125,011 145,169
Charge for the year FEFE 3,557 106,423 109,980
Impairment loss VERIEN R - 4243 4243
Disposals BE = (98,990) (98,990)
Exchange adjustment I 5 SR B - 212 212
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 AT _-—F
+—A=t—H8EFK
—E-=#—HF—H 23,715 136,899 160,614
Charge for the year FENE 2,958 93,974 96,932
Reversal of impairment loss BEE B - (2,456) (2,456)
Disposals BE - (44,337) (44,337)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 SR - 13 13
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%F
+—A=+—H 26,673 184,093 210,766
Net book value: BEEEE
At 31 December 2023 RITZ=%F
+=ZA=+—H 116,986 131,991 248,977
At 31 December 2022 A ——
+—-A=+—H 119,944 130,203 250,147
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14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group's right-of-use assets contain land use rights and properties
leased for own use. The interest of land use rights in the PRC are prepaid
upon acquisition. The leases related to properties are typically run for an
initial period of one to five years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
and restrictions. As at 31 December 2023, rental deposits of RMB41,650,000
(2022: RMB41,625,000) were paid for the leases, which will be held by the
lessors throughout the respective lease terms.

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 FHEEEE)

AEBFEREEERRELIMEREREE
EERRMYE - PE T FEREZ Ex
RIBERTEN - BEMENHEEV TSR
MER—EZAF A THEBEAEENHA
EERFENHREMEIGRETUES -
TR E R R ERER - WEHAREZER
R TEER RIS - HEHE TSN
ERZFEEBRH - AT _=F+=A
=t+—H gpEEEXNEsEEAA
R ®4165000m(ZE=_—F: AR
416250007T) ' HEEeR S RIEERR
REEARS -

15 H\EEEE

2023 2022
—=E_-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Cost: A :
At 1 January Kn—H—H 39,463 37,687
Additions NE 2,411 1,776
At 31 December W+=H=+—H 41,874 39,463
Accumulated amortisation: FEHEH
At 1 January R—H—B8 34,784 30,768
Charge for the year FEFE 3,362 4016
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 38,146 34,784
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—AH 3,728 4679

Intangible assets represent the enterprise resource planning and
information technology system software.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

BIEERERERARE REMZIMN AR
']t

RERBHERCDF AGAEa AN
EREERATTIRFAS A ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

16  INVENTORIES 16 #E&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position (a) REMIARANEFEE BT .
comprise:
2023 2022
—EC=F R F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Raw materials JRATE 133,551 154,582
Work-in-progress 8 44,442 44,697
Finished goods BRI 647,677 685,363
825,670 885,142
(b)  An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an b) ERAERIVFTAEBZNEES
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: i
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E__F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEHEFENIRAE 1,796,688 1,588,216
Write-down of inventories & MR 40,272 77,759
1,836,960 1,665,975
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 RBUWEZERRRAEMERRKIE
2023 2022
—EC=5F —E__F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Trade receivables FEYE F RN 422,025 551,927
Less: Loss allowance B RS (29,171) (23335)
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance FEUE 5 BRF - FIBRESIE RS 392,854 528,592
Prepayments to suppliers TE L FE R R IE 1,760 2,161
Prepaid advertising expenses ENEERX 740 2233
VAT deductible AIEHIRER 256,283 236,747
Other deposits, prepayments and receivables Hibz]® - TN ERERGIA 81,404 72,892
733,041 842,625

All of the trade and other receivables (net of loss allowance) are expected to TEHAFTA FE W E 5 BR 7k I H 4th fE U 2078 (40
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. BREBEZE) SR —FAKRB S ER AR
i o
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

17 RBREZHRRRHEAERRE

(%)

FE S5 (I A R ) I A 2
SHEMER AT -

2023 2022

—EC-=HF —E-—=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

Within 3 months =EAR 362,572 453,887
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBE=EAEEANA 20,161 62,891
Over 6 months but within 1 year fi@y N8 AE—F R 10,121 11,814
392,854 528,592

Trade receivables are due within 30-240 days (2022: 30-240 days) from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 29(a).

The movement in the loss allowance account for trade receivables during
the year is as follows:

JEWE ZERFRE B E R BB 30E 240K
(ZE-—F 308 240K) NEHA - B
AEERERBERRERE SERMEERE
B[R\ aE— Z BRI 290) ©

FARKE ZERNEERERZEFHN
T

2023 2022
—EC-=HF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT

At 1 January n—A—8 23,335 10,639
Impairment losses for the year FEREEE 5,836 12,696
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 29,171 23,335

18 CEEMRITER

18 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits have been pledged as security for bank loans (see note 20)
and bills payable (see note 21). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant bank loans and bills payable.

RITERSER ESRTER(RME
20) MENRE(RKE2D HER - 2K
RBTEFARENEREBRITERLEN
RIBRERLR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R SRR M EE 2)

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED DEPOSITS
HELD AT BANKS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits held at banks and
pledged deposits comprise:

19

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

BeRESSEY  RITEH
TR CEATRUAREAME

BERREEEY RITEHE
MECERAEREE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 4R A BIEARN R RS ESRE
statemnent of financial position and TAMWIR S RIBEEEY
consolidated statement of cash flows
~ cash at bank and on hand — RITNFHERE 1,077,225 960,114
Fixed deposits held at banks RITE AT 1,090,491 650,000
Pledged bank deposits (Note 18) EHIRIRT TR (FIEE18) 971,563 281,227
Total #st 3,139,279 1,891,341
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED DEPOSITS
HELD AT BANKS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND OTHER

2023 Annual Report

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits held at banks and

pledged deposits comprise: (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits held at
banks and pledged deposits held in the mainland China amounted to

RMB3,118,463,000 (2022: RMB1,888,823,000). Remittance of funds out of

the mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC

government.

19 BRERBASZEEY  RITEW

TR BHEAER
EREEHR (&)

XK E 3R

(a) iﬁ%&fﬁé S/ iE’dTE,HHT?

MR EEAER

L (48)

R-ZE-=F+t-A=1t—H"  RPER
iﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@:ﬁ% RITEHF

KRB ERFS

R A A R #53,118,463,000 7T

(_2?\::$ A R #1,888,823,0007T ) °
18 & 4 o B A 38 SNE A BT )

SNEE Bl PTARIR ©

(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) PBRBAIFEEKCEEKAELER
from operations: SHVEIER
2023 2022
—EBC-=HF S S
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR%TR ARETT
Profit before taxation B 52 AT A 657,815 546,786
Adjustments for: FATSIBIELHFAE
- Depreciation — e 6(b) 220,497 225,286
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B A E#H 6(b) 3,362 4016
~ Equity-settled share-based payment — VARR D) A By i
expense HEERY 6(@a) 1,361 2313
— Impairment losses on right-of-use assets ~ — {EFAEE E R EY)
and investment property ¥RERBE 6(b) 2,364 4,243
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and — REYE - BB &E
equipment and rigth-of-use assets AR RAEEE
B 6(b) (3,053) (8,542)
— Interest on bank loans — RITEFHFE 5 26,099 10,490
— Interest on lease liabilities — HEAEFNE 5 5,777 7456
— Interest income — FBHA 5 (81,752) (52,216)
— Unrealised foreign exchange gain / — REEMER WS,
(losses) (E518) 1,564 (930)
Changes in working capital: LEEREE)
— Decrease in inventories — FERD 59,472 8,595
— Decrease/(increase) in trade and other — EWE BRI EAD
receivables FENCRIER L,
(3250) 97,506 (47,549)
— Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank = Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
deposits B (&) 41,542 (69,123)
— Increase in trade and other payables = Fgﬁféf% BR 5K I Eo At
FEAT FRIFIE AN 154,238 125214
— Decrease in contract liabilities — &RAaER> (4,300) (17,083)
Cash generated from operations KEEBEENIR S 1,182,492 738,956
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED DEPOSITS 19 HRERBRELZEY  RBITEH
HELD AT BANKS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND OTHER FR - CEAERURHEMER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EREER ()

(0 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (0 RETEFELEEENHIER

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing ~ FREJIAEEREZSMELENRIES
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from ~ BIaF15 - BRERERIERSEE) - gEE
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash BFTEENBEREATRES RS ARIKIE
flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows EREERAEBGERERERSEA

as cash flows from financing activities. BEEBFMEARNRSRENEE -
2023 02
—E-cE St 2
Bank loans Lease liabilities Bank loans Leaseliabilities
RITER HESR RTER €Ak
RMB000 RMB000 Total RVBO0O RMB000 Total
AEETR AE®TR Eh AREFT NEBTT Eh)
(Note 20) (Note 22) RMB'000 (Note 20) (Note 22) RMB1000
(K 20) (K22 ARETR (Mt 20) (M) AREFT
At1 January R-A-R 436,526 131,926 568,452 - 13929 13929
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRERE
Proceeds from new bank oans TRTENAETE 1,126,800 - 1,126,800 632090 - 632290
Repayment of bank loans [RRBIEH (439,290) - (439,290) (271,120 - (27110
Capital element ofease rentals paid EREZ RS A H A - (98.279) (98.279) - (95484) (95484)
Interest elernent ofease rentals paid EREZ S 2 FIEHA - (5777) (5777) - (7456) (7456)
Interest pid EfffIE (6925) - (6925) (775 - (7754
Total changesfom fnancing cash flows~~~ AR &S 2818% 680,585 (104,056) 576,529 353416 (102940) 250476
Other changes: Hias:
Increase n lease lbilties o entering into. IR ER AT UHAEEY
newleasesduring the financialyear 2 HAEBEEN - 102637 102,637 - 106784 106784
Farly termination oflease contracts HEANRTAL - (12,265) (12,266) - (“0672) (067
Interest expenses (Note ) SRS 26,099 5777 31,876 10490 7456 1796
Bichange adjustments EHAE - 39 40 - 4 f
Total other changes AnEEen 26,099 9,188 122,287 10490 73615 84105
At31 December Rt=A=1-A 1,143210 124058 167,268 436526 131926 568452
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, FIXED DEPOSITS
HELD AT BANKS, PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

19 RERRSZEY - RITEH
TR CEATRURHEAR
EREEHR (&)

(d) HEENRERHAEHE

GFEREMNERANEESEBRE TG
I8

2023 2022

—EB-=HF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Within operating cash flows (Note 6(b)) &EBemE (isEe(b)) 35,146 23,964
Within investing cash flows HEReRE 25 2,671)
Within financing cash flows MERESME 104,056 102,940
139,227 124,233

These amounts relate to the following:

ZETRENIBIABRE ¢

2023 2022

—E-=HE —ET_—4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETFT

Leases rentals paid ENAERE 139,202 126,904
Payment of/(net proceeds from) lease rental HE ARSI

deposits (S RIEF58) 25 (2,671)

139,227 124,233

20 BANKLOANS AND FACILITIES

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank loans is as follows:

20 RITERREEHEE
RITERETERMRATMOT :

2023 2022

—EB-=HF —E——F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFT

Within 1 year or repayable on demand —FAIRERKER 289,862 249,499
Over 1 year but within 2 years A —FEMENRN 189,000 1,000
Over 2 years but within 3 years R E=FA 664,348 186,027
1,143,210 436,526
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20 BANKLOANS AND FACILITIES (CONTINUED) 20 SRITERREEHEE (&)

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans of RMB838,500,000 (2022: RIZTEZ=F+=ZRA=+—H ' #RTE
RMB188,027,000) were secured by the bank deposit of RMB900,000,000 oA K #8385000007c( — & = =

(2022: RMB200,000,000) A B #5188027,0007T ) £ R 17 77 A
#900,000000C( ZE = —F : A E ’ﬁ%
200,000,000 7T ) {’E?ﬁﬁ

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans of RMB282,800,000 (2022: R-ZZE-_=F+-_HA=+—H' BR

RMB248,499,000), which were discounted bank acceptance bills (financing BIRETALEER(REE Téf ) B8R
in nature), were secured by the bank deposit of RMB38,380,000 (2022: TE AR 28280000 m( =T ==
RMB42,040,000). Discounted bank acceptance bills (financing in nature) F /\E?ﬁg248,499,000TE) BIRITIF

were bills of exchange which were denominated at Renminbi, measured at R #38380000( ZE - —F: AR ”ﬁg
amortised cost and repayable within one year. 42,040,000 7T ) {E4E 4R - BEREIRIRITANR T

TE(E?E’IEE)%DM\E%EHEE’JEEE 1R
BT E  WEAR—FAEE -

The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at the end of each ~ REHREHR - RITEEREREHA R

reporting period are set out as follows: BRE I -
2023 2022
—E=-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETFT
Facility amount EEHE 2,715,500 2,254,645
Utilised facility amount in respect of: HATIHEEEDRNEERE
— Bills payable (Note 21) — B EE (MRE21) 243,825 161,450
— Bank loans — RITER 256,440 341,079
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BNEZERRAREBESRK

2023 2022
—EC-=4 —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREBTT
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRK 485,045 418351
Bills payable (Note i) FERTERRR (It i) 244,900 161,450
Trade and bills payables (Note iii) FERTE 5 BR AN S P AT =4 (FfT &) 729,945 579,801
Accrued salaries and wages ErtEFekTE 51,100 38,812

Payables for purchase of property, plant and BEWZE - KEMEEENFIE
equipment 15,687 49,345
Retirement benefit contribution payable FERT IR UK AR F 3K 25,524 25,524
Other payables and accruals FL M FE ST FRIE R EET IR 186,373 194,336
1,008,629 887,818
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:
(i) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as

income within one year or are repayable on demand.

(ii) Bills payable were secured by pledged bank deposits of RMB1,305,000 (2022:
RMB39,187,000) as disclosed in Note 18.

21 BNESRIAREMGESRER

(%)
B
() TEERFTAEETE R A A O

R—FREBHERSEA - HEERE

(ii) AN FE 18 FT I ER - S = AR T DA B K 4R
RITIFEARARE 1305000 (T = —4 :

AR 539,187,000 7T ) {EHER °
(iii) An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on the invoice date is as (iii) ERTE SRR R ENZIBIZESE B AR
follows: BRATAT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Within 3 months =ERAA 555,740 475,792
Over 3 months but within 6 months BA=EAENEAN 173,016 93,718
Over 6 months but within 1 year AN E A E—FA 625 6,349
Over 1 year thim—aF 564 3,942
729,945 579,801
22  LEASE LIABILITIES 22 FHE&SE

As at 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

W-Z-=6+-A=+—8 HEaRE
R T ER S

2023 2022

—EC-=E T —F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREF T

Within 1 year (current) —F R (BNER) 75,306 75,241

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEN 35,245 40,872

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFEAN 13,507 15,813

Sub-total (non-current) /INET (GEBNER) 48,752 56,685

Total #Et 124,058 131,926
23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23 ERE&E

Revenue that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the reporting period was fully recognised in the reporting period. The
balance of contract liabilities at 31 December 2023 is expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

R E T AERBEEHHBRAER
REHANLPER - R _T_=F+_H
=+ HNARBEERERER —FA
WHER BN -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R SRR M EE 2)

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)

24 INCOMETAXINTHE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 24
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEFBRELR

—To=sER

mEMBRRRANBHAE

(@)  Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial @) HFEMEAMRFAMBEEATIE
position:

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETFT

At 1 January n—H—H 194,536 174,766

Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax (Note 7(@)) AR B (>3 FTiS i e (FiwE 7(a)) 109,212 105,035

PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B EPERSH (81,748) (85,265)

At 31 December W+—A=+—H 222,000 194,536
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of

financial position: HARE BTSN R A ETER ¢

Current tax payable JE{S BNERRL IR 223,880 197,179

Prepaid income tax A ERS R (1,880) (2643)

222,000 194,536
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24 INCOMETAXINTHE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
the year are as follows:

24 ZEUBRRRANFER
(%)
b) CEIEEHEREERER:

REREMBARNKAE ERNELERRE
EX(BE) EKREBD RFRAZBIT -

Deferred tax assets/(deferred tax liabiitis) arising from

BEREgE/ (BERERE) RETIER

Impairment of
trade receivables,
inventories and
Accrued investment Tax losses Undistributed
expenses property of PRC profits of PRC
andothers  EMEZER subsidiaries Lease Right of subsidiaries
HRERR FERRE  TENELR liabilty useassets  FEINEAT Total
- HEHE HEER EERE fERgaE RAKER &3t
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI0O
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2022 E@:gllﬁ—ﬂ_ﬁ 12065 28888 13756 40605 @0 (8.268) 4583
Credited/(charged) toconsoidated —~ 3TA/ (4 ) &ABS
statement ofproftar loss and &%ﬁ@%ﬁ
other comprehensive income 8798 (313) 4446 (9449) 9104 (15750) (5982
Released upon disrbution of dvidends KR EEFARER - - - - - 1229 1292
At31 December 2022and e
1 January 2003 TZA=1-Ak
“ECCF- ﬂ = 20,863 25,756 18,202 157 (32,106) (11,726) 52,146
Credied/(charged) toconsoidated —~ 3TA/ (4R )ABS
statement ofproftar loss and &ﬁi\miﬁqﬂﬁuﬁ
other comprehensive income 2416 (9522) (11,297) (279) (767) (18,550) (37,999
Released upon distroution o dvidends ’\mﬁgﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ? - - - - - 19823 19823
31 December 2023 EICE
+_H_+ : B9 16,234 6,905 30878 (32873) (10453) 3970
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: EIAR & B IS AR R BVEIER
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETT
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 44,423 64,821
Deferred tax liabilities BERIARIE (10,453) (12675)
33,970 52,146
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24 INCOMETAXINTHE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

() Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

The Group is subject to 5% withholding tax on dividends receivable from
its PRC subsidiaries in respect of their profits generated. As at 31 December
2023, deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary differences relating to
such undistributed profits of RMB2,983,183,000 (2022: RMB2,936,432,000)
were not recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that those profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

There were no other significant temporary differences relating to deferred
tax assets or liabilities not provided for as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

24 ZEUBRRRANFER

(%)
() ARERELEHREEE

AEBAERKRB EFHW B AR MEEF
R T 25 O A% BN 5% BOFNAIER AR
N EZENERBARMKREREK T2
BETNERA RRRDRZEFE -
—E-=F+-A=+—H8  WARpHEZ
ERDIRFEA R 2,983,183,000 L (= F
——F AR¥2936432,0007T) B BRE
R ERERERELHIBERE -

WEERN — T - —FN T - —F+— A
=+ HEEHBEERBEEENEMD

BAREREBIARGHE
25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 25 REEBEHHTHMRRER
POSITION
2023 2022
—E-=HF S
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T R ARETT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RWBARKIEE 145,054 140913
Current assets RENEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEM—RH B A FI5IE 259,920 242,627
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIE R H A W IR 251 210
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 123 142
260,294 242,979
Current liabilities mENBE
Amount due to a subsidiary FER—RHEB R FIFIE 2,317 2,250
Other payables and accruals H AR FRIB R FEET IR 85 82
2,402 2,332
Net current assets REBEEFE 257,892 240,647
Net assets EERE 402,946 381,560
Capital and reserves EXR#iE 26(b)
Share capital AR 26(a) 105,517 105,517
Reserves & 297,429 276,043
Total equity REHBR 402,946 381,560
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 B - #ERRE
(@)  Share capital @ B’
2023 2022
—EC-=5F B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET T
Authorised: VERE ¢
100,000,000,000 shares of HKS0.10 each 100,000,000,000 %
FHEE 0.10 7 TTHIBKD 10,000,000 10,000,000
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
shares shares
BHEE ZBREE
‘000 HK$’000 RMB’000
T T AR®T T
Issued and fully paid: EETRARE :
At1January and 31 December2023and R=-ZE=_=F K
2022 2o -F—A—HK
+=—A=1+—H 1,197,485 119,748 105,517
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(b) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of BEEINAT -

the year are set out below:

HEFBRELR

26 B - HERKRE(E)

s = =

(b) FERAAR IS
$%lfA$E%HW% m%w&%x
LA EE NS AR EETE - AL

V*flﬁuiﬁﬁ)z 2B E’\i%ﬂiiﬂmmiﬁi

The Company PIN/N|
Share Share Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
e i EE ERGfE EXGfE REEH ERfiE
(Note 26@) ~ (Note26(d)()) ~ (Note 26(d)(ii)  (Note 26(d)v)
(Witase) (o) (Waasaa)  (Raasain)
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000
i ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETRE  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R —%-f—H 105517 31411 6,063 (27304 246732 362419
Changes in equity for 2022: “EOCERREY:
Total comprehensive income forthe year EEREURAE - - - 19997 337740 357731
Fquity-setted share-based payment WRRRERORESERR 2000 - - 2313 - - 2313
Dividends approved in respect o the previousyear At E—EERE 200 - - - - (156649) (156649)
Dividends declredinrespectofthe currentyear ~ BERAEERE 260 - - - - (184260) (184260)
At31 Decernber 2022.and 1 January 2023 \iqiiﬁ‘l‘ R=1-Bk
“E-E-A-H 105,517 31411 8,376 (7,307) 246,563 381,560
Changes n equity for 2023 TR CEREREY):
Total comprehensive incorne for the year EEREURLE - - - 12267 356,293 368,560
Equity-setted share-based payment WRHAERNRESERS 20000 - - 1,361 - - 1361
Dividends approved n respectof the previousyear B4tk E—FERE 200 - - - - (148,630) (148,630)
Dividends declared in respect of the curtent year E*\\Mﬁﬁ i) 200 - - - - (199,905) (199,905)
At 31 December 2023 “E-CFt-A=1-H 105,517 31411 9737 4960 251,321 402,946

185



186

China Lilang Limited 2023 Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R SRR M EE 2)

(Expressed in Renminbi) ( AN ¥ & &)
26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(c) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

26 EX - #HERKREE)
© RE

(0) FEN AR RIRESBIRFARE.

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E__F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Interim dividend declared and paid of HK13 cents 2 & Ik K2 R Ao HARZ 2
(2022: HK13 cents) per share R 13BN (ZE=—F :
137841) 144,376 133077
Special interim dividend declared and paid of BB IR RIS R B S
HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) per share RSB I( == —F :
578l 55,529 51,183
Final dividend proposed after the end of the EA#Ed:HﬂﬂEféﬁx)ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂx SRE
reporting period of HK13 cents BB ZE==F:
(2022: HK9 cents) per share 9/%%) 142,070 95,548
Special final dividend proposed after the end of  FA%RE HAAR 1% #E IR (< 45 Bl R HARR
the reporting period of HK5 cents BERSBIW(ZE=F
(2022: HK5 cents) per share 57840) 54,642 53,082
396,617 332,890

The final dividend and special final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

(if) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during

WA & IR 1% SR A5 #) R B AR B A Bl 2R
HR BRI EHRAARERREE -

(i) ERFARENRNEENARE
REEBRRBEMBRFERE

the year:
2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial 3@ 1E B 1B £ & H) < HARZ &,
year of HK9 cents (2022: HK11 cents) per share BB (=T =4 :
117840) 95,548 107,696
Special final dividend in respect of the previous iﬂ?}ﬁﬁﬂlirﬁ'ﬂ-ﬁﬂlﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
financial year of HK5 cents (2022: HK5 cents) BRRSABIN(ZZE =4 : 5581l)
per share 53,082 48,953
148,630 156,649
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of
their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to equity owners.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase paid-in capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
its registered capital.

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

(i) Fair value of design consultancy services contributed by the then
shareholders and fair rental value of properties owned by the then
shareholders but occupied by the Group prior to the listing of
the Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
amounting to RMB1,143,000.

(i) The excess of net asset value of subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal amount of shares issued upon the group reorganisation in
2007.

(iif) The portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for the share-based
payments in note 1(0)(ii).

(iv) The nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

26 B - HERKRE(E)
(d) REHOMEERED
0 BROEE

REMSFERRE  NARNBMEE
RR AT RIE M RBRRAEH MY DR E -
W S RBERRN GO IR EE

% ARRBRNBEEERFEERBRR
R HIR SRS o

(ii) VR

BPBERME - ARBIRF BRI R E
BRMIE AR AR EIRT B HAN A
FEETE BRI AR R B 109% (AR I 85 1E F /&5
BRIOBAZEEHAES  BEQER
FEERIETE M E AR 50% B 1k - BMRTIEE
BB ABE VAR RAEDREE AD KRS
RIHETT o

EEREBEERE R B AERER
ETE BRI MM B A RN EREA
LB AERRIERNBRETSOREF
& 2 259% ©

(i)  BAGEE
BENBEBREATEE :

0) RE R RERA R ERRE R
NE FRERREHEAFERA
N AIRRAD A B R AT E AR _E T AT A AR
SEERANYMENHEHERATE &
B8 AR 1,143,000 7T °

(ii) R-ZEZE+FEBEAFMKENB
ANAMEEFEBLE S BITRMN®E
ELOE

(i) WP AKERENRITEREREN
BREBHAFERSS S REME
1(0)(ii) Ffr 2t 3t DA B A7) 7% 2= B #9 A S
PRERA RS RTBUR T T DARERR ©

vy BEROHN@EE -
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of financial statements of operations outside mainland China
which are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in note 1(s).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was RMB282,732,000
(2022: RMB274,974,000).

(f)  Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

26 EX - RERKRE (&)
(d) fREHMEERBEN(E)
(v B

[ 5 R B 1 R B 7 B R 3R SN 5 7%
M mRMELNAAINEEZR » OIR
HRIEE 1) RS FTBOR BRI

(e) fREEBHYRI D IKIE

R-_ZE-_ZF+_A=+—8" a#5
ETARRIEZRENREEEAAR
#282732000c( 2 = —F: AR
274,974,000 7C) °

f) EBEXEE

REENFEEAEERRREEAEE
RREESE  FREARKRKFEEBENS
T%Euu&ﬁ&ﬁ;ﬁ{ﬁ&u/\ﬁﬁz$ﬁxﬁﬁ
miERE A RO
#ﬁ&ﬂ

AEBTFERETHERALREEEEARE
AR @K FEE R e SR E =S R O
BEEFRE2ENRLTROEE RRE

ZMBS 0 AR E A A
SR TTEE AT LB -

AR TS EAT B L
ZSRFRIR -

AP AZINRE S
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27 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal
and provincial government authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions at the rate of 12% to 20% of the eligible
employees'salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for the required
contributions which are remitted to the respective local government
authorities when the contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees are each

required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees'’

relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the contributions described above.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

27 RERNKEF
ERMEFR AT S

AEEETETEHRBAR2BHDESE
Ko T BRI 4 B 4L A 0 T BR AR R IR AR R T
2 (T5181]) - Bt - ZEHENBARZA
REBIRIE BT 2 H12% % 20% [T BI1E
K - AERBEEFEMFHR - HER
B BARS [F) & AR FE 0 07 BUT HEREEE - #0777
BT#E R B RS aNa SR ERER X
HRRE

AEETMBER BRI ERE S TS KB
REBENEELHRGIEAESFE
([RESETE)) - RIESFEIREREMENK
RRETE > B XTARE - MBS
IREAEERAEERSBIRESMEBIY
AH)5% MzZaTSIEL R - AT AR
A 300008704 EBR o sZaT Sl MR — 4
EH BB BAFTE ©

B B SRSN  AR BB EATERAIRIK
BANKHEREE -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 LUIRGOAEBNRELZERS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2019 (the 2019 ~ ARRIR-ZE—NFMAZ+=BEMNE
Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors may invite, at their discretion, ~ IR#EFTEI( ZZE— N FBRETE]) - &
eligible participants, including employees and directors of any company in I BEFAMNEEFEER2HE (B
the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Companytoa A& .E'_TT:HT Gl E’J@E&%%)&
maximum of 119,748,491 shares. B - URBBHRZ 119748491 RA R

f& 1 o

On 3 July 2020, the Company granted options to subscribe for an aggregate =~ RZZE_ZFLA=H ' ARRRE_-F
11,500,000 shares of the Company to eligible employees under the 2019 _ﬂ$H§H§$gu+gUﬁ/\éqTNE,\TxﬁTuu

Share Option Scheme.

BB £ 11,500,000 B AN A AR BO BB A4 o

(@)  The terms and conditions of the grant are as follows: (a) HRHABRREGHET

Contractual life of options:

BN A KT -

Exercise price:

TTIEME -

Vesting period:
BB

10 years from date of grant

B B EEET 104

HK$4.31
4317%87T

The options are exercisable by the grantees during the period commencing from the day immediately
following the expiry of the two year period after the date of grant, and ending on the day falling ten years
after the date of grant, during which, (i) up to 3,417,000 options granted may be exercised on or prior to
the end of the third year after the date of grant; (i) subject to (i), up to 6,882,000 options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the fourth year after the date of grant; and (iii) subject to (i) and (i), all
outstanding options may be exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the
options will lapse and no longer be exercisable.

BERRRE R AR AP B BRER H B e R IR fE Mg 2 B e - =R B B +F IEAEIR A
171 - HAR : () TiERiR 3,417,000 B BBARAE AT AR I B BRR B =F IR Z AITTE & (i) TR
i8 6,882,000 (B BB AR AT A5 B HRIR SE M EF Il 2 AT TR (MEZRZ () BVARBR ) M2 (i) PR
AT TR B0 R AR P A AT 178 BRRE o 2 AT TR (MEZR X () e () BVARPR ) - BRI - BB RIS &
KRR BT

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of AR RIRM RN EEK L B HAR KA H B
grant and on the date of grant were HK$4.23 and HK$4.31 respectively. HMRMED B & 4238 T X431 87T °
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise price of share options

are as follows:

(b)

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

28 LIROBERNRELEERS

(%)

BRESE RNETFHITEER
T

Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
INREF T REE BREHE

Outstanding at 1 January 2022 MR- —F— A —HEKRTE HK$4.31 11,500,000
43187

Granted during the year FAFKHL - -

Exercised during the year FANTTE - -

Lapsed during the year FARM HK$4.31 (548,000)
43138

Outstanding at 31 December 2022 RZE__F+_-_A=+—H HK$4.31 10,952,000
AT 431387

Exercisable at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H HK$4.31 3,257,000
AJ1T7{E 431387

Granted during the year FARRE - -

Exercised during the year FRITHE - -

Lapsed during the year FRRM HK$4.31 (95,000)
43187

Outstanding at 31 December 2023 RZZE—_=F+=-_A=+—H HK$4.31 10,857,000
HARTTE 43187

Exercisable at 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+—_A=+—H HK$4.31 6,500,000
A {71 43187

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 6.5 years (2022: 7.5 years).

BRAEMETFORGaOFERRSF (=

—EBE-=F+-A=t+—BAEARTEZ

T — & 1 754F)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the normal course of
the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade and bills receivables. The Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is
limited because the counterparties are banks for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 240 days from the date of
billing. The Group will also obtain deposits from customers prior to delivery
of goods when credit limits granted are temporarily exceeded.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer, therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, 4.3% (2022: 1.4%)
and 8.9% (2022: 12.9%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

29 TREREERQVE

AEBEMHEYHNEER  RBESREER
219K 8 HEXBBIE - NEBFEE
It 2 R e Ko 7 B L/ TR b S R 7 R
M B E R BOR R PIEN T X -

@ FERE

EERBRERYF I IETEANRLE
HAEBERYBEROERR - NEE
BEERER T 2R E RIKE SRR N ER
R - aRBEF I RAKERRERRE
ERRMNIRTT  MAKREAENRERS
LR EBYARBTERNEERRA
PR

AEBEYW BIRREMBERSAEEBAERE
ER

FEWE 5 B8R K

MEKEZERME  AEESURAS
BB -EEREENTPETEMNE
EFHE - FHEEPREPBENE
HIFRIR M RE Sk BRSO RBE ) - At &
EFNBEEMREPREEBNEER
B BUEZRFTDNEZHHRKRIE
240X AEH - EFFREESRBHEE -
ARG RS & A S an A A & P CERRT

S
i e

AEBFEHEERREESSEFAE
A EATRE - Bt - WS E U (E 5
REHNREBEXN  BELERESETHE
BERER - RIREHKR - BINE ZRKEEE
FORE43%( T - —4F : 14%) KB K
ESEHEARAEFE  UAK8%(ZF - —F:
129%) REAARZTFEHIRIK

RE B E BRBERIREETE RN TE
EEERCETERRE SRR ZEBER
e ARAEEBEEEBRLRIL AR
TREFDHZRBETRNERER -
HAARAEE TR EFPHEE—FED
REBERBEREL N EREE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 29 SEEBERERATEGE)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

(@) EERRE)
FEWE R ()

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to N &iEHBBEREBFAEE SRR R E
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

WEB S EREREEBHRNER

2023
—E-=F

Gross carrying Loss

Expected amount allowance

loss rate IRE4E EEEE

FEHEEE RMB’000 RMB’000

% AR®T R ARBT T

Current (not past due) BNHA (R HA) 0.6% 323,354 1,940
Less than 3 months or equal to B ER =8 A LAk

3 months past due ={&A 10.0% 63,943 6,394

Past due over 3 months BEA={E A LA L 60.0% 34,728 20,837

422,025 29,171

2022
—E__F

Gross carrying Loss

Expected amount allowance

loss rate IRE4RE EER

TBHIEER RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARBFT ARETFT

Current (not past due) BNEA (FR#0HR) 0.6% 446,267 2,696
Less than 3 months or equal to B A= 1E A LAAEK

3 months past due =@A 10.0% 85,513 8,551

Past due over 3 months wEA={E A LA E 60.0% 20,147 12,088

551,927 23,335
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group keeps assessing the expected loss rates based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience over the past years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills issued by major banks in the
PRC and considers that the credit risk associated with such bank acceptance
bills to be insignificant.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables present the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

29 SREREERQVEGE

@ FEEREED
FELIQJSB EI %ﬁ((%%)

AEBRBEASERBEFENBEEE
BRERFENERMEBERE - hFH X
AR EEEBERRANEEIRRE
£ BRI RS B ESGRIRBEF
BHOBERRHER - MANATIE

FrAZESEERRASESMEENT
é%%#ﬂ%W%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ

IREEE N B RAVER 1 T3 VSR T
A EE 0 WRBZERITALEEER

EER MR BN -

b) ARBELER

AEENBRRDEHERENRBHRE
BEMER  URREGENRSHER

MERNEREBISHABEEREEMN
J_:/i—_l-%_LHH&EHHE}j//ILEU,éiﬁ;J:

TRINFAEERBREIRN BB ED
ERIRSBRTBEBRH - THREBEDATAARES
RBRALRE(E %ﬁé%ﬂfuﬁ%ﬂ
5% - RIFF BRI RF R - BIAR
%XMﬁﬂﬂ+E )M&$§.m§H
RF AHHE
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 29

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

b) RBETEMR(E)

31 December 2023
“E-=F+=A=t—H

—F-=555

TREREERATE(E)

Contractual Undiscounted Cash Outflow

EHEES R

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
ondemand 2 years 5 years Carrying
—FERH —FpF MEL L Total Amount
REX EMER ZEER ‘st HRE1E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®F T ARETR ARETR AR®TR
Bank loans FITEK 289,862 189,000 702,654 1,181,516 1,143,210
Trade and other payables ~ ERNE ZERZ M H A
FERRIE 1,008,629 - - 1,008,629 1,008,629
Lease liabilities HEAR 77,814 37,768 16,400 131,982 124,058
1,376,305 226,768 719,054 2,322,127 2,275,897
31 December 2022
“E__HF+-A=1—H
Contractual Undiscounted Cash Outflow
EETAARBERR S
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 yearor less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Carrying
—EN —EF MM E Total Amount
BEX ZEMEA ERER st REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Bank loans RITER 249499 1,000 197,498 447997 436,526
Trade and other payables BB SRR E A
e FIE 887,818 = = 887818 887818
Lease liabilities HE&RE 79301 42,074 16,257 137,632 131926
1,216,618 43,074 213,755 1473447 1,456,270
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk
(i) Interest rate risk profile

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans issued at
variable rates, and lease liabilities.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s liabilities at
the end of the reporting period:

29 SEREREERQVEGE)

Q  FRERE
(i) AR SEN Y

AEBON KRR T ZREL TN R
MEVRITEFANEERE -

TRHAVAREBNRERRN B ER HGF

% -

Notional amount

EELH

2023 2022
—EC-=4F - —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETIT

Fixed rate liabilities: BEEFMEEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 124,058 131,926
Bank loans RITERK 676,710 433,790
800,768 565,716

Variable rate liabilities: FEAE

Bank loans RITER 466,500 =

(if) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB3,965,000.

(ii) BRI D AT

R-ZF_=F+=-RA=+—8 " fEFtFIx
BRI, R 100 EEE - B A
SEESTEOEAT - AREMKRGE
?'sz'ﬁ&ﬁea/mf' &R EMARE
3,965,000 7T °
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk

The Group's businesses are principally conducted in RMB and most of
the Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
Accordingly, the management consider the Group's exposure to currency
risk is not significant. The Group does not employ any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

(e) Fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technigue as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

29 SREREERQTVEGE

(d) ERERE

AEENEBETEAARKETEAEE
RBINEBEENRBEIAARER
8- At - EEERAEEHERNEEE
B TEK - NREEY EBRAEANEET
EESh 2/ -

e) RFE

TREJNAEERFERRIZE R IERE
FtENEmMIARTE ZFERIA
E R ABIFRM R EERIZE 1357 2 FER
EREN=EAFERESR AEE2R
A TMEETDEMRANE ABBRN AT BER
RENE2M  EEATVEFEHEME
BEREAL

F—REE: 2 FEFEERE—
RBEEEE - ANEE R BREN
RIEES 8 BERERT S 2 REH
EHmfE -

F_MEE: 2 FEERE AR
BRTE - B BIRBUBREEER R
— > BARERERTAIEREK
B NAIBRBBAEMSEEN
AR BUE -

F_PEE 2 FEEREATH
BIRBURRTE -

R-E—=FR T - —F+-f=+—
B FEcmEENBENERAEHEAER
FEWEERER] -
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30 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments of the Group in respect of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at 31 December 2023 not provided for in the

30 RIE

RIZB-_=F+_A=+—H " XEEH
AR BREAELBENEBEYE - BE

financial statements were as follows: KRR E A RN ¢
2023 2022
—EC-=4F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Contracted for =EIE:S) 20,871 13,971
Authorised but not contracted for BIREERETL 9,922 31,881
30,793 45,852
31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EXBELIRXS
(@)  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (@) BEZRS
2023 2022
—EC-=HE T &
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Purchase properties from a related party MEESEEYE - 205,000
Payment for the properties purchase from MEER B EME TR
a related party - 205,000

(b) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group did not have any outstanding balances with related parties as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

(b) EERAET Z&ER

R-EBE-_=F+-_RA=+—RAk=T=_=
FH+—A=+—8  ANEEEFEESBE
EAIREENLE
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32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the Directors used in applying
the Group's accounting policies have a significant impact on the Group's
financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting policies
require the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The main accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies are described below.

(a) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. Intangible assets except for those with
indefinite lives are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives. The Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, based on the Group's experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technology changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimation.

(b) Impairments for non-current assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the non-current assets at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified,
management determines the recoverable amount to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and recoverable amount and provide for
impairment loss. Any change in the assumption adopted in the cash flow
forecasts and fair value measurement would increase or decrease in the
provision of impairment loss and affect the Group's net asset value.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would affect the net
profit in the year and in future years.

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences.
As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.

REFBERLAET T _=FFK

32 St EERHE

ESRANKENEBERKEMATA
fhET M AT - SRS B B IR R A
XEELEATE - BN GFTERRERAK
SEUANE FAREEEREL G R
o FRASESHABRRAELHNETE
SEHHIEEN T X -

(@) IEK#H
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NEREFE - BILEE (EBRERFH
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i ARERBUEENKRKE RN
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HIRERE(E) - MEEBFTHREEX
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el
(b) FEREEERE

ARBEREREHREEIFRIDEEN R
HE NEEREERBEBRBRTEEN
BRE SR EEARENR  BEE

AR & A AT AREER KR E S
WM ENERE  WHREEEREE -
Fﬁim%ﬁ%& N ERTEF TR R

BEERRE - RTERREEIBREIL
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RIRFEZHFERE o

(©  FIEH

EEMSHEEIEEE TS RRBE
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BEEHEREARZORETE » Wit
R BIAEE - ARESRIERTERDN
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BRIR o

EEFEAFER
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JE1T RI LA P AT 45 0 T By 22 R A R 2R R
RhEHR  WFEREEEHEERFRK
FERTL B Y AT REME o
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32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of inventories
with reference to aged inventories analysis, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, write-down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net realisable value.
Due to changes in market conditions, actual saleability of goods may be
different from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by differences
in this estimation.

(e) Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade receivables by assessing
the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the original estimate, such difference will affect
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing
the expected credit loss of trade receivables during their expected lives.

(f) Bank acceptance bills

As set out in note 29(a), the Group considers that the credit risk associated
with bank acceptance bills issued by major banks in the PRC to be
insignificant. The Group monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance bills upon discounting or
endorsement is reviewed when the credit risk of issuing banks deteriorates
significantly.

32 ErHfhE R (%)

(d) FEHITSRFE

AEEG2EFEREON  RHER

PREYSHE 1B 00 DA K B TR FE 0 45 5 K B T
EHERFENREE - Bit - WFE
FRHEKSEREMAAIZ2ERE - A%
BReHRTE - EXTRALRES |
mE BRI E BRI LR AT E A TE
Mt At e ERE A RER &8t -

() EBWREZRINEERE

AEEBEBIHEMEEBRMAELE
SR BB ERE o EERKERG RH
i - MHEEEEDERAEENBERE
EBRER  RERSHREBANKE
2= & 42 A & TR B B B AR R FHE
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HEESTERKEZRFOERE &
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AEBEREEEE -

f) RITEARE
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 HEZE-_=f4+=ZHA=1+-—
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT HIEFED BEMEI RERHP
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 18] - FTERI KRB REEK
DECEMBER 2023 &

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a BEENEUBREANTZEBE - B2

number of new or amended standards, which are not yet effective for the ~ EBIZ BB BEHZ 1A ﬂ?ﬁ HE I EHE=
year ended 31 December 2023 and which have not been adopted in these Bl » ZEFEERARBEZE_T_=F+_H

financial statements. These developments include the following which may ~ =+—H JJ:ir r'ﬁfii)d( B mntt &
be relevant to the group. BTG IR - R SRR BIELAT A8
Eﬁi$%.$ﬁﬁgﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RN B #As 2 2B
BHHBEN
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements : Classification of liabilities as current 1 January 2024
onnon: current (2020 amendments”) —E-FE—H—H
REETERE 15 (BRI AR) - MBS RKRNZES] : BESERRESIERE
(ZZ2=ZFEFIAD)
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Noncurrent liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
("2022 amendments”) —E_mE—F—H
SREETERIE 15 (BRTAR) - IS MRRNZT - MERENIERBAaE
(22 =& ))
Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases: Lease Iiability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
BB SR EHERIE 1655 (BRI A) » HE : EREOMNEERE —E_FE—H—H
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures : 1 January 2024
Supplier finance arrangements —ZT-puFE—H—H
BRI 75% (BRI ) - HaRER MBEEMBREERIZE 75 (BFTAX)
TRITA : K% HEERELH
Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
BB EEHERIE 21 R (BEA)  HNERRBE > FE  RT ALMN —T-FfE—A—A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact 7N £ B TF 72 514 e S8 5T A & K JE AR HARS
of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. TEHB SRR E - HEB A ANEER
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a B NZEIEE] N AR RE B 47 & BT 15 iR
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. ENERNTE -
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ERANEOETBHERAA
(BB AY) (Mt D)

34 SUBSIDIARIES 34 Ff 8 A F)
Proportion of ownership interest
FiERREL Al
Place of
incorporation/ Particular of Group's
establishment and issued and fully effective Held by Held by
operation paid-up capital interest  the Company a subsidiary
Name of company HRRY/ EEIR FEB HAAR H—%HKE  Principal activities
NRER HRIREE DS HRRAHRE ERER b2 AAEE  EEER
Lilang Holdings L\m\ted BVI US$20,000 100% 100% - Investmentholding
FIRSFRER AR ABRAES 000%T RERR
Lilang (Hong Kong) International Hong Kong HKS20,000 100% - 100%  Trading, investment holding
Co, Limited B 2000087T and provision of
BETLERER AT management services
85  RABRRRHEEERY
Lilang (Fujian) Garment Co, Ltd. The PRC HKS20,000000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Noteb) \ hE 200000007 FTRERAHHHE
FIRS (2 B AR AR (Wit o)
Lilang (China) Co, Ltd. ('Lilang China") The PRC HKS315,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales of
(Noteh) i 315000000787C menswear and accessories
FIEB (e ARRAR) (THEHE)) FEIREREHHREREE
(H¥ztb)
Lilang (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. The PRC HKS$120,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Noteb) i 120000000 7T FTRERAHHHE
FIB(L8) BRAR (Hztb)
Lilang (Jiangxi) Garment Co, Ltd. The PRC HK$10,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Noteb) \ hE 1000000077 BEREREHNHE
ﬂEB (L) BB AR (Btb)
Xizang Lilang Garment Co, Ltd. The PRC Note a 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(‘izangLilang’) (Note Gl fitta SRS RECHHE
T MBS R Ev AR R A ] ([ RRIRIRE )
( W it C)
Xizang Ling Shang Garment Co, Ltd. The PRC HKS50,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Noteb) \ RE 5000000077 BRRREHNHE
Eaﬁi‘ﬁhﬁﬁiéﬁ‘ﬁ‘ RAR ()
Bujiandan (Xiamen) Garment Co, Ltd. The PRC US$27,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Noteb) \ R 210000007 BREREHNOHE
ﬁ?ﬁi(ﬁ?ﬂ)ﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁ RAR (Fzb)
Lilang (Fujian) Commerce Co, Ltd. The PRC Note a 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Lang Commerce’) (Note) i fitta STRERERMHE
HEB () s AR ) (MRS ES )
(Htztb)
Lilang E-commerce Co. Ltd. The PRC Note a 100% - 100%  Online sales of menswear and
('Lilang E-commerce’) (Note b) i fita accessories
NS TERERAA B BT REREMNHE
(TMBPEF 7% 1) (Mith)
Lilang Apparel (Fujian) Group Co, Ltd. The PRC HK$100,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
(Note b) \ hE 10000000047C BERERRSHHHE
HIRBRED (B32) REER AR (Htb)
Fujian Lilang Minimalist E-commerce The PRC Note a 100% - 100%  Online sales of menswear and
Co, Ltd. (Lilang Minimalist (Note b) i fiiita accessories

RERTRERESHHE




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi) ( A R B E(7)

34 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
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REFBERLAET T _=FFK

B~ F) (48)

Proportion of ownership interest

FiERREL Al
Place of
incorporation/ Particular of Group's
establishment and issued and fully effective Held by Held by
operation paid-up capital interest  the Company a subsidiary
Name of company HRRY/ EEIR FEB HAAR H—%HKE  Principal activities
AR HRIREE DS HRRAHRE ERER b2 AAEE  EEER
Fujian Lilang Logistic Technology Co, Ltd. The PRC Note a 100% - 100%  Provision of transactation and storage
_('Llang Logutie) Note b) i fizta services
BENEIRRRERAR REERRAEERE
(#5435 ) (Bt b)
Xizang Lilang Minimalist Menswear Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC Notea 100% - 100%  Sales of menswear and accessories
('Xizong Minimalist) (Note b} g fitsta SRS RECHHE
ERABASEARAA
(T4 1) (i)
Notes: BifeE
(@) The registered capital of Xizang Lilang, Lilang Commerce, Lilang E-commerce, () PRl FIES « FIEPPE 7S ~ FIBBE F R 75

Lilang Minimalist, Lilang Logistic and Xizang Minimalist are RMB20,000,000,
HK$20,000,000, HK$50,000,000, RMB10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively, of which RMB20,000,000, HK$11,847,180,
HK$6,519,660, RMB10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 were yet to be
contributed by the Group at 31 December 2023.

(b) These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

(0) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

35 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2023, the Directors consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be Xiao Sheng International Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

35

A BB RS A9 - BB W i K 78 AR RS A9 BY 5
fft & X 5 5l &% A E #200000007C

20,000,000/ JT * 50,000,00078 7T + A R #&
10,000,0007T * A & # 20,000,000 7 & A B
#20,000,0007C © E R A K 20,000,000
JC * 11,847,180 JT * 6,519,660/ 7T+ A
¥ 10,000,0007T * A E# 20,000,000 7T &
AR 2000000 TR =_=F+=-H
=T —HHREREETE -

FZEBRANPBERLNIEEELE -

ZEERSNPEKINARA

BERARRREZERAF

E$ R R=F f_i—I— A=1+—
ZKEIE%&E—%? DA RETTE
mﬁlﬁ EZUNCINSES ) e o Eaaiin
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Five Years Summary

LFEHE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN #6217 )

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NF ZTIEF T —F T_F ZTZ=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT AREBETT ARETT AR%®TR
Revenue WA 3,658471 2,680,835 3,379,480 3,086,190 3,543,795
Profit from operations FESE 979,795 651,385 532,753 519,058 610,643
Net finance income BEW AT 44,168 43,401 28,464 27,728 47,172
Profit before taxation B AT A 1,023,963 694,786 561,217 546,786 657,815
Income tax FRriS A (211,783) (137,544) (93,090) (98,725) (127,388)
Profit for the year FERE 812,180 557,242 468,127 448061 530,427
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (cents) B (B 67.82 4653 39.09 3742 4430
Diluted (cents) #sE () 67.82 4651 39,04 3742 4430
Assets and liabilities EEHAEF
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,032,680 1,393,525 1735218 2705950 3,825,167
Net current assets mENEEFE 2,595,402 2,329,889 2,011,070 1,332,668 1,054,778
Total assets less current BERERTBDARG
liabilities 3,628,082 3723414 3,746,288 4038618 4,879,945
Non-current liabilities FRBBE 21,803 69,389 72,900 256,387 912,553
Net assets EEFRE 3,606,279 3,653,525 3,673,388 3,782,231 3,967,392
Capital and reserves ERK #E
Share capital [N 105,517 105,517 105,517 105,517 105,517
Reserves i 3,500,762 3,548,008 3,567,871 3676714 3,861,875
Total equity A 3,606,279 3,653,525 3,673,388 3,782,231 3,967,392




REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The results for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

PUBLICATION OF RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL
REPORT

The 2023 Annual Report of the Company will be dispatched to shareholders
and published on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.lilanz.com in due course.
This announcement can also be accessed on the above websites.

GENERAL

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors: Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Liang Xing (Vice Chairman Mr. Lai Shixian

and Chief Executive Officer) Mr. Zhang Shengman
Mr. Wang Cong Xing Prof. Liao Jianwen

(Vice Chairman) Prof. Jiang Zhan

Mr. Pan Rong Bin
Mr. Wang Jun Hong
Mr. Wang Zhi Yong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Dong Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Cai Rong Hua

Mr. Hu Cheng Chu

By order of the Board
China Lilang Limited
Shum Chi Chung
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 18 March 2024



